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Corporate Introduction
KEE

Kingdee International Software Group Company Limited (stock code: 0268) is a leading software provider in China and a
leading management consulting and IT integrated solutions supplier in the Asia Pacific region.

The subsidiaries of the Group include Kingdee Software (China) Company Ltd., focusing on management consulting and IT
systems software integration in Mainland China; Shenzhen Kingdee Middleware Company Ltd., specialising in middleware
business; Kingdee Youshang E-business Service Company Ltd., providing an online management and e-business service
platform (www.youshang.com) for small and medium sized enterprises; Beijing Kingdee E-Government Software Company
Ltd., providing an online public management and e-Government service platform for government and public organisations;
Kingdee Medical Software Company Ltd., providing integrated IT solutions for medical and healthcare organisations and
administrative departments; and Kingdee International Software Group Company (H.K.) Ltd. and Kingdee International
Software Group Company (Singapore) Ltd., companies targeting the Asia-Pacific and overseas markets.

Kingdee sees its mission as helping customers to succeed, realising staff’s dream, leading the progress of Chinese
management model. With 107 branches specialising in sales and services and more than 2900 business partners focusing
on consulting, technology implementation services and distribution, Kingdee has provided management consulting and
informatisation services for more than 1 million enterprises and government organisations around the world. Kingdee has
been ranked by IDC as the leader in the SME ERP market in China for seven consecutive years and by Forbes Asia as one
of “Asia’s Best under a Billion” for five consecutive years, and garnered the “Capital Outstanding Enterprise Award” in 2011
presented by CAPITAL, a leading financial and capital magazine in Hong Kong. Testifying to its technology leadership, Kingdee
became the sixth member of The Open Group, an authority of formulating the TOGAF Standards, following five world leading
[T enterprises, including Capgemini, Hewlett Packard, IBM, SAP and Sun Micro systems.

HERRHEEERAR(RERTS : 0268) RTERHEXREMA - DAMRELOERRTEARAT RREH

SREEMBARNEEINPEARCXERRTESRETSO BN (TE)BERAF  TINPRTEBNRIITL &
FEFERAR  TERA/NERRE IS BRI RE T H B R (KA Bwww.youshang.com i & & R A E T AHREA
5] - BRERRAAMPIREALER VEFBBEMRE TN ReSBBRHARAR  INSBREHLIRERTELH
PURMLERL B ARSI RRENS R BEERERRARAA - ARETRBRABEAEUIMIT AR LB THH S %
BRSHEE(FE)BRAF  2RERTHEEGIINR)BERRAE -

SRAKGETER - EHETKY) - FPEEREAE2IRER BED - BBI07RATHERB AT M D ZHEEM2900
Feva B BB - DWESERH - AUREENER100ERCENBHABRMEIZHANERRY - 258
BLERIDCTRTEKRBCETSEERE %  BESFR(BMIMEN)FRENRET NMEXE 201152 RRERETR
RERFEF(CAPITAL) R 2 & ARG K3 52 - 20104F & #4 Capgemini ~ HP ~ IBM ~ SAP ~ Sun% BIBR A1 B 14 7K A TOGAF
P ERBTESI B M The Open GroupE6REFEMHE ©

R R B RIS EHEBRHE  B=ER

ewers  emxaseex | RRKIS | e

- RHEARSS ML BB | g
‘ £ 4§K/3 B SHE
GEgRE o ChURRHER ¥t
: BAITEN
ARUSC BT
BARES A-p

EREMSE (iEEM  SEEE =+

-

SRERRMHEEERAF —2-—F5§



Corporate Information
NEEH

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Xu Shao Chun, Chairman of the Board and CEO

Mr. Chen Deng Kun, Senior Vice President and CFO

Mr. Feng Guo Hua, President and CEO of Subsidiary (Resigned on
2 February 2012)

NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS
Mr. James Ming King (Resigned on 27 March 2012)

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Gary Clark Biddle

Mr. Ho Ching-hua

Mr. Wu Cheng

Ms. Yang Zhou Nan (Resigned on 27 March 2012)
Mr. Yeung Kwok On

COMPANY SECRETARY
Ms. Ngan Lin Chun, Esther, ACS

AUDIT COMMITTEE OF THE BOARD

Ms. Yang Zhou Nan (Chairman) (Resigned on 27 March 2012)
Mr. Wu Cheng
Mr. Gary Clark Biddle (Appointed as Chairman on 27 March 2012)

AUTHORIZED REPRESENTATIVE

Mr. Xu Shao Chun
Mr. Chen Deng Kun

AUDITOR

PricewaterhouseCoopers
22nd Floor, Prince’s Building
Central, Hong Kong
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Corporate Information
ATEH

LEGAL ADVISORS
Hong Kong:

DLA Piper

17/F, Edinburgh Tower
The Landmark

15 Queen's Road

Central

Hong Kong

Cayman Islands:

Maples and Calder Asia

Suite 1002, One Exchange Square
8 Connaught Place

Central, Hong Kong

PRINCIPAL BANKERS
PRC:

China Merchants Bank

Bank of China

Industrial and Commercial Bank of China
Bank of Communications

Shenzhen Development Bank

Hong Kong:
The Hong Kong and Shanghai Banking Corporation Limited

REGISTERED OFFICE

P.0. Box 309
Ugland House
George Town
Grand Cayman
Cayman Islands
British West Indies

HEAD OFFICE AND PRINCIPAL PLACE OF BUSINESS
IN THE PRC

Kingdee Software Park

No. 2 Kejinan 12 Road

South District

Hi-Tech Industrial Park
Nanshan District

Shenzhen, Guangdong Province
The PRC
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Corporate Information
ARER

PRINCIPAL PLACE OF BUSINESS IN HONG KONG

1902 MassMutual Tower
38 Gloucester Road
Wanchai

Hong Kong

COMPANY WEBSITE

www.kingdee.com

PRINCIPAL SHARE REGISTRAR

Bank of Butterfield International (Cayman) Ltd.
P.0. Box 705

Butterfield House

Fort Street

George Town

Grand Cayman

Cayman Islands

British West Indies

HONG KONG BRANCH SHARE REGISTRAR AND
TRANSFER OFFICE

Computershare Hong Kong Investor Services
17th Floor, Hopewell Centre

183 Queen’s Road East

Hong Kong

PUBLIC RELATIONS

Strategic Financial Relations (China) Limited
Unit A, 29/F., Admiralty Centre |

18 Harcourt Road

Hong Kong

MAIN BOARD STOCK CODE
268
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Financial Highlights
MEHRE

2011 2010
RMB’000 RMB’000
IN: & ARETFT
Turnover ] 2,022,498 1,436,621
Profit attributable to equity holders of the Company AREIEREE AERET 144,988 271,710
Dividends per share FRRE HKD##- HKD;%%£0.0340
Earnings per share FRER
— basic — AKX RMB A R #0.0577 RMBA R #0.1093
— diluted — & RMB A R #0.0542 RMBAR#0.1025
Earnings Per Share — Basic Return on Equity ]
 BEREH — EX  BEREH — EX
RMB %
ARE 225
0.1093 202
0.1070 274
00058 LA A4 17.1 g
Yo/ L 74
0.0750
=/ 0.0577
Yo/ 8.8
o/
2007 2008 2009 2010 2011 2007 2008 2009 2010 2011
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Financial Highlights
BERE
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Turnover Operating Profit
ERE it
RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETTT ARETTT
300,618
£ 74
2,022,498 219,240
L7 ’
183073 L4 190,286
1,436,621 £L74
Yo/ 146,454 L74
875,300 996,610 L7
766,874 ﬂ L 74
2007 2008 2009 2010 2011 2007 2008 2009 2010 2011
[ Turnover Breakdown by Business Profit Attributable to Equity Holders of the Company
EXBHEERTESL FAFRGSRBAEERT
% RMB'000
AREFT 271,710
25% £L74
212,479
" 181546 L4
0
17% £ 74 144,988
135,476 ’
L 74 e
4%
M Sales of software [ Software solution consulting and
HiEE support services
[ Sales of computer and related BHTREARBIZHRHERA
products | Software implementation services
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Chairman’s Statement
FREE

The Group will pursue growth,
efficiency, and higher profitability
under its “Transformation, Focus,
and High Value” strategy. __
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Chairman’s Statement

ERERE

On behalf of the Board of Directors, | hereby present the financial and operating
results of Kingdee International Software Group Company Limited for the year
ended 31 December 2011 to shareholders for review.

Though the Group recorded high revenue growth in 2011, it is behind our preset
target due to the impact of the adverse global macroeconomic environment.
In addition, due to the rapid increase in costs as a result of the Group’s
strategic investment and business expansion, profits for this year underwent
substantial negative growth. Revenue for the year grew by 40.8% year-on-year
to approximately RMB?2,022,498,000. Profit attributable to the equity holders
of the Company decreased by 46.6% compared with last year to approximately
RMB144,988,000. Comprehensive income attributable to equity holders
declined by 49.1% compared to last year to approximately RMB145,900,000.
Basic earnings per share was approximately RMB0.0577, 47.2% lower than
that recorded in the previous year. In view of the profit level of the year, the
Board of Directors will propose not to distribute dividends for the year ended 31
December 2011 in the general meeting of shareholders.

The year 2011 is the second year of the Group’s “New Four Years, New
Journey” development strategy. Under our business banner of “Transformation,
Integration, High growth,” we continued to step up our investment in
management and IT integrated solution businesses improving consultation,
outsourcing, system integration services as well as efforts in strategic
cooperation with international players. At the same time, we continued
to increase investment and deepen our penetration in key industries like
construction and properties, retail and distribution, catering and hotels to
extend our operations, and have successfully driven further development
via key acquisitions in sectors including medical and healthcare, equipment
manufacturing and small loan processing. To tap the growth opportunities of
cloud computing and mobile Internet, we have launched the “Terminal product
+ Cloud services” initiative. Further, we accelerated the development of our
international business and set up a branch office in Taiwan. To recruit and
retain professionals, we enhanced the leadership skills of general managers
responsible for our distribution channels, helping them to break bottlenecks and
improve their organising capabilities, and these efforts in turn rapidly boosted
the Group’s turnover.
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Chairman’s Statement
TE®RE

In the second half of 2011, as the European sovereign debt crisis and tightening
credit controls in the Chinese banking system led to economic uncertainties,
some SMEs delayed their purchases of software, which contributed to a
slowdown in the Group’s revenue growth. For the full year revenue growth
rate is still high, though behind the Group’s preset target. At the same time,
the Group’s operating expenses rose rapidly due to our strategic investment
and expansion, as well as a surge in labor costs, thus causing the Group’s
operating profit to decline significantly. Although we have proactively embarked
on cost control measures in the second half of the year, such as streamlining
and restructuring our organisation, and optimising and strengthening the
professionalism of our workforce, our expenses rose faster than revenues.

Although the Group faces temporary imbalances in long-term investment and
short-term profits amid uncertainties in the macro economy, the Group remains
full of confidence regarding its future development. Large enterprises in China
continue to accelerate their transformations and overseas expansions while
SMEs have stronger incentives to lower their costs and improve efficiencies,
thus ensuring that demand for management software and services will be
robust in the long run. Together with the new generation technologies including
software industry being prioritized as strategic emerging industries by the
Chinese Government and complementary revolutions in cloud-computing,
mobile internet and commercial social network technologies, the long-term
growth of the management software and services industry is assured. In 2012,
having reviewed experiences we gained during the reporting year and after fine
tuning our Group strategy as “Transformation, Focus, High Value”, the Group
will further consolidate its core businesses like “ERP + Consulting”, continue to
grow “Terminal product + Cloud services” businesses and actively explore new
business opportunities like social business services. We also will pursuit steady
growth in scale, optimize business structures, improve profitability, and continue
ongoing efforts to develop staff skills, generate synergies in our operations
and forge closer ties with our business partners. In these ways, we will enable
customers to advance their businesses and in so doing deliver returns to our
shareholders. Kingdee aims to be the world’s leading management and IT
integrated solutions service provider and our progress speaks for itself.

Last but not least, on behalf of the Board, | would like to extend my gratitude
to our supportive clients, business partners, investors, the government and the
community, as well as the continuing productive efforts of our employees and
their families.

Xu Shao Chun
Chairman of Board of Directors
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Management Discussion And Analysis
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Management Discussion And Analysis
BEEENRED

Demand for management and IT services will return to rapid growth
after the macroeconomic environment improved.

PECERHEERITRANERBNERE

BHBEL

K18 - WEIFREERIE -

. Business Review

With the Chinese government accelerating the transformation pace of economic
model, transition has become the mainstream trend of Chinese enterprises.
Driven by demand from Chinese companies seeking to upgrade their business
model by using the latest technologies such as cloud computing, mobile internet
and commercial social networking, the domestic management consultation and
IT service market is expected to enter a new phase of rapid growth. In 2011,
based on the basic strategy of “Transformation, Integration, High growth”,
the Group continued to focus on enterprise management and IT integration
solutions, small enterprise Internet application services and middleware
businesses, though it also entered the medical healthcare, equipment
manufacturing and small loan industries through mergers and acquisitions or
other ways. The Group further sought to explore emerging market opportunities
such as cloud computing and mobile internet. During the reporting year, the
Group achieved high revenue growth of over 40.8%, although profit during
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Management Discussion And Analysis
BEEENRED

The Group has initiated
a “Cloud Computing
Management” strategy,
developed our staff, and
collaborated with our
partners and customers
for growth.
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Management Discussion And Analysis
BEEENRED

the year dropped sharply, which was due to rapid rise in costs from strategic
investments and business expansion, and weak macro economy. The Group
nevertheless maintained its leading presence in the market, while earning
numerous accolades and achievements as listed below.

—

)

The Largest Market Share of the SME ERP Sector in China for the seventh
straight year (IDC, August 2011)

The Best Provider of Enterprise Resources Planning Software (Hong Kong
Capital magazine, March 2011)

Shenzhen Kingdee Middleware Co., Ltd (“Kingdee Middleware *)
was accredited with the “Award for Promoting Chinese Enterprise
Informatisation” (jointly presented by the magazine IT Managers’ World and
IDC, January 2011)

Kingdee Middleware was selected as one of the Excellent SOA Models and
Top 10 Solutions in 2010 (at the 4th China SOA Standardisation Seminar,
June 2011)

Kingdee’s YouShang.com was recognised as “The Best Small Enterprise
SaaS Service Platform” (Analysis International and the APEC E-Commerce

Business Alliance, March 2011)

“The Best Innovative Products” by Top Ten Internet Enterprises Software
Expo (China Software Expo, May 2011)

Top 20 Asian ICT Enterprise (MIS Asia, November 2011)

The Best Provider of HR Management Software in Greater China Region
(Human Resources Management, March 2011)

2011 Top Ten Self-branded Software Companies in China (Ministry of
Industry and Information Technology of the PRC, June 2011)

10) 2011 China’s Most Influential Companies of the Copyright Industry Award

(Copyright Society of China, November 2011)
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Management Discussion And Analysis
BEEENRED

1. Enterprise Management and IT Integration Services
Small and Medium Enterprise Product Market

During the period under review, the Group observed that an increasing need
for manufacturing companies to transform and upgrade in the face of rapid
development of the modern service industry, as well as the integration of
the traditional IT service industry with internet technology would become the
driving force behind the informatization of SME, which was also the result of.
To address these market demands, the Group released K/3 WISE innovation
management platform V12.3; enhanced the client-oriented PLM management
system; and optimized the supply chain e-commerce applications and CRM
service management, among other key processes. In addition, introduction
of the e-menu (iPad version) on the K/3 WISE management platform for the
catering industry accelerated the Group’s expansion into the catering and
hospitality market. At the same time, the Kingdee small loan integrated business
management system 2.0 also enabled the Group to enter the small loan and
mortgage segment.

During the review period, the Group continued to boost its distribution network
and bolster its market share among county-level cities. To expand its market
coverage, the Group partnered with more distributors, in particular, industry
— specific value-added resellers, to sell specific products. The Group also
sought to enhance its core competitiveness by working with selling-and-
service-creation providers and value-added business partners under the “Cloud
+ Terminal” product system. The Group believes that such efforts can help
consolidate its distribution channels while assisting partners to become more
professional, thereby establishing a complete distribution chain.

Large Enterprises Product and Industry Market

During the reporting period, the Group observed large and medium enterprises
seeking to transform their businesses, which included expanding and enhancing
management, standardizing practices and raising efficiency. With greater
concern among companies about risk management and internal controls,
this has created a stronger need for business intelligence (Bl). Consequently,
innovative technologies such as cloud computing and mobile technology are
expected to bring about changes in business and management structure and
practices.
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Management Discussion And Analysis
BEEENRED

The Group has continued to expand its financial management and discrete
production application services, and applied Kingdee EAS Management and
IT Integration Solutions across a range of industries including manufacturing,
property, retail, garment and 4S shops within the automobile industry. Such
utilisation of advanced solutions has helped large enterprises in China to
realize value chain management, business transformation and upgrade their
management and business practices. The Group has launched risk and
internal control information system V2.0 to help large enterprises achieve all-
round risk control. It also launched EAS Enterprise Mobile Application Solutions
to complement the new era of work mobility brought about by wireless
communications and the Internet.

The Group has continued to vigorously develop consultancy-based integration
services to assist Chinese enterprises transform, enjoy greater management
and plan for the future, as well as better integrate their value chain via its
“ERP+Consulting” business model. During the reporting period, the Group
secured several clients, including Shanghai Lima Group, Zhejiang Hengjiu
Machinery Group, Guangdong Yantang Milk Group, Jiangxi Coal Group, Gemdale
Group, Yincheng Real Estate Group Co., Ltd. and Shanghai Yongda Group.

Maintenance and IT Service

The Group continued to promote and differentiate its service packages based
on products in order to build a standardized cloud computing service platform;
consequently integrating its online service network, optimizing its desktop
system by cloud computing and integrating available resources. This enabled
the Group to provide convenient and prompt cloud computing services to
customers. In addition, the Group continued to enhance the classification of its
services based on different levels of customer service, and thus better cater for
the specific needs of large enterprises. It also strived to develop customized high
value-added IT service solutions for customers; establish specialized regional
marketing services and introduce professional service delivery teams. At the
same time, Kingdee sought to offer one-stop IT services for small enterprises
S0 as to support their rapid growth and demand for highly effective system
maintenance service. To facilitate communications with customers, which is part
of Kingdee’s core value, a series of marketing events were organized, including
“Kingdee Customers IT Skills Contest” and “IT Innovation, Kingdee’s Motivation”
national service seminars.
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Management Discussion And Analysis
BEEENRED

International Business

During the reporting period, in order to boost business development in the Asia
Pacific, the Group established an international business department and set
up a Taiwan branch as well. Apart from launching the EAS English edition, the
Group announced the introduction of the KIS international edition and established
collaborative relations with more than 30 overseas partners. The Group also
achieved continuously high growth through its involvement in foreign enterprises
operating in mainland China and Chinese companies with global reach, as well
as via its own business in overseas markets. Among the industry giants that the
Group secured as its customers included Domtar Group (Canada), Leo Paper
Group (Hong Kong) and RDM Group (ltaly).

2. Middleware Business & Cloud Computing

The Group continued to launch new solutions that leverage the SOA structure,
cloud computing and Internet during the reporting year. The Group received
acknowledgement from the State Internet of Things Project Development Fund
and the State High-tech Development Plan (863 plans) as well as the project
development fund supported by Guangdong Province and Shenzhen City. In
addition, a national science and technology project, entitled “Core Electronic
Parts, High-end Chips, Basic Software Products” undertaken by the Group,
received approval from the Ministry of Industry and Information Technology.
The Group was also designated the Deputy Leading Unit of the State Standard
Cloud Computing Working Committee, affirming its leading position in the cloud
computing and middleware platform industries.

During the reporting year, Kingdee’s middleware expanded into the military,
national defense and telecommunication sectors. The Group also secured major
customers, including China South Industries Group, Suzhou Industrial Park,
Ordos Information Committee, Tong Hua Mining Group and China XD Group.

It is worth noting that the Group actively participated in the planning and
implementation of national and local cloud computing strategies and received
authorization to serve as one of the development units of the Cloud Computing
Demonstration Project under the National Development and Reform Commission
(NDRC).

3. YouShang.com

The YouShang.com operation successfully integrated its application and services
into traditional ERP software through the application platform. It also launched
the KIS Cloud Platform Solution to small and petite enterprises, offering more
than 200 cloud management applications, which has helped to substantially
enhance customers’ productivity and competitiveness. Also, YouShang.com
stepped up its R&D efforts in internet application products, and launched several
innovative products and applications including Kuaidi 100, Wise Note, Invoice
Inquiries, Cash Flow Statement and Message 100.
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Management Discussion And Analysis
BEEENRED

YouShang.com continued to strengthen its strategic partnership with operators,
banks, governments and schools during the reporting year. It provided highly
effective, convenient and stable products and services to a broad user base in
the business sector, collaborating with organizations on the use of various open
platforms including the Internet and e-commerce websites.

Il. Investment & M&A

During the reporting period, the Group has acquired Guangzhou Wisetop
Computer Company Limited, a well-known IT developer for the medical and
hygiene industry in China. The company is well known in the field of hospital
informatization and construction of a regional medical platform. This merger
has transformed the Group into a leader in the IT systems integration within
the medical and hygiene service market in China. Kingdee has also invested in
Weamax Information Company, an emerging finance and IT services company,
aiming at providing professional IT and management integration services
to China’s fast growing guarantee and small loan industry. By investing in
Changsha Aolian Calculator Information Technology Development Co., Ltd.,
a specialised software developer for the equipment manufacturing industry,
the Group has become more able to provide more vertical industry-specific
management and IT integration solutions to the fast-growing equipment
manufacturing industry and the automobile industry in China.

lll. Social Responsibility

During the reporting period, the Group continued to support the selection
activities of the Fourth Chinese Management Model Outstanding Awards,
and hold the “Chinese Management Global Forum”, as well as supported
business schools and relevant research institutions to explore and develop a
Chinese management theory and education system, thereby assisting Chinese
enterprises to enhance their management standard and promoting their
transformation.”

During the reporting period, the Group has continued to sponsor a scholarship
in Southeast University, and has also signed strategic cooperation agreements
with a number of renowned universities including Wuhan University, Nanjing
Audit University and Northwest University to build joint labs, training bases and
technical centres of original software in order to nurture more original software
professionals for China and for enterprises as well.

IV. Financial Review

For the year ended 31 December 2011, the Group’s turnover amounted to
RMB2,022,498,000, representing an increase of approximately 40.8% against
last year (2010: RMB1,436,621,000). Revenue from high-end market, service
business, and products from third-parties recorded high rate of growth.
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Management Discussion And Analysis
BEEENRED

During the reporting period, the Group realised revenues from software of
RMB1,088,015,000, representing a rise of approximately 33.9% against last
year (2010: RMB812,554,000), and services revenue of RMB855,866,000,
representing an increase of approximately 41.2% against 2010 (2010:
RMB605,994,000). The Group’s net cash flow generated from operating
activities was approximately RMB151,253,000, representing a drop of
approximately 48.6% over that of last year (2010: RMB294,337,000).

During the reporting period, the trade receivables turnover decreased by
approximately 6 days to 35 days (the average of the trade receivables balance
at the beginning and the end of the year divided by the total revenue of the year
times 365 days) (2010: 41 days).

For the year ended 31 December 2011, profit attributable to equity holders of
the Company was RMB144,988,000, representing a decrease of approximately
46.6% against 2010 (2010: RMB271,710,000). Comprehensive income
attributable to equity holders of the Company reached RMB145,900,000,
representing a decline of approximately 49.1% compared to the same period
in 2010 (2010: RMB286,660,000). During the year, net profit margin was
7.2% (2010: 18.9%) and basic earnings per share was RMB0.0577 (2010:
RMB0.1093).

Gross Profit

Gross profit of the Group rose by approximately 29.0% from RMB1,098,828,000
in 2010 to approximately RMB1,417,842,000 in 2011. Gross profit margin for
the year decreased to approximately 70.1% (2010: 76.5%), mainly due to the
Group’s promotion on sales integration of third-party products, as well as the
products’ rising cost.

Selling and Marketing Expenses

Selling and marketing expenses for the year was approximately
RMB1,229,721,000 (2010: RMB785,715,000), representing an increase
of approximately 56.5% against last year. Selling and marketing expenses
accounted for approximately 60.8% of turnover, compared to approximately
54.7% in 2010. The growth of selling and marketing expenses was mainly
because of the rising costs brought by the forward-looking strategic investment
and business expansion.

Administrative Expenses

Administrative expenses for 2011 amounted to RMB254,485,000 (2010:
RMB162,161,000), representing an increase of approximately 56.9%. During
the period, administrative expenses increased to 12.6% of the turnover,
comparable to that of 11.3% in 2010. The rise was mainly due to the increasing
administrative expenses caused by the expansion in business and staff number.
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Management Discussion And Analysis
BEEENRED

Capital Expenditure

For the year ended 31 December 2011, the Group’s major capital expenditure
mainly included capitalised R&D expenses of RMB258,209,000 (2010:
RMB183,329,000), purchase of computers and related equipments of
RMB30,860,000 (2010: RMB24,713,000), and construction fees for Kingdee
Software Park in the amount of RMB139,064,000(2010: RMB14,221,000).

Financial Resources and Liquidity

As at 31 December 2011, the Group had cash, cash equivalents and deposits
amounting to approximately RMB660,934,000 (2010: RMB753,543,000). The
current ratio was 1.9 (2010: 2.3) and the gearing ratio (defined as the ratio of
bank borrowings to shareholder equity) was 37.6% (2010: 12.3%).

As at 31 December 2011, the Group had short-term bank loans of
RMB20,000,000 (2010: nil). As at 31 December 2011, the Group had three-
year bank loans amounting to RMB597,500,000 (2010: RMB190,000,000).

As at 31 December 2011, the Group was not subject to any material exchange
rate exposure, and had not entered into any foreign exchange futures contract
to hedge against exchange rate fluctuations.

As at 31 December 2011, the Group did not have any material contingent
liabilities (2010: nil).

V. Future Prospects

Although the Group’s profit decreased substantially in 2011, its business
remained robust. The demand of Chinese enterprises for management and IT
solutions services will revive after the impact of the adverse macroeconomic
situation, and in turn allow for the respective markets to return to rapid growth.
Based on the experience gained over the past year, the Group will optimize
its “Transformation, Focus, High Value” strategy. Furthermore, the Group will
consolidate its “ERP + Consulting” businesses by focusing on core products,
improve competitiveness and profitability of such products; enhance the
distribution business by focusing on delivering services that raise profitability;
step up distribution efforts and raise the proportion of revenue from indirect
sales; promote customer retention and loyalty and raise the proportion of
income from maintenance services; and optimize the business structure to
improve and sustain profitability. At the same time, the Group will leverage the
technology revolution that cloud-computing, mobile internet and commercial
social networking represent; explore and strengthen new businesses such
as “Terminal product + Cloud services” and commercial social networking
services; and become the leading provider of cloud-management services. The
Group will continue to dedicate efforts toward nurturing its staff, generating
internal synergies and collaborating closely with business partners that result
in the advancement of customers’ business and delivery of fair returns to
shareholders.
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Directors and Senior Management
EEREREERE

DIRECTORS

Executive Directors

XU Shao Chun (#&4#), aged 49, founder of the Group and Chairman of the
Board. Mr. XU has been awarded the Government Special Expert Allowance
by the State Council. Mr. XU graduated from Southeast University in computer
science and obtained Master of Accounting from Institute of Ministry of
Finance and Executive Master of Business Administration from China Europe
International Business School. He is a member of 9th central committee of
China National Democratic Construction Association, a member of council of
China Siyuan Poverty Alleviation Foundation, deputy director of China Software
Industry Association and a member of Accounting Information Technology
Committee of Finance Ministry. Mr. XU, with his deep realization of business
strategy and operation management and advance technology sensitivity and
accurate grasp of industry trends of global software industry, has always been
committed to “leading the progress of Chinese management model” and to lead
the company to be a global leading management and IT integrated solutions
and service provider. For his outstanding achievements, he has awarded as
“United Nations World Indigenous Entrepreneurs Award”, “China Software Ten
Outstanding Youths”, “The 10 Outstanding Entrepreneurs Award”, “Outstanding
Leader for China’s Information Industry”, “Thirty Affective Economy Persons
in the Thirty Years of Reform and Opening in Shenzhen” and “Shenzhen
Science and Technology Innovation Mayor’'s Award” etc. Mr. XU had been an
independent non-executive director of Global Education & Technology Group, a
company listed on Nasdaq Stock Exchange in the United States.

CHEN Deng Kun (B% i), aged 35, an Executive Director. Mr. CHEN graduated
from Anhui Institute of Finance and Trade (currently known as Anhui University
of Finance and Economics) and obtained a bachelor degree. He is a member
of China Certified Public Accountant, the authorized enterprise architect of the
Open Group and the fifth NPC member of Nanshan district, Shenzhen. Mr. CHEN
is studying at China Europe International Business School EMBA classes, and
is serving as adjunct professor at Zhongnan University of Economics and Law,
Anhui University of Finance and adjunct social mentors for masters. Mr. CHEN
joined the Company in 2000. He has been in charge of management work of
audit, administration and office support, human resources, quality management,
finance, investment & business development and infrastructure project of the
Company.
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Directors and Senior Management
EEROREEE

FENG Guo Hua (:%El%), aged 43, an Executive Director (resigned as Executive
Director on 2 February 2012). Mr. FENG graduated from University of Science
and Technology of China and obtained a degree in Economy Management and
a degree in Computer Application Software in 1990. Mr. FENG completed the
176th Advanced Management Program in Harvard Business School. Mr. FENG
was the certified business and technical consultant by IBM, SAP etc. Before
joining the Company, Mr. FENG worked as the director of professional service
in Siemens Business Service (China), the senior manager in Arthur Andersen
Consulting Service, the director of consulting service in PricewaterhouseCoopers
Management Consulting, the managing partner of IBM Global Business Services
Greater China Group.

Non-executive Directors

James Ming KING (£88), aged 64, a Non-executive Director of the Company
(resigned as Non-executive Director on 27 March 2012), chairman of the
Nominee Committee of the Board. Mr. KING provided strategic consulting,
training for staff and business partners of the Company and training and
consulting services for strategic clients. Mr. KING obtained Master of Science
degree in institutional engineering in 1973 from Mississippi State University
in the United States. Mr. KING has nearly thirty years extensive experiences of
manufacturing, sales and marketing within and outside the PRC. He had been
the vice-president of sales and marketing for Dell Computer Asia Limited. He
is the first person who led in the Dell model of cutting out the middleman in
China. He had been the first manager in China region of Novell and Anderson
Consulting Company. He has also been senior manager of Hewlett-Packard
Company for more than a decade, mainly in charge of strategy consultation and
informatization work for customers in American and Asia-Pacific region. Mr.
KING has been collected to “A List of Celebrities in Western United States” and “A
List of Celebrities of Computer in USA” for many times.
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Independent non-executive Directors

Gary Clark BIDDLE, aged 60, an Independent Non-executive Director of the
Company. Mr. Biddle is Accounting Chair and PCCW Chair Professor at the
University of Hong Kong. He received his MBA and PhD degrees at University
of Chicago and has served as professor at University of Chicago, University
of Washington and Dean of the Faculty of Business and Economics at the
University of Hong Kong and Associate Dean of the School of Business and
Management of Hong Kong University of Science and Technology, where he was
a member of the Council, Court, Senate and held the title of Synergis-Geoffrey
Yeh Chair Professor. He has served or is serving as visiting professor at leading
business schools globally, including Columbia University Business School (USA),
London Business School (UK), IMD (Switzerland) and CEIBS (China). Mr. Biddle
is a member of the American Accounting Association, American Institute of
Certified Public Accountants, Hong Kong Business and Professionals Federation,
Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants, Hong Kong Institute of
Directors and he is past President and co-founding Council Member of the
Hong Kong Academic Accounting Association. He is a leading expert in financial
accounting, financial markets, valuation, value creation, corporate management
and performance metrics, including EVAR. Mr. Biddle is also an Independent
Non-Executive Director of Shui On Land Limited and a remuneration committee
member of Chinachem Group.

HO Ching-hua (f###), aged 55, an Independent Non-executive Director of
the Company. Mr. HO graduated from National Taiwan University in political
science and obtained Master of Arts from National Chenchi University of Taiwan
and Master of Science from University of Maryland of the United States. Prior
to joining the Company, Mr. HO had worked in Sybase Inc. in USA, Oracle
Corp. East Coast Region, UFIDA Software Co.Ltd. and Siebel Systems Inc. Mr.
HO has abundant experience in sales channel operation and management of
international and domestic well-known information technology enterprises.
Mr. HO is now an independent non-executive director of Jess-Link Products
Corporation Limited, a company listed on Gre Tai Securities Market of Japan
and Taiwan Securities Exchange and an executive director and Chief Operating
Officer of Camelot Information System (China) Corporation Limited, a company
listed on New York Stock Exchange.

WU Cheng (®i&), aged 72, an Independent Non-executive Director of the
Company, a professor of the Department of Automation of Tsinghua University
and an academician of Chinese Academy of Engineering. Mr. WU is also
the Dean of State CIMS Engineering Technical Research Center. Mr. WU
graduated from the Department of Electrical Engineering, Tsinghua University of
undergraduate course in 1962 and graduate course in 1966. He had been doing
post doctorate researches in USA from 1981 to 1983. Mr. WU has participated
in CIMS projects of 863 Program, and has been appointed as the leader of
CIMS expert group and chief scientist in automation field. He has received a lot
of awards for his contributions to the technology development in the PRC.
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YANG Zhou Nan (), aged 74, an Independent Non-executive Director
of the Company (resigned as Independent Non-executive Director on 27 March
2012), a professor of the graduate school of the Institute of Fiscal Science of
the Ministry of Finance, doctoral supervisor and a people’s representative to the
Eighth and Ninth National People’s Congress of the PRC. Ms. YANG graduated
from Nan Kai University with a master degree in mathematics. After graduation,
Ms. YANG worked in Beijing Computing Centre as a researcher. Ms. YANG has
approximately 28 years of research and teaching experience in the areas of
finance, accounting and taxation.

YEUNG Kwok On (E%), aged 51, an Independent Non-executive Director
of the Company. Mr. YEUNG received his bachelor and master degrees in
management from the University of Hong Kong, and Ph.D. degree in Human
Resource Management from the University of Michigan. Mr. YEUNG now is the
Philips Chair Professor of Human Resource Management and Director of Centre
of Organization and People Excellence at China Europe International Business
School. Mr. YEUNG is also the founder of CEQ Learning Association and
Organizational Capability Learning Association. Mr. YEUNG’s research focuses
on building organizational capability for strategic implementation, accelerating
globalization of Chinese firms, growing leadership talent for business growth,
and leading large-scale organizational transformation. Mr. YEUNG is experienced
in enterprises organizational construction, human resources strategy and human
resources training. Mr. YEUNG worked in Acer Inc. as Chief Learning Officer
and Chief Human Resources Officer from early 1999 to June 2002. Mr. YEUNG
was awarded the “2002 China Human Resources Annual Person” by Smart
Fortune Magazine of China and the “2004 China Human Resources Outstanding
Achievement Award” jointly by Asian-Pacific Human Resources Research
Association and Smart Fortune Magazine (China) Co., Ltd. Mr. YEUNG now is an
independent non-executive director of Trina Solar Limited , a company listed on
the New York Stock Exchange and SITC International Holding Company Ltd., a
company listed on the Hong Kong Stock Exchange.

COMPANY SECRETARY

NGAN Lin Chun, Esther (E§i#2), aged 56, Company Secretary. Ms. NGAN is
a Chartered Secretary. She is qualified as a Chartered Secretary in 1982 and
has over 20 years’ experience in the company secretarial field. Ms. Ngan is a
director of WBC Secretaries Limited, which is a secretarial service company and
has served as company secretary of a few listed companies in Hong Kong. Ms.
Ngan is a fellow member of the Hong Kong Institute of Company Secretaries.
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SENIOR MANAGEMENT

XU Shao Chun (#4 %), Chief Executive Officer of the Company — see the
paragraph under “Executive Directors” above.

CHEN Deng Kun (B ), Senior Vice President and Chief Financial Officer of
the Company — see the paragraph under “Executive Directors” above.

FENG Guo Hua (&), President of the Company and Chief Executive Officer
of Kingdee China (resigned on 2 February 2012) — see the paragraph under
“Executive Directors” above.

TIAN Rong Ju (H& %), aged 40, Senior Vice President of Kingdee China and
Chief Technology Officer of Kingdee China. Mr. TIAN is mainly in charge of R&D
of the Company. Mr. TIAN graduated from Chongging Yuzhou University. He has
abundant experience in program, design, research and relevant profession in
Chinese management software. After Mr. TIAN joined the Company in 1999, he
has been in charge of products program, research, development and testing.

LI Guang Xue (ZE3#£), aged 43,Senior Vice President of Kingdee China. From
2008 to 2011, Mr. LI has been in charge of the Company’s business operation
and management in Northern Region of China. Mr. LI obtained a bachelor
degree of Physics from Ocean University of China in 1991. After joining the
Company in 1995, Mr. LI has been engaged in the areas of research and
development, service, sales, human resources and information management.

ZHANG Yong (E5), aged 37, Senior Vice President of Kingdee China. Mr.
ZHANG is in charge of the Company’s business operation and management in
Eastern Region of China. Mr. ZHANG graduated from China Europe International
Business School. After joining the Company in 1995, Mr. ZHANG has been
appointed as the General Manager of Shanghai Branch and Eastern Region
of China and played an important role in the Company’s marketing and sales.
He has extensive experience in marketing, sales and team work management.
Mr. ZHANG is a committee member of the 12th Chinese People’s Political
Consultative Conference of Putou District, Shanghai Municipality.

SUN Yan Fei (FRIE#), aged 38, Senior Vice President of Kingdee China. Mr.
SUN is in charge of the Company’s channel partner and business operation
and management. Mr. SUN graduated from Macao University of Science and
Technology and gained MBA degree of General Business Management. After
joining the Company in 1997, Mr. SUN has been appoint as General Manager of
Nanjing Branch and Southern District of China and played an important role in
the Company’s marketing and sales. Mr. SUN is committed to using information
technology to promote the establishment of modern enterprise management
system. He has a wealth of experience in marketing and management in the
field of Chinese business management software.
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Report of Directors
EFEHE

The directors of the Company (“Directors”) are pleased to present to the
shareholders their report together with the audited financial statements of
Kingdee International Software Group Company Limited (the “Company”) and its
subsidiaries (collectively the “Group”) for the year ended 31 December 2011.

Principal Activities and Geographical Analysis of
Operations

The Company (www.kingdee.com) is listed on the Main Board (Stock Code:
0268) of the Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”).
It is a leader in China’s software industry, a leading provider of enterprise
management software and solution service in the Asia-Pacific region. It is
dedicated to being a world-leading management and IT integration solution
supplier. The Group sees its mission as helping customers to succeed, realizing
staff's dream, leading the progress of Chinese management model, providing
management consulting and digitized services for enterprises and governmental
agencies all around the world.

The total revenue and profit attributable to the equity holders of the Group
for the year ended 31 December 2011 were RMB2,022,498,000 and
RMB144,998,000, respectively. Of such revenue, approximately 53.8% was
derived from the sales of software, approximately 42.3% was derived from
the service income and 3.9% from sales of computer hardware and related
products. For details, please refer to the consolidated income statement set out
on page 52.

During the reporting period, the sales and distribution network of the Group
continued to expand, covering most of the provinces, autonomous regions and
centrally administered municipalities in the PRC. As at 31 December 2011,
the Group had 107 branches in China, Hong Kong, Taiwan and Singapore, and
had approximately 2,900 cooperation partners providing consultation, technical
support, implementation services and distribution of its offering products and
after-sale services to the customers of the Group. The Group’s customers
spread all over the Asia-Pacific region, including mainland China, Hong Kong,
Taiwan, Singapore, Malaysia, Indonesia, Thailand, etc.

Results and Appropriations

The results for the year ended 31 December 2011 are set out in the
consolidated income statement on page 52 and the appropriation is set out in
Note 31 to the financial statements.

Distributable Reserves

As at 31 December 2011, the retained earnings of the Company attributable to
equity holders were RMB703,600,000 (2010: RMB626,720,000).
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Final Dividends

At the Annual General Meeting of the Company to be held on 10 May 2012
(“AGM”), the Board of Directors (the "Board") will not recommend the payment
of dividend for the year ended 31 December 2011 (2010: RMB0.029 (HK$0.034)
per share).

Closure of Register

The register of members of the Company will be closed from Monday, 7 May
2012 to Thursday, 10 May 2012 (both days inclusive), during which time no
transfer of shares will be registered. In order to qualify to be shareholders
of the Company to attend, act and vote at the AGM, all transfer documents
accompanied by the relevant share certificates must be lodged with the
Company’s branch share registration and transfer office in Hong Kong,
Computershare Hong Kong Investor Services Limited at Room 1712-1716,
17th Floor, Hopewell Centre, 183 Queen’s Road East, Hong Kong not later than
4:30 p.m. on Friday, 4 May 2012.

Material Investment and Acquisition

In the year ended 31 December, 2011, the Company’s indirect wholly-owned
subsidiary, Shanghai Kingdee Medical Software Co., Ltd., has completed
the acquisition of Guangzhou Wisetop Computer Co. Ltd. (Wisetop). Through
this acquisition, the Group has realized the complementary advantages and
integration with Wisetop in the solutions, products, technologies, services and
marketing channels etc., further enhanced its comprehensive ability to provide
digitalized solutions and services for the health care sector, and received
great assistance to become a leading supplier with integration solutions to the
digitalization of medical and health care services.

Bank Borrowing

Details of bank borrowing for the year ended 31 December 2011 are set out in
Note 19 to the financial statement.

Reserves

Details of movements in the reserves of the Group for the year ended 31
December 2011 are set out in the consolidated statement of changes in equity
on page 54.

Fixed Assets

Details of movements in the fixed assets of the Group for the year ended 31
December 2011 are set out in Note 7 to the financial statement.
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Interests of the Directors in Contracts

None of the Directors had any direct or indirect material interests in any
contracts of significance to the business of the Group to which the Company or
any of its subsidiaries or fellow subsidiaries was a party at the end of the year or
at any time during the year ended 31 December 2011.

Pre-emptive Rights

There are no provisions regarding pre-emptive rights under the laws of Cayman
Islands or the Articles of Association of the Company, or which would oblige the
Company to issue new shares to its existing shareholders in proportion to their
existing shareholdings.

Share Award Plan

In year 2011, the Company continued to implement the Share Award Plan (the
"Share Award Plan") adopted on 25 March 2009 (the "Adoption Date"). All
eligible persons of the Group are entitled to participate in the Share Award Plan.

Under the Share Award Plan, the Board shall select eligible persons to
participate and determine the number of the award shares (the "Award
Shares"). The Award Shares shall be purchased by an independent trustee.
Costs associated with the creation, management and implementation of the
Share Award Plan shall be paid by the Company. The Share Award Plan is
implemented to recognize and reward the contribution of employees to the
growth and development of the Company.

Share Capital and Options
e Share Capital

Details of the movements in share capital of the Company for the
year ended 31 December 2011 are set out in Note 16 to the financial
statements.

e Purchase, Sale or Redemption of Shares

During the year ended 31 December 2011, the Company has repurchased
an aggregate of 22,356,000 shares and cancelled an aggregate of
22,044,000 shares (including 538,000 shares repurchased in 2010),
720,000 of which were cancelled on 21 January 2011, 5,834,000 of which
were cancelled on 12 April 2011, 15,490,000 of which were cancelled on
22 December 2011 and the remaining 850,000 shares were cancelled on
2 February 2012.

Save as disclosed, neither the Company, nor any of its subsidiaries, has
purchased, sold or redeemed any of the Company’s listed securities during
the year.
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Outstanding Share Option

Outstanding share options under the 2001 Scheme, 2002
Scheme and 2005 Scheme

The Share Option Scheme is to encourage and reward the contribution of
eligible persons to the Company. The eligible persons include employees
(including executive directors), consultants, non-executive directors, suppliers
and customers of the Company.

Pursuant to the share option scheme of the Company adopted on 30 January
2001 (“2001 Scheme”), an aggregate of 6,880,000 share options were
granted, of which 4,010,000 share options were exercised, 2,870,000 were
lapsed and none remained outstanding as at 31 December 2011. As no share
option granted under the 2001 Scheme was outstanding, the number of
share options was not adjusted as a result of the bonus issue of shares of the
Company effective on 9 May 2011 (the "Bonus Issue").

Pursuant to the share option scheme of the Company adopted on 26 April 2002
(“2002 Scheme”) and the adjustment made due to the Bonus Issue in 2011, an
aggregate of 232,620,000 share options were granted, of which 123,516,591
share options were exercised, 104,931,286 lapsed and 4,172,123 remained
outstanding as at 31 December 2011.

Both of the 2001 Scheme and 2002 Scheme were terminated by the Company
on 30 June 2005. In the extraordinary general meeting of the Company
convened on 11 July 2005, the Company adopted a new Share Option Scheme
(“2005 Scheme”). The validity period is ten years. As at 31 December 2011,
the Company has granted 401,532,000 shares options pursuant to the
2005 Scheme and the adjustment made due to the Bonus Issue in 2011, of
which 93,786,291 share options were exercised, 55,610,960 lapsed and
252,134,749 remained outstanding. Under the 2005 Scheme, the Company
may further grant 42,414,284 share options, which is approximately 1.69% of
the issued share capital at 2011 year end.

The maximum number of shares issuable upon exercise of the options
granted under the 2005 Scheme and any other share option scheme(s) of the
Company (including exercised, cancelled and outstanding options) to each
eligible participant in any 12-month period is limited to 1% of the shares of the
Company in issue as at the date of grant. Any further grant of share options
in excess of this 1% limitation shall be subject to the issue of a circular by the
Company (and if required, the holding company) and the shareholders’ approval
of the Company at a general meeting.
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Share options granted to a director, chief executive or substantial shareholder
of the Company, or to any of their respective associates, are subject to
the approval in advance by the independent non-executive directors of the
Company, excluding the independent non-executive director of the Company
and the holding company who is/are the grantee(s) of the options. In addition,
any share option granted to a substantial shareholder or an independent non-
executive director of the Company, or to any of their respective associates,
in excess of 0.1% of the shares of the Company in issue as at the date of
grant and with an aggregate value (based on the closing price of the shares
of the Company as at the date of grant) in excess of HK$5 million, within any
12-month period, is subject to the issue of a circular by the Company and the
shareholders’ approval of the Company in advance at a general meeting.

The granted options can be exercised during the valid period of the respective
Share Option Scheme.

The exercise price of the share options is determined by the Board, but may not
be less than the highest of (i) the closing price of the shares of the Company as
stated in the daily quotation sheet of the Stock Exchange on the date of grant,
which must be a trading day; (i) the average closing price of the shares of the
Company as stated in the Stock Exchange’s daily quotation sheets for the five
trading days immediately preceding the date of grant; and (jii) the nominal value
of the shares of the Company.
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Details of the share options under the 2001 Scheme, 2002 Scheme and

“EEF5E TR _FRER_TTRFHENBRETS

2005 Scheme are set out in Note 18 to the financial statements. Details of the  FEEERARERNL A GBI EIREMT18 - BERIEEWMT -
outstanding share options are included in the table as follows:
Options Options
granted exercised Options Options
Options held during the during the lapsed during held at
Exercise at 1 January reporting reporting the reporting 31 December
Grant Date price HK$® 2011 period® period period 2011
RIB—%
RIS—% BEMA wEHA wEHA +=A
Name or category # &8 fiERE —A—AZ ey f7iEay ¥ =t—HZ
of participants £HZ5 BHAR i v MEEEsA BB ERERE MR E MRRiEs e
Directors EE
Xu Shao Chun BIE 19/11/2008 0.792 6,000,000 - - - 6,000,000
Oriental Gold Oriental Gold ~ 23/04/2010 2.592 2,400,000 - - - 2,400,000
Limited™ Limited"
Chen Deng Kun &% i 1/06/2004 0.552 183,739 - - 183,739 0
04/05/2006 0.548 6,720,000 - - - 6,720,000
08/06/2007 1.507 3,264,000 - - - 3,264,000
01/08/2008 1.458 2,400,000 - - - 2,400,000
23/04/2010 2.592 960,000 - - - 960,000
16/03/2011 4.275 0 960,000 - - 960,000
Ho Ching-hua &S 23/01/2007 0.779 2,640,000 - - - 2,640,000
James Ming King 487 08/06/2007 1.507 120,000 - - 120,000
Gary Clark Biddle  Gary Clark 08/06/2007 1.507 480,000 - - - 480,000
Biddle
Yeung Kwok On  15B1% 08/06/2007 1.507 480,000 - 480,000 - 0
Yang Zhou Nan 1BAR 08/06/2007 1.507 240,000 - 120,000 - 120,000
Wu Cheng RE 08/06/2007 1.507 480,000 - - - 480,000
Feng Guo Hua B 16/3/2011 4.275 0 12,000,000 - — 12,000,000
Other employees in EHftha%; 583,280,261 26,040,000 26,575,796 11,906,633 217,762,872
aggregate
Total A&t 609,648,000 39,000,000 27,175,796 12,090,372 256,306,872
Note: Bz

(1)  Oriental Gold Limited is wholly owned by Mr. Xu Shao Chun.

(2) During the reporting period, the Company granted 20,000,000 share options on 16
March 2011 with exercise price of HK$5.13 (due to the Bonus Issue effective from 9 May
2011, the exercise price was adjusted to HK$4.275 and the number of share options to
24,000,000), and 15,000,000 share options on 19 August 2011 with exercise price of
HK$3.75. Closing price of the Shares immediately before the two dates of grant of options
was HK$5.13 and HK$3.23, respectively.
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Directors

The compositions of the Board for the financial year ended 31 December 2011
were as follows:

Executive Directors

Mr. Xu Shao Chun (Chairman)
Mr. Chen Deng Kun
Mr Feng Guo Hua (resigned as Executive Director on 2 February 2012)

Non-executive Directors

Mr. James Ming King (resigned as Non-executive Director on 27 March 2012)

Independent Non-executive Directors

Mr. Gary Clark Biddle

Mr. Ho Ching-hua

Mr. Wu Cheng

Ms. Yang Zhou Nan (resigned as Independent Non-executive Director
on 27 March 2012)

Mr. Yeung Kwok On

In accordance with Article 116 of the Company’s Articles of Association, Mr. Ho
Ching-hua and Mr. Yeung Kwok On as independent non-executive Directors,
would retire by rotation at the AGM, and would offer themselves for re-election as
directors of the Company at the AGM.

As at 31 December 2011, no Director had a service contract with the Company
which was not terminable by the Company within one year without payment of
compensation other than statutory compensation.

The Company has received a written confirmation from each independent non-
executive Director of his independence pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Rules
Governing the Listing of Securities on the Stock Exchange (“Listing Rules”).
The Company considers all the independent non-executive Directors are
independent.

Change of Directors

Pursuant to Rule 13.51B(1) of the Listing Rules, changes in the information of
the directors of the Company required to be disclosed in this report after the issue
of the 2011 Interim Report are as follows:

Mr. Feng Guo Hua resigned as an executive Director and President of the
Company and Chief Executive Officer of Kingdee Software (China) Co., Ltd., a
wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company (the "Subsidiary") due to his family
and personal reasons on 2 February 2012.
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Mr. Xu Shao Chun has been appointed as President of the Company and CEO of
the Subsidiary in place of Mr. Feng with effect from 2 February 2012.

Mr. James Ming King resigned as a non-executive Director of the Company due
to age concern on 27 March 2012.

Ms. Yang Zhou Nan resigned as an independent non-executive Director of the
Company due to age concern on 27 March 2012.

Save as disclosed above, there are no other matters that need to be disclosed
pursuant to Rule 13.51B(1) of the Listing Rules.

Directors’ and Chief Executive’s Interests or Short
Positions in the Shares, Underlying Shares or
Debentures

As at 31 December 2011, the interests and short positions of the Directors and
management of the Company in the shares, underlying shares and debentures
of the Company and its associated corporations (within the meaning of Part XV
of the Securities and Futures Ordinance (“SFQ”)), which will be required to be
notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8
of Part XV of the SFO or which will be required, pursuant to Section 352 of the
SFO to be entered in the register referred to therein, or which will be required
to be notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the “Model
Code for Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers” (“Model Code”) as
set out in Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules, were as follows:

Long positions in shares/underlying shares of the Company
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’EF/ E5H LI (TE 55 ) )%XV%BWE%@%H%$’&H&§E
RANALDE R E DR (RBEHEDIEXVENTEE) 2B - 1
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SHBRETANRETR ) EMEARE LB ARSI T

FATIRG,HRRRZES

Number of shares/ Percentage of
underlying shares issued share
(where appropriate) Types of interests capital
RIFBE TRERE TR 16
Name of Directors EFHH (IiERA) #aKE BAL
Xu Shao Chun e 764,358,624 Interests of controlled corporation (Note 1)
PR R B g (FfaE)
4,983,200  Beneficial owner
EalEA
6,000,000 Other/Share option (Note 2)
Hfth,/BRtn AR (Fi3E2)
Oriental Gold Limited Oriental Gold Limited 2,400,000  Other/Share option (Note 2)
Hfth,/ Btn AR (Pt3E2)
Aggregate: A&t 777,741,824 30.94%
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Number of shares/ Percentage of
underlying shares issued share
(where appropriate) Types of interests capital
RIFEE MRS TG {EERFHEH
Name of Directors EXEHH (IiER) #aKy Bkt
Feng Guo Hua RSB 1,050,000  Beneficial owner
ERBEA
12,000,000  Other/Share option (Note 2)
Htt,/BRA1DFRARHE (FT7E2)
Aggregate: A% 13,050,000 0.52%
Chen Deng Kun PR e 106,000  Beneficial Owner
EEEAA
14,304,000  Other/Share option (Note 2)
Hit,/ Bt BEARAE (F+E2)
Aggregate: A&t 14,410,000 0.57%
Ho Ching-hua BfES 240,000  Beneficial owner
ERBEBA
2,640,000  Other/Share option (Note 2)
Hft,/Btn AR (FiiE2)
Aggregate: At 2,880,000 0.11%
James Ming King ks 120,000  Other/Share option (Note 2)
Hfth,/Btn AR (FiH3E2)
Aggregate: At 120,000 0.005%
Gary Clark Biddle Gary Clark Biddle 480,000  Other/Share option (Note 2)
Hfto,/Btn AR (FiH3E2)
Aggregate: Ait: 480,000 0.02%
Yeung Kwok On BE%Z 2,130,000  Beneficial owner
EREBA
Aggregate: G 2,130,000 0.08%
Yang Zhou Nan I 120,000  Other/Share option (Note 2)
Hfto,/Btn AR (Pit3E2)
Aggregate: CHl 120,000 0.005%
Wu Cheng RE 480,000  Other/Share option (Note 2)
Hfto,/BAn AR (Pit3E2)
Aggregate: A&t 480,000 0.02%
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Notes:

1. Of the 764,358,624 shares, 408,472,000 shares were held through Oriental Gold Limited
and 355, 886,624 shares were held through Billion Ocean Limited. Oriental Gold Limited
and Billion Ocean Limited are controlled by Mr. Xu Shao Chun. Therefore, Mr. Xu Shao
Chun is deemed to be with interests in those 764,358,624 shares.

2. Details of the share options are set out in the section headed “Outstanding Share Option”.

Save as disclosed in this paragraph, as at 31 December 2011, none of the
Directors and chief executive of the Company had any interests and short
positions in the shares, underlying shares and debentures of the Company and
its associated corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the SFO), which
will be required to be notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant
to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO or which will be required, pursuant to
Section 352 of the SFO to be entered in the register referred to therein, or which
will be required to be notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant
to the Model Code.

Directors’ Rights to Acquire Shares or Debentures

Save as disclosed in the section headed “Share Capital and Options” above,
none of the Directors or their respective associates (as defined under the Listing
Rules) was granted by the Company, or any of its subsidiaries to any rights or
options to acquire shares or debentures in the Company during the year ended
31 December 2011.
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Substantial Shareholders’ and Other Persons’
Interests and Short Positions in the Shares,
Underlying Shares and Debentures

As at 31 December 2011, as far as the Directors were aware, the following
persons (other than the Directors and chief executive of the Company) had
interests and short positions in the shares and underlying shares of the
Company which would fall to be disclosed to the Company under the provisions
of Part XV of the SFO and required to be recorded in the register required to be
kept under Section 336 of the SFO:

FERRREEALIRBRFESREAGHERR
RE

BEZMA  REEFROEXVENORERBRERREE S
FIRHREFEZBLMALE  BE-T——FT-A=1—
Hib U TFAL(BEREBTHABRINRAEAR R KR
DREEEEIAR

Long positions in shares/underlying shares of the Company FARRG HRRGRZES
Number of Shares/ Percentage of
underlying shares issued share
(where appropriate) Capacity capital
BIPE R TERET {HESEH
Name BRER BiF(IMEA) RaKHE Bl
Oriental Gold Limited Oriental Gold Limited 408,472,000  Beneficial owner
BE=EAA
2,400,000  Other/share Option (Note 1)
Hib, /Bt B R (k1)
Subtotal: Bt 410,872,000 16.34%
Billion Ocean Limited Billion Ocean Limited 355,886,624  Beneficial owner 14.16%
EHEAA
Matthews Matthews 147,034,800  Investment manager 5.85%
International Capital  International Capital REEEA
Management, LLC Management, LLC
FMR LLC FMR LLC 125,748,313  Investment manager 5.00%
REEEA
Capital Research Capital Research 124,674,400  Investment manager 4.96%
and Management and Management REEEA
Company Company
Notes: BisE

1. Details of the share options are set out in the section headed “Outstanding Share Option”.

2. Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2011, the Directors were not aware of any
other person (excluding the Directors and chief executive officers of the Company) who
had an interest and short position in the shares and underlying shares of the Company as
recorded in the register required to be kept under Section 336 of the SFO.
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Public Float

Based on the information that is publicly available to the Company and within
the knowledge of the Directors, as the Company has maintained the prescribed
public float under the Listing Rules at the date of this report.

Competing Interest

None of the Directors or their respective associates (as defined in the Listing
Rules) had an interest in a business, which competes or may compete with the
business of the Group.

Connected Transactions

During the year ended 31 December 2011, there was no transaction which
needs to be disclosed as connected transactions in accordance with the
requirements of the Listing Rules.

Major Customers and Suppliers

The percentages of sales and purchases for the year attributable to the Group’s
major customers and supplies are as follows:

Sales

— the largest customer 0.29%
— five largest customers combined 1.4%
Purchases

— the largest supplier 8.09%
— five largest suppliers combined 24.62%

None of the Directors, their associates or any shareholder (which to the
knowledge of the directors owns more than 5% of the Company’s share capital)
had an interest in the major customers or suppliers noted above.
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Corporate Governance Practices

The Group consistently promotes good corporate governance, pursuing the
five principles of ensuring the rights and interests of shareholders, abiding by
the directives of the Board and management, promoting full disclosure and
transparency, supporting the equal treatment of stakeholders, and strengthening
internal controls and supervision. The Company always endeavors to enhance
its enterprise value, ensure the Company’s long-term and stable development
and benefit its shareholders. The following summarizes the Company’s detailed
corporate governance practices.

The Company has complied with all the code provisions of “Code on Corporate
Governance Practices” (the “Code”), as set out in Appendix 14 of the Listing
Rules throughout the financial year ended 31 December 2011 except for code
provision A 2.1. Please refer to the section of “the Chairman and Chief Executive
Officer" below for details.

Board of Directors
I. The Responsibilities of the Board

The Board is the core of corporate governance. Its major responsibilities are as
follows:

(1) To convene General Meetings, report to shareholders and implement the
resolutions of General Meetings;

(2) To review and approve the mid and long-term strategic plans and
management strategies of the Group;

(3) To review and approve critical investment and acquisition projects, the
issuance and repurchase of securities, and other plans for financings,

amalgamation, compensation, hiring and dismissals;

(4) To review and approve the Group’s budget plans, profit distribution plans
and loss remedy plans of the Group;

(5) To draft amendments to the Articles of Association, registered capital
changes;

(6) To approve directors’ remuneration plans authorized by shareholders;

(7) To listen to the working report of the CEO and to review the work of the
CEO; and

(8) To review and approve the Share Award Plan and the Share Option
Scheme.
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The Board shall empower the senior management team to implement the
decisions of the Board and all senior management team members shall be
appointed by the Board. In entrusting management and administrative functions
to the management team, the Board provides clear instructions regarding the
powers delegated to management, and requires the prior approvals of the Board
before making key decisions and commitments on behalf of the Company.
The management and the Company Secretary will conduct such briefing as is
necessary to update the Board on legal and regulatory developments, business
and market changes and the strategic development of the Group to facilitate
the performance of their duties. The Board has maintained effective supervision
over the Group's strategic plans and key policies, management and assessment
of risks, and effective controls over business operations. The members of the
Board and senior management have been fully committed to their roles, and
have adjusted the Group’s developing strategies in accordance with the changes
of economy and market, and have acted in good faith with a view to furthering
the shareholders’ long-term interests.

Il. Composition of the Board

For the year ended 31 December 2011, the Board consisted of nine members,
with three executive Directors, one non-executive Director and five independent
non-executive Directors. The number of independent non-executive Directors
exceeds 1/3 of the Board. The Directors of the Company have professional
background in finance, technology and management. They have extensive
experience and independent views in their respective areas of expertise so
that they can provide professional advice for the long-term development of the
Company. Names and biography of the Directors are set out in the "Directors
and Senior Management" section on Page 20 — 23 of this Annual Report

The term of service of the Directors is two years. According to the Articles of
Association, each director shall retire by rotation at least once every three years
and all the retiring directors can be re-elected on the AGM in that year. At the
Forthcoming AGM, two directors of the Company, Mr. Ho Ching-hua and Mr.
Yeung Kwok On will be retired by rotation and proposed for re-election.
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Ill. Board Meeting

For the year ended 31 December 2011, the Company had convened five
Board meetings. The following table shows the details of individual Director’s
attendance of the Board meetings and its committee meetings for the year
ended 31 December 2011:
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Attended/Eligible to attend Board Committees
HEGERY SARHESRENEEEZRE

Audit Remuneration Strategy

Board Committee Committee Committee
Directors during the year Ended B§FE-_=—&+ZA=1+—H%
31 December 2011 REREE EXg ERZAY FHZER® BERZAE
Executive Directors BiTES
Mr. Xu Shao Chun ROREE 5/5 RiEa N/A A N/A 2/2
Mr. Chen Deng Kun BREH A 5/5 A N/A 2/2 2/2
Mr. Feng Guo Hua HEELE 3/4 @A N/A TEA N/A TiEA N/A
Non-executive Directors EHITEE
Mr. James Ming King SHLE 4/5 AEA N/A NEF N/A 2/2
Independent Non-executive Directors HIEHITES
Mr. Gary Clark Biddle Gary Clark BiddleZt 4 5/5 3/3 TER NA TER N/A
Mr. Ho Ching-hua EcES e 4/5 TEA N/A TEA NA 2/2
Mr. Wu Cheng RERE 5/5 2/3 T N/A TNEA N/A
Ms. Yang Zhou Nan BEEZL 5/5 3/3 2/2 TEm N/A
Mr. Yeung Kwok on BEZRE 4/5 TiEm N/A 2/2 g N/A

Directors were consulted in advance regarding the agenda items and the
Company provided advance notices of meetings in accordance with the
Company’s Articles of Association and the Listing Rules. The agenda and the
other relevant documents were sent to the Directors at least three days before
each meeting. Each Director is aware of their need to allocate adequate time to
deal with the Company's affairs.

During the meetings of the Board, Directors dealt with the following items of the
Company: reviewing the Company’s 2010 annual report and the 2011 interim
report, approving the grant of share options and the repurchase of shares
and discussing acquisition projects. The secretary of the Board has recorded
the proceedings of each Board meeting in detail by keeping detailed minutes,
including all decisions of the Board together with concerns raised and dissenting
views expressed (if any). All minutes are kept by the secretariat of the Board
and any relevant files including the agenda, documents and minutes are open
for any Director’s inspection.
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IV. Measures to ensure the fulfillment of the responsibilities of
Directors

(1) The Company has organized regular training for Directors to assist them
to understand the Listing Rules and other related laws and regulations in
relation to the duties of directors through real case study; and to ensure
the Directors are timely and completely informed of the operations of the
Company.

(2) When Directors are asked to express their views to the Company regarding
related transactions, award programs, internal controls, etc., the Company
retains auditors, financial advisers and lawyers and other relevant
independent professionals to provide independent professional advice to
assist Directors in fulfilling their responsibilities.

(3) With regard to possible legal actions against the Directors when they
perform their Directors' duties, the Board entered into a “Liability Insurance
Contract of Directors, Supervisors and Officers" for a period of one year
with Huatai Insurance on 22 May 2011.

Board Committees

The Board has set up four specialized committees, namely the Audit Committee,
the Remuneration Committee, the Nomination Committee and the Strategy
Committee to oversee particular aspects of the Company’s affairs. The terms of
reference of these committees are set out in the Board Rules. These committees
mainly consist of the independent non-executive Directors and non-executive
Directors. The meeting procedures follow the statutory procedures for these
Board meetings.

Audit Committee

The Audit Committee of the Company (“Audit Committee”) comprises three
independent non-executive Directors. The members of the Audit Committee are
Ms. Yang Zhou Nan, Mr. Wu Cheng, and Mr. Gary Clark Biddle. Ms. Yang Zhou
Nan is the chairman of the Audit Committee.
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In particular, the Board Rules set out the official terms of reference for the
Audit Committee, which include making recommendations to the Board on the
appointment, reappointment and removal of the external auditor, and approving
the remuneration and terms of engagement of the external auditors, and
resignation or dismissal of the auditors, reviewing and monitoring the external
auditor’s independence, the objectivity and the effectiveness of the audit
process in accordance with applicable standard, reviewing financial information
of the Company, reviewing the financial reporting system and internal control
procedures, checking the Company's financial statements and the procedures
by which the auditors audited independently, and supervising the Company's
accounting policies, financial reporting system and internal control procedures.

During the financial year ended 31 December 2011, the Audit Committee held
three meetings, at which:

(1) The Audit Committee reviewed the Company’s annual financial report and
internal control report for the year 2010, and submitted them to the Board
for approval.

(2) The Audit Committee reviewed the Company’s interim financial report of
2011 and internal control report, and submitted them to the Board for
approval.

(3) The Audit Committee communicated with the auditor regarding the 2011
annual audit work and audit plans.

Remuneration Committee

The Remuneration Committee of the Company (“Remuneration Committee”)
comprises two independent non-executive Directors and one executive Director.
Members of the Remuneration Committee are Mr. Yeung Kwok On, Ms. Yang
Zhou Nan and Mr. Chen Deng Kun. Mr. Yeung Kwok On is the chairman of the
Committee.

The responsibilities of the Remuneration Committee set out in the Board Rules
are as follows:

(1) Make recommendations to the Board on the Company’s policy and structure
of remuneration, long-term incentive and performance management of the
directors and senior management, and on the establishment of a formal
and transparent procedure for developing such policy and structure, and
on the principles and criteria of remuneration, and on long-term incentive
modes;

(2) As authorized by the Board, draw up proposals for and make
recommendations to the Board on the remuneration of directors, and salary
of individual executive directors and senior management;
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(3) Review and assess the annual performance of directors and senior
management, and review and approve their remuneration, by reference to
the corporate goals and objectives set up by the Board;

(4) Draw up and review proposals for remuneration and make
recommendations to the Board on the adjustment of such remuneration
from time to time, by reference to the Company’s development strategies
and goals approved by the Board and the operating strategies as adjusted
by the Board from time to time;

(5) Consider salaries paid by comparable companies, time commitment and
responsibilities and employment conditions elsewhere in the group;

(6) Review and approve compensation arrangements (if any) relating to any
loss or termination of their office or appointment, or dismissal or removal for
misconduct to executive directors and senior management to ensure that
they are consistent with contractual terms and are otherwise reasonable
and appropriate; and

(7) Ensure that no director of the Company or any of his associates is involved
in deciding his own remuneration, and that the remuneration of a non-
executive director who is a member of the Committee shall be determined
by the other members of the Committee.

During the financial year ended 31 December 2011, the Committee held two
meetings to review the remuneration of the senior management for 2011, the
Company’s Share Award Plan and the Share Repurchase Scheme for 2011.
Details have been set out in the sections entitled “Share Award Plan” and “Share
Capital and Options” of page 27 of the “Report of Directors” in this Annual
Report.

Nomination Committee

The Nomination Committee of the Company (“Nomination Committee”) is
comprised of one non-executive Director and two independent non-executive
Directors. The members of the Nomination Committee are Mr. James Ming
King, Mr. Wu Cheng and Mr. Yeung Kwok On. Mr. James Ming King is the
chairman of the Committee.

The responsibilities of Nomination Committee set out in the Board Rules are as
follows:

(1) To review the structure, size and composition of the Board on a regular
basis annually;
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(2) To identify individuals suitably qualified to become directors of the Board,
and to select or make recommendations to the Board on the selection of
individuals nominated for directorships;

(3) To make recommendations on any proposed changes to the Board to
implement the Company’s corporate strategy;

(4) To assess the independence of the independent non-executive directors;
and

(5) To make recommendations to the Board on the appointment or
reappointment of directors and succession planning for directors.

During the financial year ended 31 December 2011, the Nomination Committee
did not convene any meeting. The Group will review the organization of the
Board and consider nominees as and when necessary.

Strategy Committee

The Strategy Committee of the Company (“Strategy Committee”) comprises two
executive Directors and one non-executive Director and one independent non-
executive Director. The members of the Strategy Committee are Mr. Xu Shao
Chun, Mr. Chen Deng Kun, Mr. James Ming King and Mr. Ho Ching-hua. Mr. Xu
Shao Chun is the chairman of the Strategy Committee.

The responsibilities of Strategy Committee set out in the Board Rules are as
follows:

(1) To consider and draw out mid-term and long-term strategies of the
Company;

(2) To assess the effects of the implementation of strategies; and
(3) To make recommendations on critical issues prescribed in the Articles

of Association and other issues requiring permissions from the Board,
including those related to investments, financings, etc.
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Chairman and Chief Executive Officer

During the reporting period, Mr. Xu Shao Chun held the roles of both the
Chairman and CEO of the Company. The Board considers that Mr. Xu Shao
Chun, as one of the main founders of the Company, has abundant knowledge of
the IT industry and unique strategic perspectives. The Board holds that he can
lead the Company to formulate effective strategies and react promptly to market
changes. His continual service in both roles is beneficial to the stable and
healthy development of the Company. However, the Board will review and make
appropriate changes when necessary in order to enhance the level of corporate
governance.

Adoption of Code of Conduct Regarding Director’s
Securities Transactions

The Company has adopted a code of conduct regarding Directors’ securities
transactions on terms no less exacting than the required standard set out in
the “Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers” of
Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules. The Company, having made specific enquiry
of all Directors, confirms that the Directors have complied with this code of
conduct throughout the accounting period covered by this annual report.

The details relating to the securities of the Company held by Directors are
set out in “Directors’ and Chief Executive’s Interests or Short Positions in the
Shares, Underlying Shares or Debentures” of the “Report of Directors” on page
32 of this annual report.

Internal Control

In 2011, to address the problems identified in the internal control checks
and actual practice of last year, the Company has improved and amended
the relevant internal control rules, and paid more attention to the feasibility
and enforcement, and placed more emphasis on the guidelines of business
and operation of the branches, which have ensured the normal operation of
the Company and authenticity, accuracy and completeness of information
disclosure. They have effectively controlled financial and operation risks, and
played a key role in asset security, improvement of standardized operation and
scientific decision-making.

Besides, with the development of the Internet, IT information security has
increasingly become the focus of internal control. The Company attaches great
importance to information security. In 2011, the Company continued to hire an
external consulting firm to conduct a comprehensive diagnosis of the internal
information security. Through the ISO 27001 Information Security Management
System, the Company has perfected its [T governance structure and improved
its ability to information security risk control.
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In accordance with the Listing Rules, and applying prudent principles regarding
the flow and management of price-sensitive information, the Company has
abided by the "Guide on Disclosure of Price-Sensitive Information" of the Stock
Exchange, and has implemented a system of internal processing and internal
control measures to ensure the timely, accurate and appropriate disclosure of
relevant information to shareholders and regulatory agencies.

Investor Relations

The Company pays close attention to maintaining good relations with investors.
The Company has set up a specialized department with staff to deal with
investor relations affairs. The Company actively participated in various investor
forums in personal or via conference calls and provided investors with the
information necessary to form their own judgments and provide feedback to
management in a timely manner in order to improve operations and corporate
governance of the Company. To promote transparency, the Company has
reported measures of operational status to shareholders and other persons of
interest. These disclosures include: (1) publishing interim and annual reports;
(2) publishing newsletters; (3) sending out business development reports
quarterly to shareholders; (4) meeting regularly with investors; (5) disclosing the
Company’s analyst research reports; and (6) conducting market consultations.

The Company believes that increased transparency in the capital market will
improve corporate governance and be beneficial to the long-term development
of the Company. The Company welcomes investors and shareholders to share
opinions and suggestions for the development of the Company to the Company’s
investor relation team via email or telephone.

Shareholders' Rights

The shareholders' rights are set out in the Company’s Articles of Association.
Pursuant to Article 72, two or more shareholders holding at the date of deposit
of the requisition not less than one-tenth of the paid up capital of the Company
carrying the right of voting at General Meetings of the Company shall at all times
have the right, by written requisition to require an extraordinary general meeting
to be called.

The AGM for the year ended 31 December 2010 was held on 20 April 2011. All
shareholders were given at least 21 days’ notice for this AGM.

Pursuant to the Listing Rules, all resolutions of the General Meetings would be
voted by poll under the principle that one vote is attached to one share, and
the voting results would be published on the websites of the Hong Kong Stock
Exchange website (www.hkexnews.hk).
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External Auditors

PricewaterhouseCoopers was appointed as the external auditors of the
Company for the year of 2011. During the year ended 31 December 2011, the
Company has paid RMB1,600,000 as the audit fee and RMB80,000 as other
service fees to PricewaterhouseCoopers. A resolution for re-appointment of
PricewaterhouseCoopers as the auditors of the Company will be proposed at the
AGM.

Improving Corporate Governance

The Company will continue to regularly assess its corporate governance
measures and practices to ensure that they are on par with the development of
international governance structures and standards and in light of the changing
regulatory requirements and investors’ needs. This will also help in the long
term to continuously develop the Company, and enhance its corporate value.

Appreciation

The Board would like to express its sincere appreciation to its shareholders,
customers, suppliers and bankers for their continued support to the Group. The
Board also wishes to thank the Group’s management and staff for achieving
remarkable progress in the Group’s business and their dedication and
commitment to improving the Group’s management.

On behalf of the Board

KINGDEE INTERNATIONAL SOFTWARE GROUP COMPANY LIMITED
Xu Shao Chun

Chairman

Shenzhen, the People’s Republic of China, 27 March 2012
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Independent Auditor’s Report
BIAZBEERE

pwec

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF

KINGDEE INTERNATIONAL SOFTWARE GROUP COMPANY LIMITED
(Incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Kingdee International
Software Group Company Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries (together,
the “Group”) set out on pages 49 to 136, which comprise the consolidated
and Company balance sheets as at 31 December 2011, and the consolidated
income statement, the consolidated statement of comprehensive income, the
consolidated statement of changes in equity and the consolidated cash flow
statement for the year then ended, and a summary of significant accounting
policies and other explanatory information.

Directors’ Responsibility for the Consolidated
Financial Statements

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation of consolidated
financial statements that give a true and fair view in accordance with
International Financial Reporting Standards and the disclosure requirements
of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for such internal control as the
directors determine is necessary to enable the preparation of consolidated
financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to
fraud or error.

Auditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated financial
statements based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with
International Standards on Auditing. Those standards require that we comply
with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable
assurance about whether the consolidated financial statements are free from
material misstatement.
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An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about
the amounts and disclosures in the consolidated financial statements. The
procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, including the assessment
of the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial statements,
whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor
considers internal control relevant to the entity’s preparation of consolidated
financial statements that give a true and fair view in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose
of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal control. An
audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used
and the reasonableness of accounting estimates made by the directors, as well
as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

Opinion

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and fair view of
the state of affairs of the Company and of the Group as at 31 December 2011,
and of the Group’s profit and cash flows for the year then ended in accordance
with International Financial Reporting Standards and have been properly
prepared in accordance with the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance.

Other matters

This report, including the opinion, has been prepared for and only for you, as
a body, and for no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards or
accept liability to any other person for the contents of this report.

PricewaterhouseGoopers
Certified Public Accountants

Hong Kong, 27 March 2012
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Consolidated Balance Sheet

EHEERRE

As at 31 December

B+=-R=+—H
Note 2011 2010
MiEE RMB’000 RMB’000

AR®TR AREFL
ASSETS gE&
Non-current assets FERBEE
Land use rights + b FE R 6 83,683 79,449
Property, plant and equipment ME - BENERE 7 518,110 350,632
Intangible assets mIEE 8 585,175 377,236
Investment properties HEYE 9 496,925 289,162
Available-for-sale financial assets AHtHESHEE 10 - 10,000
Other non-current assets Bt gpnsaE 11 - 3,520

1,683,893 1,109,999
Current assets mEEE
Inventories 7&8 12 4,036 1,987
Trade and other receivables FEUER 70 2 E b FELR R 11 378,960 272,895
Available-for-sale financial assets AHHESREE 10 11,013 -
Due from customers on implementation contracts ~ JEWNEEEiEA R 13 292,467 119,834
Pledged bank deposits BEHRITER 14 11,032 5,070
Short-term bank deposits MHRTTER 14 16,490 117,017
Cash and cash equivalents B NREEEY 14 633,412 631,456

1,347,410 1,148,259
Total assets BEE 3,031,303 2,258,258
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Consolidated Balance Sheet
EHEEEER

As at 31 December

®+=RA=+—-H
Note 2011 2010
FiEE RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®TTT AREFL
EQUITY #a
Capital and reserves attributable to EAFRESEEA
equity holders of the Company BEEFR R
Share capital e 16 63,941 54,653
Share premium RAH B 16 405,730 425,358
Other reserves HinfE 17 436,023 427,323
Retained earnings {RE &7
— Proposed final dividend —BRREBRE 31 - 60,320
— Others —Hfh 703,600 566,400
1,609,294 1,534,054
Non-controlling interest PHBRRER 32,740 14,271
Total equity HiEga 1,642,034 1,548,325
LIABILITIES =15
Non-current liabilities FnBARE
Borrowings B@ 19 597,500 190,000
Deferred income tax liabilities REMEHAR 20 46,967 28,837
Long term payables REIEMR 37,548 -
682,015 218,837
Current liabilities bid =K
Trade and other payables TEART BRI N L A FE (T 3R 21 465,597 315,238
Due to customers on implementation contracts BREFPEBRAERR 13 64,514 60,359
Borrowings EX 19 20,000 -
Current income tax liabilities BHMEHAGE 7,798 -
Deferred income EEWA 22 149,345 115,499
707,254 491,096
Total liabilities BAE 1,389,269 709,933
Total equity and liabilities BREARARE 3,031,303 2,258,258
Net current assets REHEESE 640,156 657,163
Total assets less current liabilities WEERNDAR 2,324,049 1,767,162
The notes on pages 57 to 136 are an integral part of these consolidated ~ 57 EZ 136 EHFE AABIRKNBERS -
financial statements.
The financial statements on pages 49 to 136 were approved by the board of ~ $49E 136 EHHBRREHEFEN _T—_F=A_++H

directors on 27 March 2012 and were signed on its behalf.

Xu, Shao Chun
BOF
Director

EF
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Balance Sheet
BERARE

As at 31 December

B+=R=+—H
Note 2011 2010
BtEE RMB’000 RMB’000
AER®TR ARBTT
ASSETS gE&
Non-current assets FRDEE
Investments in subsidiaries RIB A RARE 15 374,173 349,506
374,173 349,506
Current assets ROEE
Trade and other receivables TEUER T o E b JELR R 11 156,869 105,484
Short-term bank deposits RERITIE 14 - 60,527
Cash and cash equivalents B NREEEY 14 35,133 36,520
192,002 202,531
Total assets BEE 566,175 552,037
EQUITY E#a
Capital and reserves attributable to EAFIREFEA
equity holders of the Company BEEFR R
Share capital AR 16 63,941 54,653
Share premium WA (E 16 405,730 425,358
Other reserves HitnfE e 17 601 116
Retained earnings REBBF
— Proposed final dividend — R AR S 31 - 60,320
— Others —Hit 95,167 11,575
Total equity wiga 565,439 552,022
LIABILITIES aff
Current liabilities mEAE
Trade and other payables TER BRI M B FE (T 3R 21 736 15
Total equity and liabilities HERRAR 566,175 552,037
Net current assets mBEERE 191,266 202,516
Total assets less current liabilities BEERTHAR 565,439 552,022

The notes on pages 57 to 136 are an integral part of these consolidated

financial statements.

The financial statements on pages 49 to 136 were approved by the board of

directors on 27 March 2012 and were signed on its behalf.

Xu, Shao Chun

BOE
D/[ector

FOTAE136ANMEAMBRENER Y -

Chen, Deng Kun
PRE

Director
EF
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Consolidated Income Statement

aHRRR

Year ended 31 December
B8E+-_A=1+—HLEE

Note 2011 2010
FiEE RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®TR AREFT
Revenue BET 23 2,022,498 1,436,621
Cost of sales SHEMAR 24 (604,656) (337,793)
Gross profit EX )| 1,417,842 1,098,828
Selling and marketing expenses THE R A 24 (1,229,721) (785,715)
Administrative expenses THREHR 24 (254,485) (162,161)
Research and development costs N PN 24 (168,724) (121,325)
Fair value gains of investment properties REMER A EEEDNE 9 135,658 29,172
Other gains, net Hip A —FE 25 289,716 241,819
Operating profit EERT 190,286 300,618
Finance income BEWA 27 3,524 3,085
Finance costs BERK K 27 (12,368) (8,682)
Finance costs — net BMEKA—FE (8,844) (5,597)
Profit before income tax HNGFRERIZT 181,442 295,021
Income tax expense ST E A 28 (28,280) (18,755)
Profit for the year EERF 153,162 276,266
Attributable to: (K :
Equity holders of the Company ARRERFEEA 30 144,988 271,710
Non-controlling interest DERR RS 8,174 4,556
153,162 276,266
Earnings per share for profit attributable to FRFAFELRIFEAEERTID
the equity holders of the Company during SR (LISBAERRSH)
the year (expressed in RMB cents per share)
— basic % 30 RMBAE#5.77 | RMBAR#10.93
— diluted —#% 30 RMBAE#5.42 | RMBAR¥10.25
Dividends (b 31 - 60,320

The notes on pages 57 to 136 are an integral part of these consolidated

financial statements.
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Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income

aftEa kR R

Year ended 31 December
BE+-A=t+—HLEE

Note 2011 2010
MiEE RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETT AREFT
Profit for the year FEAF 153,162 276,266
Other comprehensive income: Hibhra Uz
Fair value change of owner-occupied land and T RIEFTREAREEER
buildings before transferred to investment ZEGHE - MRFIE
properties, net of tax 17 - 14,950
Fair value change of available-for-sale financial AtHESHEERANG
assets, net of tax MpRHHIE 17 912 -
912 14,950
Total comprehensive income for the year AEEBERARE 154,074 291,216
Total comprehensive income attributable to: @GS KMBBER :
Equity holders of the Company AAREREEE 145,900 286,660
Non-controlling interest DY R R 8,174 4,556
154,074 291,216
The notes on pages 57 to 136 are an integral part of these consolidated 5578 =136 B HIM i1 AR KRFMEBEELS
financial statements.
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity

SHEREBR

Attributable to equity holders of the Company
ROAEREA AN

Non-
Share Share Other  Retained controlling Total
capital  premium reserves  earnings Total interest equity
DERER
B BARE HiEE REEM CH) s s
Note RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000
i ARBTT ARETT ARBTT ARETT ARETT ARBTT ARETRL
Balance at 1 January 2010 —E-Z5-F—-H#&R 53,812 381,374 388,119 419,040 1,242,345 9,715 1,252,060
Comprehensive income Feka
Profit for the year FEEF - - - 271,710 271,710 4556 276,266
Other comprehensive income Htira s - - 14,950 - 14,950 - 14,950
Total comprehensive income  F&#IkE - - 14950 271,710 286,660 4556 291,216
Transactions with owners HESKEENRS
Employees share option scheme: g 2R IkiE= 2] :
—value of employee services - EERBEMER 16 - 21,830 - - 21,830 - 21,830
— proceeds from shares issued —BIRMAER 16 914 34,794 - - 35,708 - 35,708
Repurchase and cancellation of B384k 4
own shares 73 (12,640) 73 73 (12,713 - (12,713
Appropriation to reserve funds BEGES 17 - - 24,181 (24,181) - - -
Dividend relating to 2009 —ZTNERE 31 - - - (39776)  (39,776) - (39,776)
Total transactions with owners Z2EHEERIFHE
o) 841 43,984 24254 (64,030) 5,049 - 5,049
Balance at 31 December 2010 —ZE—E%F
+ZRA=t+—H#&&# 54,653 425358 427,323 626,720 1,534,054 14,271 1,548,325
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity

AtEEEBR

Attributable to equity holders of the Company

FOTFHEFH AR
Non-
Share Share Other  Retained controlling Total
capital premium reserves earnings Total interest equity
PHER
B RFRE HtiRE 2 GREEAH Akt #a HEa
Note RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000
iz ARETT ARETT ARBTT ARETT ARETT ARBTT ARETRL
Balance at 1 January 2011 —Z——F¥—fF—H#&R 54,653 425,358 427,323 626,720 1,534,054 14,271 1,548,325
Comprehensive income Feaka
Profit for the year FEEF - - - 144988 144,988 8,174 153,162
Other comprehensive income Htira s - - 912 - 912 - 912
Total comprehensive income {4 #KE - - 912 144,988 145,900 8,174 154,074
Transactions with owners HESKEENZS
Employees share option scheme:  [E ST 2 :
—value of employee services - EERBEMER 16 - 24,667 - - 24,667 - 24,667
— proceeds from shares issued —BOIRMAER 16 596 21,7117 - - 22,313 - 22,313
Issue of share Bk 9,177 9,177) - - - - -
Repurchase and cancellation of ~ [EE&F 850k (7
own shares (485)  (56,835) 485 (485)  (57,320) - (57,320)
Appropriation to reserve funds BRGES 17 - - 7,303 (7,303) - - -
Dividend relating to 2010 “Z-ZFRS 3 - - - (60,320)  (60,320) - (60,320)
Non-controlling interests arising on 75 A 4 & £ #)3E 14
business combination # - - - - - 10,295 10,295
Total transactions with owners 2BEESFHEENLSH 9,288 (19,628) 7,788 (68,108)  (70,660) 10,295 (60,365)
Balance at 31 December 2011 —Z&——%
+ZB=+—H#E 63,941 405,730 436,023 703,600 1,609,294 32,740 1,642,034
The notes on pages 57 to 136 are an integral part of these consolidated 5578 Z 136 B MM s A B RENBELS -
financial statements.
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Consolidated Cash Flow Statement

EHARAE

Year ended 31 December
B8E+-_A=1+—HLEE

Note 2011 2010
(o RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®TR AREFT

Cash flows from operating activities EETHNMELTE
Cash generated from operations BEEENRS 32 177,092 302,384
Interest paid BAFLE (23,386) (6,858)
Income tax paid BTATEH (2,453) (1,189
Net cash generated from operating activities LEIHEANTIES 151,253 294,337
Cash flows from investing activities RETDHRERE
Purchase of property, plant and equipment BAVE  HEREE (192,693) (61,848)
Proceeds from sale of property, plant and equipment &% - 2R G EFER 32 3,620 854
Payments for land use rights G L fb A (10,014) -
Purchases of investment property EAREBME (72,105) -
Decrease/(increase) in other non-current assets HipIEmegEm /() 3,520 (3,520)
Additions of intangible assets RSEVEE (264,352) (186,201)
Cash paid for business combination, net of cash XK HERHREFE - KRB

acquired WEs (47,535) (30,460)
Purchases of available-for-sale financial assets BAREHESREE - (10,000)
Pledged bank deposits withdrawn ERRITERE 5,070 175
Pledged bank deposits placed ERRITEIEA (11,032) (5,070)
Short-term bank deposits withdrawn R ERSRITE R 100,527 66,984
Short-term bank deposits placed RERITEREA - (72,511)
Interest received BEHFIE 3,524 3,085
Net cash used in investing activities REEHFAFRE (481,470) (298,512)
Cash flows from financing activities METHZHERE
Proceeds from options exercised BRI ITREFRSR 16 22,313 35,708
Repurchase of own shares & 1n B8 16 (57,320) (12,713
Proceeds from borrowings EEMER 432,000 190,000
Repayments of borrowings EEEN (4,500) (57,378)
Dividends paid to the Company’s shareholders AARABREZ RS 31 (60,320) (39,776)
Net cash generated from financing activities BRETBHELNFHRS 332,173 115,841
Net increase in cash and cash equivalents FeRASEEDMFEM 1,956 111,666
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year FUBEE RSB 14 631,456 519,790
Cash and cash equivalents at end of year FRESRAECEED 14 633,412 631,456

The notes on pages 57 to 136 are an integral part of these consolidated

financial statements.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

RaMBERME

General Information

Kingdee International Software Group Company Limited (the “Company”)
was incorporated in the Cayman Islands in 1999 as an exempted
company with limited liability. The address of its office is Kingdee
Software Park, 2 Keji 12th Road South, Hi-tech industrial Park, Nanshan
District, Shenzhen, Guangdong Province, the People’s Republic of China
(the “PRC”).

The Company is an investment holding company. The principal activities
of the Company and its subsidiaries (the “Group”) are developing,
manufacturing and selling of enterprise management software products
and provision of software-related technical services in the PRC.

The shares of the Company have been listed on The Stock Exchange of
Hong Kong Limited since 15 February 2001.

These financial statements are presented in Renminbi (“RMB”), unless
otherwise stated. These consolidated financial statements have been
approved for issue by the board of directors on 27 March 2012.

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

The principal accounting policies applied in the preparation of these
consolidated financial statements are set out below. These policies have
been consistently applied to all the years presented, unless otherwise
stated.

2.1 Basis of preparation

The consolidated financial statements of the Group have been
prepared in accordance with International Financial Reporting
Standards (“IFRS”). The consolidated financial statements have
been prepared under the historical cost convention as modified
by the revaluation of investment properties and available-for-sale
financial assets, which are carried at fair value.

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with IFRS
requires the use of certain critical accounting estimates. It also
requires management to exercise its judgment in the process
of applying the Group’s accounting policies. The areas involving
a higher degree of judgment or complexity, or areas where
assumptions and estimates are significant to the consolidated
financial statements are disclosed in Note 4.
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2 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

FEPBRRNEE

(continued)

2.1 Basis of preparation (continued)

Changes in accounting policy and disclosures

New and amended standards adopted by the Group:

The following new standard, which is mandatory for the financial
year beginning on 1 January 2011, are relevant to the Group:

e |AS 24 (Revised) “Related Party Disclosures”

Other than an introduction of an exemption from all of
the disclosure requirements of IAS 24 for transactions
among government related entities and the government,
this standard also clarifies and simplifies the definition of a
related party. The changes have no material impact on the
Group’s financial statements.

The following revised standard, amendments and interpretation
to existing standards, have been published and are mandatory for
the financial year beginning 1 January 2011, but are not currently
relevant to the Group.

e |AS 32 (Amendment) Classification of Rights Issue

e  Amendmentto IFRIC 14 Prepayments of A Minimum
Funding Requirement

e |FRIC19 Extinguishing Financial Liabilities
with Equity Instruments

The third improvements to International Financial Reporting
Standards (2010) were issued in May 2010 by the IASB, certain
of which were effective in 2011. Management considered these
amendments had no material impact on the Group’s financial
statements for the year ended 31 December 2011,
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

FE B RRMGE

2 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

(continued)

2.1 Basis of preparation (continued)

Changes in accounting policy and disclosures (continued)

(@

New and amended standards have been issued but are not
effective for the financial year beginning 1 January 2011 and
have not been early adopted

IFRS 9 ‘Financial instruments’ addresses the classification,
measurement and recognition of financial assets and
financial liabilities. IFRS 9 was issued in November
2009. It replaces the parts of IAS 39 that relate
to the classification and measurement of financial
instruments. IFRS 9 requires financial assets to be
classified into two measurement categories: those
measured as at fair value and those measured at
amortised cost. The determination is made at initial
recognition. The classification depends on the entity’s
business model for managing its financial instruments
and the contractual cash flow characteristics of the
instrument. For financial liabilities, the standard
retains most of the IAS 39 requirements. The main
change is that, in cases where the fair value option
is taken for financial liabilities, the part of a fair value
change due to an entity’s own credit risk is recorded
in other comprehensive income rather than the
income statement, unless this creates an accounting
mismatch. The Group is yet to assess the full impact
of IFRS 9 and intends to adopt IFRS 9 no later than its
effective date (1 January 2015).

IFRS 10 ‘Consolidated financial statements’ builds on
existing principles by identifying the concept of control
as the determining factor in whether an entity should be
included within the consolidated financial statements of
the parent company. The standard provides additional
guidance to assist in the determination of control
where this is difficult to assess. The Group is yet to
assess the full impact of IFRS 10 and intends to adopt
IFRS 10 no later than the accounting period beginning
on or after 1 January 2013.
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2 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

60

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
FEBERRME

(continued)

2.1 Basis of preparation (continued)

Changes in accounting policy and disclosures (continued)

(@  New and amended standards have been issued but are not
effective for the financial year beginning 1 January 2011 and

have not been early adopted (continuead)

o IFRS 11 ‘Joint arrangements’ is a more realistic
reflection of joint arrangements by focusing on the
rights and obligations of the arrangement rather
than its legal form. There are two types of joint
arrangement: joint operations and joint ventures. Joint
operations arise where a joint operator has rights to
the assets and obligations relating to the arrangement
and hence accounts for its interest in assets, liabilities,
revenue and expenses. Joint ventures arise where
the joint operator has rights to the net assets of the
arrangement and hence equity accounts for its interest.
Proportional consolidation of joint ventures is no longer
allowed. The Group is yet to assess the full impact of
IFRS 11 and intends to adopt IFRS 11 no later than
the accounting period beginning on or after 1 January

2013.

e |FRS 12 'Disclosures of interests in other entities’
includes the disclosure requirements for all forms of
interests in other entities, including joint arrangements,
associates, special purpose vehicles and other off
balance sheet vehicles. The Group is yet to assess the
full impact of IFRS 12 and intends to adopt IFRS 12 no
later than the accounting period beginning on or after

1 January 2013.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

FE B RRMGE

2 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

(continued)

2.1 Basis of preparation (continued)

Changes in accounting policy and disclosures (continued)

)

New and amended standards have been issued but are not
effective for the financial year beginning 1 January 2011 and
have not been early adopted (continuead)

° IFRS 13 ‘Fair value measurement’ aims to improve
consistency and reduce complexity by providing a
precise definition of fair value and a single source of
fair value measurement and disclosure requirements
for use across IFRSs. The requirements do not extend
the use of fair value accounting but provide guidance
on how it should be applied where its use is already
required or permitted by other standards within IFRSs.
The Group is yet to assess the full impact of IFRS
13 and intends to adopt IFRS 13 no later than the
accounting period beginning on or after 1 January
2013.

There are no other IFRSs interpretations that are not
yet effective that would be expected to have a material
impact on the Group.

2.2 Consolidation

The consolidated financial statements include the financial
statements of the Company and all of its subsidiaries made up to
31 December 2011.

(@)

Subsidiaries

Subsidiaries are all entities (including special purpose
entities) over which the Group has the power to govern the
financial and operating policies generally accompanying
a shareholding of more than one half of the voting rights.
The existence and effect of potential voting rights that are
currently exercisable or convertible are considered when
assessing whether the Group controls another entity. The
group also assesses existence of control where it does
not have more than 50% of the voting power but is able to
govern the financial and operating policies by virtue of de-
facto control. De-facto control may arise from circumstances
such as enhanced minority rights or contractual terms
between shareholders, etc.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
FEBERRME

2 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

62

(continued)

2.2 Consolidation (continued)

(@)

(b)

KINGDEE INTERNATIONAL SOFTWARE GROUP COMPANY LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2011

Subsidiaries (continued)

Subsidiaries are fully consolidated from the date on which
control is transferred to the Group. They are de-consolidated
from the date that control ceases.

Inter-company transactions, balances and unrealised gains
on transactions between group companies are eliminated.
Unrealised losses are also eliminated. Accounting policies of
subsidiaries have been changed where necessary to ensure
consistency with the policies adopted by the Group.

Business combinations

The Group uses the acquisition method of accounting to
account for business combinations. The consideration
transferred for the acquisition of a subsidiary is the fair
values of the assets transferred, the liabilities incurred and
the equity interests issued by the Group. The consideration
transferred includes the fair value of any asset or liability
resulting from a contingent consideration arrangement.
|dentifiable assets acquired and liabilities and contingent
liabilities assumed in a business combination are measured
initially at their fair values at the acquisition date. On an
acquisition-by-acquisition basis, the Group recognises any
non-controlling interests in the acquiree either at fair value
or at the non-controlling interests’ proportionate share of the
acquiree’s net assets.

The excess of the consideration transferred, the amount
of any non-controlling interests in the acquiree and the
acquisition-date fair value of any previous equity interest in
the acquiree over the fair value of the identifiable net assets
acquired is recorded as goodwill. If this is less than the fair
value of the net assets of the subsidiary acquired in the case
of a bargain purchase, the difference is recognised directly in
the consolidated income statement (Note 2.8(a)).

Acquisition-related costs are expensed as incurred.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

FE B RRMGE

2 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

(continued)

2.2 Consolidation (continued)

(b)

(c)

(d)

Business combinations (continued)

Any contingent consideration to be transferred by the Group
is recognised at fair value at the acquisition date. Subsequent
changes to the fair value of the contingent consideration that is
deemed to be an asset or liability is recognised in accordance
with IAS 39 either in profit or loss or as a change to other
comprehensive income. Contingent consideration that is
classified as equity is not remeasured, and its subsequent
settlement is accounted for within equity.

Transactions with non-controlling interests

The Group treats transactions with non-controlling interests as
transactions with equity owners of the Group. For purchases
from non-controlling interests, the difference between any
consideration paid and the relevant share acquired of the
carrying value of net assets of the subsidiary is recorded
in equity. Gains or losses on disposals to non-controlling
interests are also recorded in equity.

Separate financial statements

Investments in subsidiaries are accounted for at cost
less impairment. Cost is adjusted to reflect changes
in consideration arising from contingent consideration
amendments. Cost also includes direct attributable costs of
investment. The results of subsidiaries are accounted for by
the company on the basis of dividend and receivable.

Impairment testing of the investments in subsidiaries is
required upon receiving dividends from these investments
if the dividend exceeds the total comprehensive income of
the subsidiary in the period the dividend is declared or if the
carrying amount of the investment in the separate financial
statements exceeds the carrying amount in the consolidated
financial statements of the investee’s net assets including
goodwill.
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2 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

64

(continued)

2.3 Segment reporting

24
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Operating segments are reported in a manner consistent with
the internal reporting provided to the chief operating decision-
maker. The chief operating decision-maker, who is responsible for
allocating resources and assessing performance of the operating
segments, has been identified as the steering committee that
makes strategic decisions.

Foreign currency translation

(a)

(b)

Functional and presentation currency

[tems included in the financial statements of each of the
Group’s entities are measured using the currency of the
primary economic environment in which the entity operates
(“the functional currency”). The consolidated financial
statements are presented in RMB, which is the Company’s
functional and the Group’s presentation currency. All the
companies in the Group also have RMB as their functional
currency.

Transactions and balances

Foreign currency transactions are translated into the
functional currency using the exchange rates prevailing at
the dates of the transactions or valuation where items are re-
measured. Foreign exchange gains and losses resulting from
the settlement of such transactions and from the translation
at year-end exchange rates of monetary assets and liabilities
denominated in foreign currencies are recognised in the
income statement, except when deferred in equity as
qualifying cash flow hedges and qualifying net investment
hedges.

Foreign exchange gains and losses that relate to borrowings
and cash and cash equivalents are presented in the income
statement within ‘Finance income or costs’. All other foreign
exchange gains and losses are presented in the consolidated
income statement within ‘Other gains — net’.
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2 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
(continued)

2.4 Foreign currency translation (continued)

(b) Transactions and balances (continued)

Changes in the fair value of monetary securities denominated
in foreign currency classified as available for sale are
analysed between translation differences resulting from
changes in the amortised cost of the security and other
changes in the carrying amount of the security. Translation
differences related to changes in amortised cost are
recognised in profit or loss, and other changes in carrying
amount are recognised in other comprehensive income.

Translation differences on non-monetary financial assets and
liabilities such as equities held at fair value through profit
or loss are recognised in profit or loss as part of the fair
value gain or loss. Translation differences on non-monetary
financial assets, such as equities classified as available for
sale, are included in other comprehensive income.

2.5 Property, plant and equipment

Buildings comprise mainly offices. Property, plant and equipment
are stated at historical cost less depreciation. Historical cost
includes expenditure that is directly attributable to the acquisition of
the items.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s carrying amount or
recognised as a separate asset, as appropriate, only when it is
probable that future economic benefits associated with the item
will flow to the Group and the cost of the item can be measured
reliably. The carrying amount of the replaced part is derecognised.
All other repairs and maintenance are charged in the consolidated
income statement during the financial period in which they are
incurred.
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2.6
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Property, plant and equipment (continued)

Depreciation is calculated using the straight-line method to allocate
their costs to their residual values over their estimated useful lives,
as follows:

—  Buildings 15-40 years

—  Computer and related 5 years
equipment

—  Office equipment 5 years

—  Motor vehicles 5 years

—  Leasehold improvements over the lease term (unless greater
than useful lives)

The assets’ residual values and useful lives are reviewed, and
adjusted if appropriate, at each balance sheet date.

Construction in progress represents property and plant under
construction and is stated at cost. This includes cost of construction
and other direct costs. Construction in progress is not depreciated
until the relevant assets are completed and put into operational use.

An asset’s carrying amount is written down immediately to its
recoverable amount if the asset’s carrying amount is greater than
its estimated recoverable amount (Note 2.9).

Gains and losses on disposals are determined by comparing
proceeds with the carrying amount and are recognised within ‘Other
gains —net’ in the consolidated income statement.

Investment property

Investment property, principally comprising leasehold land and
office buildings, is held for long-term rental yields and is not
occupied by the group. It also includes properties that are being
constructed or developed for future use as investment properties.
Land held under operating leases is accounted for as investment
properties when the rest of the definition of an investment property is
met. In such cases, the operating leases concerned are accounted
for as if they were finance leases. Investment property is initially
measured at cost, including related transaction costs. After initial
recognition at cost investment properties are carried at fair value,
representing open market value determined at each reporting date
by external valuers. Fair value is based on active market prices,
adjusted, if necessary, for any difference in the nature, location or
condition of the specific asset. If the information is not available, the
Group uses alternative valuation methods such as recent prices on
less active markets or discounted cash flow projections. Fair value
change of own occupied land and buildings before transferred to
investments property are recorded in the statement of changes in
equity as “Other reserves”. Subsequent changes in fair values are
recorded in the consolidated income statement.
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2 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

(continued)

2.7 Land-use rights

2.8

Land-use rights represent lease payments paid or payable for the
land use rights less accumulated charges and are recognised as an
expense in the income statement on a straight-line basis over the
lease period of the land use rights.

Intangible assets

(@)

Goodwill

Goodwill represents the excess of the cost of an acquisition
over the fair value of the Group’s share of the net identifiable
assets of the acquired subsidiary or business at the date
of acquisition (Note 2.2(b)). Goodwill on acquisitions of
subsidiaries or businesses is included in ‘intangible assets’.
Goodwill is tested annually for impairment and carried at cost
less accumulated impairment losses. Impairment losses on
goodwill are not reversed. Gains and losses on the disposal
of an entity include the carrying amount of goodwill relating
to the entity sold.

Goodwill is allocated to cash-generating units for the purpose
of impairment testing. The allocation is made to those cash-
generating units or Groups of cash-generating units that are
expected to benefit from the business combination in which
the goodwill arose identified according to operating segment.

Goodwill impairment reviews are undertaken annually or
more frequently if events or changes in circumstances
indicate a potential impairment. The carrying value of
goodwill is compared to the recoverable amount, which is the
higher of value in use and the fair value less costs to sell. Any
impairment is recognised immediately as an expense and is
not subsequently reversed.
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(continued)

2.8 Intangible assets (continued)

(b)
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Research and development expenditure and web site
development costs

Research expenditure is recognised as an expense as
incurred. Costs incurred on development projects (relating
to the design and testing of new and improved products)
or expenditures incurred in the development of a web site
related to the application and infrastructure development are
recognised as intangible assets when the following criteria
are met:

it is technically feasible to complete the software
product so that it will be available for use;

—  management intends to complete the software product
and use or sell it;

—  thereis an ability to use or sell the software product;

— it can be demonstrated how the software product will
generate probable future economic benefits;

— adequate technical, financial and other resources
to complete the development and to use or sell the
software product are available; and

—  the expenditure attributable to the software product
during its development can be reliably measured.

Directly attributable costs that are capitalised include the
software development employee costs and an appropriate
portion of relevant overheads.

Other development expenditures that do not meet these
criteria are recognised as an expense as incurred.
Development costs previously recognised as an expense is
not recognised as an asset in a subsequent period.

Capitalised development costs are recorded as intangible
assets and amortised from the point at which the asset is
ready for use on a straight-line basis over their estimated
useful lives not exceeding 3 years.
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2 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
(continued)

2.8

29

Intangible assets (continued)

(c) Acquired licenses and copyrights

Separately acquired licenses and copyrights are shown
at historical cost. Licenses and copyrights acquired in a
business combination are recognised at fair value at the
acquisition date. Licenses and copyrights have a finite useful
life and are carried at cost less accumulated amortisation.
Amortisation is calculated using the straight-line method
to allocate the cost of licenses and copyrights over their
estimated useful lives not exceeding 5 years.

(d) Computer software for own use

Computer software licenses for own use are capitalised on
the basis of the costs incurred to acquire and bring to use
the specific software. These costs are amortised over their
estimated useful lives not exceeding 5 years.

Impairment of non-financial assets

Assets that have an indefinite useful life, for example goodwill, are
not subject to amortisation and are tested annually for impairment.
Assets are reviewed for impairment whenever events or changes
in circumstances indicate that the carrying amount may not be
recoverable. An impairment loss is recognised for the amount by
which the asset’s carrying amount exceeds its recoverable amount.
The recoverable amount is the higher of an asset’s fair value
less costs to sell and value in use. For the purpose of assessing
impairment, assets are grouped at the lowest levels for which there
are separately identifiable cash flows (cash-generating units). Non-
financial assets other than goodwill that suffered impairment are
reviewed for possible reversal of the impairment at each reporting
date.
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(continued)
2.10 Financial assets

2101 Classification

The group classifies its financial assets in the following
categories: loans and receivables, and available-for-sale
financial assets. The classification depends on the purpose
for which the financial assets were acquired. Management
determines the classification of its financial assets at initial
recognition.

(@ Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial
assets with fixed or determinable payments that are
not quoted in an active market. They are included
in current assets, except for maturities greater than
12 months after the balance sheet date. These are
classified as non-current assets. The Group’s loans
and receivables comprise ‘Trade and other receivables’
and ‘Cash and cash equivalents’ in the balance sheet
(Note 2.14).

(b)  Available-for-sale financial assets

Available-for-sale financial assets are non-derivatives
that are either designated in this category or not
classified in any of the other categories. They are
included in non-current assets unless the investment
matures or management intends to dispose of it within
12 months of the end of the reporting period.
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2 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
(continued)

2.10 Financial assets (continued)

2102 Recognition and measurement

Regular way purchases and sales of financial assets are
recognised on the trade-date-the date on which the Group
commits to purchase or sell the asset. Investments are
initially recognised at fair value plus transaction costs for all
financial assets not carried at fair value through profit or loss.
Financial assets are derecognised when the rights to receive
cash flows from the investments have expired or have been
transferred and the Group has transferred substantially all
risks and rewards of ownership. Available-for-sale financial
assets are subsequently carried at fair value. Loans and
receivables are subsequently carried at amortised cost using
the effective interest method.

Changes in the fair value of monetary and non-monetary
securities classified as available for sale are recognised in
other comprehensive income.

When securities classified as available for sale are sold or
impaired, the accumulated fair value adjustments recognised
in equity are included in the income statement as ‘gains and
losses from investment securities’.

Dividends on available-for-sale equity instruments are
recognised in the income statement as part of other income
when the Group’s right to receive payments is established.

2.11 Offsetting financial instruments

Financial assets and liabilities are offset and the net amount
reported in the statement of financial position when there is a
legally enforceable right to offset the recognised amounts and there
is an intention to settle on a net basis, or realise the assets and
settle the liabilities simultaneously.
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2.12 Impairment of financial assets

Assets carried at amortised cost

The Group assesses at the end of each reporting period
whether there is objective evidence that a financial asset or
group of financial assets is impaired. A financial asset or a
group of financial assets is impaired and impairment losses
are incurred only if there is objective evidence of impairment
as a result of one or more events that occurred after the
initial recognition of the asset (a ‘loss event’) and that loss
event (or events) has an impact on the estimated future cash
flows of the financial asset or group of financial assets that
can be reliably estimated.

The criteria that the Group uses to determine that there is
objective evidence of an impairment loss include:

e Significant financial difficulty of the issuer or obligor;

° A breach of contract, such as a default or delinquency
in interest or principal payments;

° It becomes probable that the borrower will enter
bankruptcy or other financial reorganisation;

The Group first assesses whether objective evidence of
impairment exists.

For loans and receivables category, the amount of the loss
is measured as the difference between the asset’s carrying
amount and the present value of estimated future cash flows
(excluding future credit losses that have not been incurred)
discounted at the financial asset’s original effective interest
rate. The asset’s carrying amount of the asset is reduced
and the amount of the loss is recognised in the consolidated
income statement.

If, in a subsequent period, the amount of the impairment loss
decreases and the decrease can be related objectively to an
event occurring after the impairment was recognised (such
as an improvement in the debtor’s credit rating), the reversal
of the previously recognised impairment loss is recognised in
the consolidated income statement.
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2 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
(continued)

2.12 Impairment of financial assets (continued)

(b) Assets classified as available for sale

The Group assesses at the end of each reporting period
whether there is objective evidence that a financial asset or
a group of financial assets is impaired. For debt securities,
the Group uses the criteria refer to (a) above. In the case
of equity investments classified as available for sale, a
significant or prolonged decline in the fair value of the
security below its cost is also evidence that the assets are
impaired. If any such evidence exists for available-for-sale
financial assets, the cumulative loss — measured as the
difference between the acquisition cost and the current
fair value, less any impairment loss on that financial asset
previously recognised in profit or loss — is removed from
equity and recognised in the consolidated income statement.
Impairment losses recognised in the consolidated income
statement on equity instruments are not reversed through the
consolidated income statement. If, in a subsequent period,
the fair value of a debt instrument classified as available for
sale increases and the increase can be objectively related to
an event occurring after the impairment loss was recognised
in profit or loss, the impairment loss is reversed through the
consolidated income statement.

2.13 Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable value.
Cost is determined on weighted average basis. Net realisable value
is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business,
less the estimated costs of completion and applicable variable
selling expenses.

2.14 Trade and other receivables

Trade receivables are amounts due from customers for software
sold or services performed in the ordinary course of business. If
collection of trade and other receivables is expected in one year or
less (or in the normal operating cycle of the business if longer), they
are classified as current assets. If not, they are presented as non-
current assets.

Trade and other receivables are recognised initially at fair value
and subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective
interest method, less provision for impairment.
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(continued)

2.15 Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents includes cash in hand, deposits held
at call with banks, other short-term highly liquid investments with
original maturities of three months or less.

2.16 Share capital

Ordinary shares are classified as equity. Incremental costs directly
attributable to the issue of new shares or options are shown in
equity as a deduction, net of tax, from the proceeds.

Where any group companies purchases the Company’s share
capital (treasury shares), the consideration paid, including any
directly attributable incremental costs (net of income taxes) is
deducted from equity attributable to the Company’s equity holders
until the shares are cancelled or reissued. Where such shares
are subsequently reissued, any consideration received, net of
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2.17 Trade payables 2.17 IR
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Trade payables are obligations to pay for goods or services that
have been acquired in the ordinary course of business from
suppliers. Accounts payable are classified as current liabilities if
payment is due within one year or less (or in the normal operating
cycle of the business if longer). If not, they are presented as non-
current liabilities.

Trade payables are recognised initially at fair value and
subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective
interest method.
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(continued)

2.18 Borrowings 2.18 &%
Borrowings are recognised initially at fair value, net of transaction —BEBEEERRALBETNREENRSERA
costs incurred. Borrowings are subsequently stated at amortised MiatER o ERERRBERATIR  ER(HRR

cost; any differences between proceeds (net of transaction cost)
and the redemption value is recognised in the income statement
over the period of the borrowings using the effective interest
method.

Fees paid on the establishment of loan facilities are recognised as
transaction costs of the loan to the extent that it is probable that
some or all of the facility will be drawn down. In this case, the fee
is deferred until the draw-down occurs. To the extent there is no
evidence that it is probable that some or all of the facility will be
drawn down, the fee is capitalised as a pre-payment for liquidity
services and amortised over the period of the facility to which it
relates.

Borrowings are classified as current liabilities unless the group has
an unconditional right to defer settlement of the liability for at least
12 months after the end of the reporting period.

2.19 Borrowing costs

General and specific borrowing costs directly attributable to the
acquisition, construction or production of qualifying assets, which
are assets that necessarily take a substantial period of time to get
ready for their intended use or sale, are added to the cost of those
assets, until such time as the assets are substantially ready for their
intended use or sale.

Investment income earned on the temporary investment of specific
borrowings pending their expenditure on qualifying assets is
deducted from the borrowing costs eligible for capitalisation.

All other borrowing costs are recognised in profit or loss in the
period in which they are incurred.

2.20 Current and deferred income tax

The tax expense for the period comprises current and deferred tax.
Tax is recognised in the consolidated income statement, except to
the extent that it relates to items recognised in other comprehensive
income or directly in equity. In this case, the tax is also recognised
in other comprehensive income or directly in equity, respectively.
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(continued)

2.20 Current and deferred income tax (continued)

(@)

(b)
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Current income tax

The current income tax charge is calculated on the basis
of the tax laws enacted or substantively enacted at the
balance sheet date in the countries where the Company
and its subsidiaries operate and generate taxable income.
Management periodically evaluates positions taken in tax
returns with respect to situations in which applicable tax
regulation is subject to interpretation. It establishes provisions
where appropriate on the basis of amounts expected to be
paid to the tax authorities.

Deferred income tax

Inside basis differences

Deferred income tax is recognised, using the liability method,
on temporary differences arising between the tax bases of
assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts in the Group
and Company’s financial statements. However, the deferred
income tax is not accounted for if it arises from initial
recognition of an asset or liability in a transaction other than
a business combination that at the time of the transaction
affects neither accounting nor taxable profit or loss. Deferred
income tax is determined using tax rates (and laws) that have
been enacted or substantially enacted by the balance sheet
date and are expected to apply when the related deferred
income tax asset is realised or the deferred income tax
liability is settled.

Outside basis differences

Deferred income tax assets are recognised only to the extent
that it is probable that future taxable profit will be available
against which the temporary differences can be utilised.

Deferred income tax is provided on temporary differences
arising on investments in subsidiaries, except where the
timing of the reversal of the temporary difference is controlled
by the Group and it is probable that the temporary difference
will not reverse in the foreseeable future.
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2 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

(continued)

2.20 Current and deferred income tax (continued)

(c)

Offsetting

Deferred income tax assets and liabilities are offset when
there is a legally enforceable right to offset current tax assets
against current tax liabilities and when the deferred income
taxed assets and liabilities relate to income taxes levied by
the same taxation authority on either the taxable entity or
different taxable entities where there is an intention to settle
the balances on a net basis.

2.21 Employee benefits

(@)

(b)

Retirement benefits

The Group provides defined contribution retirement plans
based on local laws and regulations. The plans cover full-
time employees and provide for contributions at certain
percentage of salary as determined by the respective local
government authorities. The Group has no further payment
obligations once the contributions have been paid. The
contributions are recognised as employee benefit expense
when they are due. Prepaid contributions are recognised as
an asset to the extent that a cash refund or a reduction in the
future payments is available.

Termination benefits

Termination benefits are payable when employment is
terminated by the Group before the normal retirement date,
or whenever an employee accepts voluntary redundancy
in exchange for these benefits. The Group recognises
termination benefits when it is demonstrably committed to
either: terminating the employment of current employees
according to a detailed formal plan without possibility of
withdrawal; or providing termination benefits as a result of
an offer made to encourage voluntary redundancy. Benefits
falling due more than 12 months after balance sheet date are
discounted to present value.
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(continued)

2.22 Share-based payment

(@)
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Equity-settled share-based payment transactions

The Group operates a number of equity-settled, share-based
compensation plans, under which the entity receives services
from employees as consideration for equity instruments
(options) of the Group. The fair value of the employee
services received in exchange for the grant of the options is
recognised as an expense. The total amount to be expensed
is determined by reference to the fair value of the options
granted:

° including any market performance conditions;

° excluding the impact of any service and non-
market performance vesting conditions (for example,
profitability, sales growth targets and remaining an
employee of the entity over a specified time period);
and

° including the impact of any non-vesting conditions (for
example, the requirement for employees to save.)

Non-market vesting conditions are included in assumptions
about the number of options that are expected to vest. The
total expense is recognised over the vesting period, which is
the period over which all of the specified vesting conditions
are to be satisfied. At the end of each reporting period, the
entity revises its estimates of the number of options that
are expected to vest based on the non-marketing vesting
conditions. It recognises the impact of the revision to original
estimates, if any, in the consolidated income statement with
a corresponding adjustment to equity.

When the options are exercised, the company issues new
shares. The proceeds received net of any directly attributable
transaction costs are credited to share capital (nominal value)
and share premium when the options are exercised.
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2 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies 2 EXE®HBEHRE 2

(continued)
2.22 Share-based payment (continued) 2.22 URinBERHZ M (2)
(b) Share-based payment transactions among Group (b) SERURGAERNRS

entities
The grant by the Company of options over its equity ARRREEFARNBIRTHERTANS
instruments to the employees of subsidiary undertakings in B HRAEARA - WERBIRBEOAAE
the Group is treated as a capital contribution. The fair value E 2ZREANAABENE  TESHHR
of employee services received, measured by reference to the R EREFARKRENEN - WRREER
grant date fair value, is recognised over the vesting period as Bit e

an increase to investment in subsidiary undertakings, with a
corresponding credit to equity.

2.23 Provision 2.23 #f§
Provisions are recognised when: the Group has a present legal or EARERCRENEHMELRANARAEER
constructive obligation as a result of past events; it is probable that % RALFREERORLAGERE  REBC
an outflow of resources will be required to settle the obligation; WrSEAEE - IR EE - EETIRARLEL B
and the amount has been reliably estimated. Provisions are not BREREE -

recognised for future operating losses.

Where there are a number of similar obligations, the likelihood MEZERURT  ARBEGZEPEERRLOT
that an outflow will be required in settlement is determined by et RIAREEBOENERBEE - IEER %
considering the class of obligations as a whole. A provision is BEERIFTE & MEM —{E18 B A E R L M T4
recognised even if the likelihood of an outflow with respect to any PR - I/RHERLER -

one item included in the same class of obligations may be small.

Provisions are measured at the present value of the expenditures ERFRANANEFRRENRAEAREHOHE
expected to be required to settle the obligation using a pre-tax Bit 2 ZAERMEFTHZHERHENGHR
rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of BEERRETE - EEREBEMIE M EERR
money and the risks specific to the obligation. The increase in the RMEER -

provision due to passage of time is recognised as interest expense.

2.24 Revenue recognition 2.24 MR
Revenue comprises the fair value of the consideration received or WEEAEEEREEYARTHEERIRENE
receivable for the sale of goods and services in the ordinary course Wk R ENAREBE - WREMBREBER - &
of the Group’s activities. Revenue is shown net of value-added tax, - EHAAM - AR EEEREHHEERIIR -
returns, rebates and discounts and after elimination of sales made
within the Group.

SRERRMHEEERAE —2-—F5§ 79



2 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

80

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

FEPBRRMEE

(continued)

2.24 Revenue recognition (continued)

The Group recognises revenue when the amount of revenue can be
reliably measured, it is probable that future economic benefits will
flow to the entity and specific criteria have been met for each of the
Group’s activities as described below. The amount of revenue is not
considered to be reliably measurable until all contingencies relating
to the sale have been resolved. The Group bases its estimates on
historical results, taking into consideration the type of customer, the
type of transaction and the specifics of each arrangement.

The Group’s turnover includes, separately or in combination,
the sales of software, sales of hardware, the provision of
implementation services (including sales of software with significant
modification or customisation), maintenance services, customer
support services, upgrade services and other services.

(a) Sales of standard software and hardware

Sales of standard software, hardware and related products,
including those distributed via distributors, are recognised
when a group entity has delivered the products to an end
customer; the customer has accepted the products and
collectability of the related receivables is reasonably assured.

(b) Software implementation contracts

An implementation contract is a contract specifically
negotiated for the implementation of software or a
combination of different software products that are closely
interrelated or interdependent in terms of their design,
technology and functions or their ultimate purpose or use.

The Group uses the ‘percentage of completion method’ to
determine the appropriate amount of revenue to recognise
in a given period. The stage of completion is measured by
reference to the contract costs incurred up to the balance
sheet date as a percentage of total estimated costs for each
contract. Costs incurred in the year in connection with future
activity on a contract are excluded from contract costs in
determining the stage of completion. They are presented as
inventories, prepayments or other assets, depending on their
nature.
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2 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

(continued)

2.24 Revenue recognition (continued)

(b)

Software implementation contracts (continued)

Variations in contract work, claims and incentive payments
are included in contract revenue to the extent that would
have been agreed with the customer and are capable of
being reliably measured.

Contract costs are recognised as expenses in the period in
which they are incurred.

When the outcome of an implementation contract cannot
be estimated reliably, contract revenue is recognised only
to the extent of contract costs incurred that are likely to be
recoverable.

When the outcome of an implementation contract can be
estimated reliably and it is probable that the contract will be
profitable, contract revenue is recognised over the period
of the contract. When it is probable that total contract costs
will exceed total contract revenue, the expected loss is
recognised as an expense immediately.

The Group presents as an asset, the gross amount due from
customers for contract work for all contracts in progress for
which costs incurred plus recognised profits (less recognised
losses) exceed progress billings. Progress billings not yet
paid by customers are included within ‘trade and other
receivables’.

The Group presents as a liability the gross amount due to
customers for contract work for all contracts in progress for
which progress billings exceed costs incurred plus recognised
profits (less recognised l0sses).
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2 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
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(continued)

2.24 Revenue recognition (continued)

(©)

(d)

KINGDEE INTERNATIONAL SOFTWARE GROUP COMPANY LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2011

Software solution consulting, maintenance, upgrading,
training, subscription for online management services,
and other supporting services

Software solution consulting, maintenance, upgrading,
training, subscription for online services and other supporting
services are provided in the form of fixed-price contracts.
Sales of these services are recognised in the period the
services are provided, using a straight-line basis over the
term of the contract excluding software solution consulting
services, which are recognised on a percentage-of-
completion basis similar to (b) above.

Multiple element arrangements

The Group offers certain arrangements whereby a customer
can purchase software together with certain of the related
implementation or other services as discussed above.
When such multiple element arrangements exist, the total
arrangement consideration is allocated to each element
based on their relative fair values, as determined based on
the current market price of each of the elements when sold
separately. The revenue relating to the service elements,
which represent their relative fair value in relation to the
fair value of each of the elements in the arrangement, are
recognised on a percentage-of-completion basis over the
service period.

Where the Group is unable to determine the fair value of each
of the elements in an arrangement, it uses the residual value
method. Under this method, the Group determines the fair
value of the delivered element by deducting the fair value of
the undelivered element from the total contract consideration.

To the extent that there is a discount on the arrangement,
such discount is allocated between the elements of the
contract in such a manner as to reflect the fair value of the
elements.
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2 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
(continued)

2.24 Revenue recognition (continued)

(e) Rental income

Rental income from investment properties is recognised in
the income statement on a straight-line basis over the term
of the lease.

2.25 Interest Income

Interest income is recognised using the effective interest method.
When a loan and receivable is impaired, the group reduces the
carrying amount to its recoverable amount, being the estimated
future cash flow discounted at the original effective interest rate of
the instrument, and continues unwinding the discount as interest
income. Interest income on impaired loan and receivables are
recognised using the original effective interest rate.

2.26 Operating leases

Lease in which a significant portion of the risks and rewards of
ownership are retained by the lessor are classified as operating
leases. Payments made under operating lease (net of any incentives
received from the lessor) are charged to the income statement on a
straight-line basis over the period of the lease.

2.27 Government grants

Grants from the government are recognised at their fair value where
there is a reasonable assurance that the grants will be received and
the Group will comply with all attached conditions.

Government grants relating to costs are deferred and recognised
in the income statement over the period necessary to match them
with the costs that they are intended to compensate.

Government grants relating to property, plant and equipment are
included in non-current liabilities as deferred government grants
and are credited to the income statement on a straight-line basis
over the expected lives of the related assets.

2.28 Dividend distribution
Dividends distribution to the Company’s shareholders is recognised
as a liability in the Group’s and the Company’s financial statements
in the period in which the dividends are approved by the Company’s
shareholders.
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3 Financial Risk Management

84

3.1 Financial risk factors

The Group’s activities expose it to a variety of financial risks:
market risk (including foreign exchange risk and interest rate risk),
credit risk and liquidity risk. The Group’s overall risk management
programme focuses on the unpredictability of financial markets and
seeks to minimise potential adverse effects on the Group’s financial
performance. The directors review and agree policies for managing
each of these risks and they are summarized as follows:

(@) Market risk

(i)  Foreign exchange risk

The functional currency of the Company and major
subsidiaries is RMB. Majority of the revenues of
the Group are derived from operations in the PRC.
The financial instruments of the Group are mainly
denominated in RMB. As at 31 December 2011, cash
and cash equivalents of RMB43,356,000 (2010:
RMB102,774,000) were denominated in Hong Kong
Dollars (“HKD”). Apart from this, the Group does
not have significant exposure to currency risk. The
conversion of RMB into foreign currencies for the
purpose of dividends is subject to the rules and
regulations of foreign exchange control promulgated by
the PRC government.

At 31 December 2011, if the RMB had weakened/
strengthened by 5% against the HKD with all other
variables held constant, profit before tax for the year
would have been RMB2,173,000 higher/lower (2010:
RMB5,151,000 higher/lower), mainly as a result of
foreign exchange gains/losses on translation of HKD-
denominated cash and cash equivalents.
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3 Financial Risk Management (ontinueq)
3.1 Financial risk factors (continued)

(@)

Market risk (continueq)

(i

(i)

Interest rate risk

The Group’s interest rate risk arises from short-
term and long-term borrowings. Borrowings issued
at variable rates expose the Group to cash flow
interest rate risk which is partially offset by cash held
at variable rates. There is no other written policy on
managing the interest rate risk and management is to
minimise its impact on the income statement.

The Group’s income and operating cash flows are
substantially independent of changes in market interest
rates. Fluctuation of market rates does not have
significant impact to operating cash flows.

During 2011 and 2010, the Group’s borrowings at
variable rate were denominated in RMB.

As at 31 December 2011, if interest rates on
borrowings had been 1% higher/lower with all other
variables held constant, the net profit for 2011 would
decrease/increase by RMB1,673,000 respectively, as a
result of higher/lower interest expenses on borrowings.

Price risk

The Group is exposed to security price risk because
of the investment held by the Group and classified as
available-for-sale financial assets. The Group is not
exposed to commodity price risk. The comprehensive
incomes of the Group increase/decrease as a result
of the fair gain/loss of the available-for-sale financial
assets. To manage the price risk, the Group limits
the type of available-for-sale financial assets and the
directors are of the opinion the price risk was not
material as at 31 December 2011.
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3 Financial Risk Management continueq)

3.1 Financial risk factors (continued)

86

(b)
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Credit risk

The carrying amounts of cash and cash equivalents, pledged
and short-term bank deposits, trade and other receivables,
and available for sales financial assets represent the Group’s
maximum exposure to credit risk in relation to its financial
assets.

The management manages the credit risk of cash and cash
equivalents, pledged bank deposits and available for sale
financial assets by transacting with state-owned financial
institutions and reputable commercial banks which are all
high-credit-quality financial institutions in the PRC and Hong
Kong.

In relation to trade receivables, the Group has policies in
place to ensure that a certain percentage of the contracted
sales amounts have been received as deposits upon agreeing
the related sales contracts with customers. The credit quality
of the counterparties is assessed by taking into account their
financial position, credit history and other factors. Individual
credit limits are set based on the assessment of credit
quality. It also undertakes certain monitoring procedures on
an individual customer basis to ensure that proper follow-up
action is taken to recover overdue debts. Nevertheless, the
Group might suffer from certain amounts of trade receivables
which cannot be recovered due to default and unexpected
financial difficulties of customers from time to time. The
Group has no significant concentration of credit risk in trade
receivables and the balance of trade receivables is composed
of numerous individual small items and the exposure spreads
over a large number of customers. The Group regularly
performs ageing analysis, assesses credit risks and estimates
the recoverability of groups of trade receivables bearing
similar credit risk based on historical data and cash collection
history. The estimates are assessed at each year end in order
to ensure that adequate impairment provision is made.

No other financial assets bear a significant exposure to credit
risk.
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3 Financial Risk Management (ontinueq)

3.1 Financial risk factors (continued)

(c)

Liquidity risk (c)
The Group exercises prudent liquidity risk management by

reviewing forecasted cash balances on a quarterly basis

to maintain sufficient cash levels and the availability of an

adequate amount of committed credit facilities to ensure the

availability of sufficient cash flows to meet any unexpected

and material cash requirements in the course of ordinary

business. The Group has no significant exposure to liquidity

risk.

The table below analyses the Group’s financial liabilities
that will be settled on a gross basis into relevant maturity
groupings based on the remaining period at the balance
sheet to the contractual maturity date. The amounts disclosed
in the table are the contractual undiscounted cash flows.
Balances due within 12 months equal their carrying balances
as the impact of discounting is not significant.
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At 31 December 2011 R-E—%+-A=1+—H
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staff welfare payables, advance from customers %4 k& T/EF| - BFKR4 -
and VAT and business tax payable) JEFHEER R EER) 166,068 - -
Company NG|
At 31 December 2011 A _E—%+-HA=+—H
Trade and other payables FERBRR R E MBI R 736 - -
At 31 December 2010 R-E-E£+°-A=1+—H
Trade and other payables JERTIRF R E AR IX 15 - -
SREARBHEEERAR ———F&FK 87
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3 Financial Risk Management continueq)

3.2 Capital risk management

88

3.3

The Group’s objectives when managing capital are to safeguard the
Group’s ability to continue as a going concern in order to provide
returns for equity holders and benefits for other stakeholders and to
maintain an optimal capital structure to reduce the cost of capital.

In order to maintain or adjust the capital structure, the Group may
adjust the amount of dividends paid to equity holders, issue new
shares or sell assets to reduce debt.

During 2011, the Group borrowed certain long term bank
borrowings in order to finance the construction of a new industry
park of the Group in Beijing, the PRC. As a result, the gearing ratio
increased. The intention of the directors is to maintain the gearing
ratio at below 30%. The gearing ratios at 31 December 2011 and
2010 were as follows:

3 MERREE2)

32 HeRREHE
AEENESERIRRRBRELHEESL IR
BREEEHEMBE MM EREAREHNE  AE4

BRENETGERIUBEESMA -

BTHRFRARERER  AEETREARINMNE
BRI S B - BTHRSRE EEEAREET

ARERHLREGHEHEANRRETRE =%
——FERNTRBER - B AR EEN - B2
BAHEELEEREIRAT - E-T——F R
Z-ZFEt-A=1—H FEENAGBLENT

2011 2010

RMB’000 RMB’000

AR®TR AREFTT

Total borrowings (Note 19) BER(MF19) 617,500 190,000
Total equity B 1,642,034 1,548,325
Total capital WEK 2,259,534 1,738,325
Gearing ratio BfELE 27.33% 10.93%

Fair value estimation

The table below analyses financial instruments carried at fair value,
by valuation method. The different levels have been defined as
follows:

e Quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical
assets or liabilities (level 1).

o Inputs other than quoted prices included within level 1 that
are observable for the asset or liability, either directly (that is,
as prices) or indirectly (that is, derived from prices) (level 2).

o Inputs for the asset or liability that are not based on
observable market data (that is, unobservable inputs) (level 3).

KINGDEE INTERNATIONAL SOFTWARE GROUP COMPANY LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2011
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3 Financial Risk Management continueq) 3 MEREREE2)
3.3 Fair value estimation (continued) 3.3 AREEMEHE)

The following table presents the Group’s assets that are measured
as at fair value at 31 December 2011 and 2010.

TREREEEENRBER _T——FN_F-F
FrZA=T—HABHAREE -

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
) H2R #3E &t
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETFT  AREFTT AREFT ARETL
At 31 December 2011 —g2—%+-RA=1+—H
Assets BE
Available-for-sale financial assets AEHESREE - - 11,013 11,013
Total assets BEE - - 11,013 11,013
At 31 December 2010 —Z-Zf¥+-R=+—H
Assets BE
Available-for-sale financial assets AftHESHEE - - 10,000 10,000
Total assets BEE - - 10,000 10,000

The fair value of financial instruments traded in active markets is
based on quoted market prices at the end of the reporting period.
A market is regarded as active if quoted prices are readily and
regularly available from an exchange, dealer, broker, industry
group, pricing service, or regulatory agency, and those prices
represent actual and regularly occurring market transactions on an
arm’s length basis. The quoted market price used for financial assets
held by the Group is the current bid price. These instruments are
included in level 1.

The fair value of financial instruments that are not traded in an
active market is determined by using valuation techniques. These
valuation techniques maximise the use of observable market
data where it is available and rely as little as possible on entity
specific estimates. If all significant inputs required to fair value an
instrument are observable, the instrument is included in level 2.

If one or more of the significant inputs is not based on observable
market data, the instrument is included in level 3.

Specific valuation techniques used to value financial instruments
include:

° Quoted market prices or dealer quotes for similar
instruments.

e (Qther techniques, such as discounted cash flow analysis, are
used to determine fair value for financial instruments.

EERRMASEENERIANAAEERBEAERR
FANTSHREDE - BREANEMNEREESFR
B X5 B ERAL  TERBEREE
REES MAEREARRLAFRSEALLETNE
BNERMSRBE - ZhERARER AEES
EREREENTHEREAZHRENRE - HWETH
BRERIE -

REEERTGEENSRIAPIMSIMIATAR)
WAL BEMNBRBRERNET - AERTNEENATY
BRmSEE(WE)  BELKBIROTEM -
MHE-ERTANAABEMRNABEERBAR
ABRRYE  AZERTANAS2E -

M—EHLEBRGALFRETEETHEE - 8
ZEBMTAJIAEIE -
ANEESRTANSERERTERE

o FRUTANTLEBEXRZERE -

o HipRilr P EREREN - RUAEER
HEBTANRAEE -
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FEREmRME

Critical Accounting Estimates and Judgments

Estimates and judgments are continually evaluated and are based on
historical experience and other factors, including expectations of future
events that are believed to be reasonable under the circumstances.

4.1 Critical accounting estimates and assumptions

The Group makes estimates and assumptions concerning the
future. The resulting accounting estimates will, by definition, seldom
equal the related actual results. The estimates and assumptions
that have a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the
carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within the next financial
year are addressed below.

(a) Fair value of investment properties

The Group carries its investment properties at fair value
with changes in the fair values recognised in profit or loss.
[t obtains independent valuations at least annually. At the
end of each reporting period, the management updates their
assessment of the fair value of each property, taking into
account the most recent independent valuations. The key
assumptions used in this determination and the sensitivity of
the directors’ estimates of these assumptions to the carrying
amount of the investment properties are set out in Note 9.

(b) Revenue recognition

The Group uses the percentage-of-completion method in
accounting for its fixed-price contracts to deliver software
implementation services. Use of the percentage-of-
completion method requires the Group to estimate the
services performed to date as a proportion of the total
services to be performed. Were the proportion of services
performed to total services to be performed to differ by
10% from management’s estimates, the amount of revenue
recognised in 2011 would be increased/decreased by
approximately RMB66, 736,000 (2010: RMB37,614,000).
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4 Critical Accounting Estimates and Judgments

(continued)

4.1 Critical accounting estimates and assumptions
(continued)

(c)

(d)

(e)

Estimated impairment of trade receivables

Determination of impairment of trade receivables requires
management to estimate the present value of future cash
flows. This estimate is made on group basis and based on
the credit history of its customers and the current market
condition. It could change significantly as a result of change
in financial positions of customers. The impairment of trade
receivables for the as at 31 December 2011 would be
approximately RMB6,737,000 (as at 31 December 2010:
RMB4,415,000) lower/higher were the actual present value
of expected cash flows arising from settlement of receivables
to differ by 5% from management’s estimates.

Estimated useful lives of capitalised development
costs

The useful lives of capitalised development costs are
estimated based on historical experience, which include
actual useful lives of similar assets and changes in
technology. Were the estimated useful lives of capitalised
development costs to differ by 20% from management’s
estimates, the amortisation charge for 2011 would
be approximately RMB33,015,000 higher (2010:
RMB22,897,000) or RMB22,010,000 lower (2010:
RMB15,265,000).

Share-based payments

The fair value of options granted is estimated by management
based on various assumptions on volatility, life of options,
dividend paid out rate and annual risk-free interest rate,
excluding the impact of any non-market vesting conditions,
which generally represent the best estimate of the fair value
of share options at the date of grant.

Should the estimated fair value of the options granted to differ
by 10% from management’s estimates, the administrative
expense and the change in equity for 2011 will differ by
approximately RMB2,467,000 (2010: RMB2,183,000).

4 RBEHEHRFIE 2

41 WBEH{EHRRE®E)
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PR R TRE
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BE - ZEFEEREN  ERNEPZERE
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BENMEZGT -  WREAEERKZEE
ENRERERERTEENMG HES%MZE
8 —T——F+- A=+ HREKERNHE
REMREEOREHAREE,737,0000(=F—
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fEEFEAR BB AN E R ER

BRCRERANERFRIBEELLRET
BEREEENERFERTRLEMAE - &
ERMERBERANG T ERFHAEEEN
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FEREmRME

4 Critical Accounting Estimates and Judgments

92

(continued)

4.2 Critical judgment in applying the entity’s accounting
policies

(@)

(b)

KINGDEE INTERNATIONAL SOFTWARE GROUP COMPANY LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2011

Capitalisation of development costs incurred on
upgrading of existing software products

Costs incurred in upgrading existing software products
(primarily relating to upgrade of the existing features or
additions of new features/modules) are capitalised as
intangible assets when recognition criteria as detailed in Note
2.8(b) are fulfilled. Management has applied its professional
judgement in determining whether these software products
could generate probable future economic benefits to the
Group based on the historical experience of the success
of the existing products and the prospects of the markets.
Any severe change in market performance or technology
advancement will have an impact on capitalisation of the
development costs.

Income taxes

The Group is subject to income taxes in numerous
jurisdictions. Significant judgement is required in determining
the worldwide provision for income taxes. There are many
transactions and calculations for which the ultimate tax
determination is uncertain. The Group recognises liabilities for
anticipated tax audit issues based on estimates of whether
additional taxes will be due. Where the final tax outcome
of these matters is different from the amounts that were
initially recorded, such differences will impact the current
and deferred income tax assets and liabilities in the period in
which such determination is made.

According to Fa Gai Gao Ji [2011] No. 342 issued by relevant
tax authorities in the PRC, Kingdee Software (China) Co.,
Ltd. (“Kingdee China”) was qualified as national important
software enterprises and it was entitled to a preferential
enterprise income tax rate of 10% for the year ended 31
December 2010, which was valid for one year. Up to the date
of this report, the relevant tax authorities had not completed
the certification of the said identity for PRC software
enterprises for the fiscal year 2011. Nevertheless, the
directors are confident that Kingdee China will continuously
be qualified and recognised as national important software
enterprise for 2011 based on past records and their
fulfillment of the stipulated conditions. Therefore, the
directors believe that it is appropriate to apply the preferential
tax rate of 10% to calculate the deferred income tax assets
and liabilities of Kingdee China as at 31 December 2011.

4 RBEHEHRIE 2
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(b)
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Critical Accounting Estimates and Judgments
(continued)

4.2 Critical judgment in applying the entity’s accounting
policies (continued)

(b) Income taxes (continued)

According to applicable PRC tax regulations, withholding
tax will be levied on the dividends distributed by a company
established in the PRC to a foreign investor with respect to
profits derived after 1 January 2008. Deferred income tax
liabilities of RMB58,797,000 (2010: RMB58,037,000) had
not been recognised for the withholding tax and other taxes
that would be payable on the unremitted earnings of certain
subsidiaries in PRC. The directors of the Company believe
that the Group has sufficient fund in the overseas companies
with the Group and therefore the Company will not require
its PRC subsidiaries to declare dividends out of their profits
earned from 1 January 2008 onwards to 31 December 2011,
in the foreseeable future. Accordingly, the Group considered
that there was no need to provide withholding tax liability for
profits retained by its PRC subsidiaries for the years from
2008 to 2011.

Segment Information

The chief operating decision-maker has been identified as executive
directors of the Company. The executive directors review the Group’s
internal reporting in order to assess performance and allocate resources.
Management has determined the operating segments based on these
reports.

The executive directors consider the business from product perspective.
Upon the adoption of IFRS 8 ‘Operating Segments’, the Group has
determined that the operating segments:

Enterprise Management  —
Software Business

sales and implementation of enterprise
management software, provision of other
related services and sales of hardware
related to enterprise management
software arrangements.

Others — sales of middleware software business
and provision of online management
services

4 RBEHEHRFIE 2

42 ERZSEEHRROMBIG 2)

(b) FrERi(E)
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5 Segment Information continveq) 5 SHEEe
The chief operating decision-maker assesses the performance of the BREGEAREENSABOEEF BT EE D BOEER
operating segments based on the operating profit of each segment. B o REBH AR HEBHEEHRE o

Substantially all of the businesses of the Group are carried out in the PRC.

The segment information for the year ended 31 December 2011 is as —E——F+ZB=+—HHPERMT
follows:
Enterprise
management
software The Group
business Others  Unallocated Total
LREER
REEH Hth ROE KESH
RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AREFT AREFIL AREFL AREFL
Revenue (from external customers) KEIDEPRIWA 1,931,117 91,381 - 2,022,498
Operating profit/(I0ss) MERR/(B1B) 38,205 (8,014) 160,095 190,286
Finance costs BB A (12,285) (83) - (12,368)
Finance income BEUA 2,971 553 - 3,524
Finance income/(cost) — net MEWA(EE)-BE (9,314) 470 - (8,844)
Profit/(loss) before income tax HIRFERAET(BR) 28,891 (7,544) 160,095 181,442
Income tax (expense)/credit Fissi(BR) /B (9,600) (2,670) (16,010) (28,280)
Segment results DEER 19,291 (10,214) 144,085 153,162
Segment assets AHEE 2,386,843 147,535 496,925 3,031,303
Segment liabilities IHMAE 1,272,659 116,610 - 1,389,269
Additions to non-current assets Mg ERE
(other than financial instruments and (TEEERIAR
deferred tax assets) BEMBEEE) 371,776 7,875 207,763 587,414
Material non-cash expenses/(income) EXERE&ITH (KA)
Depreciation and amortisation FEREHE 202,379 744 - 203,123
Provision for doubtful trade and other RIZIRERE
receivables 19,700 2,112 - 21,812
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5 Segment Information continueq)

The segment information for the year ended 31 December 2010 is as

5 S#H#E#Ee
“E-TE+-B=+—AHHERNT :

follows:
Enterprise
management
software The Group
business QOthers Unallocated Total
TEER
RUER Hity Al SEA
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBFT ARETT AREFT AREFT
Revenue (from external customers) RE IR P RMA 1,371,770 64,851 - 1,436,621
Operating profit/(loss) R (BE) 270,211 (19,236) 49,643 300,618
Finance costs BERA (8,640) 42) - (8,682)
Finance income BEUWA 2,670 415 - 3,085
Finance income/(cost) — net MERA () -FE (5,970) 373 - (5,597)
Profit/(loss) before income tax HIBRFFBRAETN (Ei|) 264,241 (18,863) 49,643 295,021
Income tax (expense)/credit 5% (BH), B (13,320) @71 (4,964) (18,755)
Segment results DHER 250,921 (19,334) 44,679 276,266
Segment assets PBEE 1,868,115 100,981 289,162 2,258,258
Segment liabilities ABARK 658,427 51,506 - 709,933
Additions to non-current assets FEIEREEE
(other than financial instruments and (TEEERIAK
deferred tax assets) BIEHIBEE) 207,515 (2,944) 52,651 257,222
Material non-cash expenses/(income) EXAERLHTH (KA)
Gain on bargain purchases FERE = (39,370) - - (39,370)
Depreciation and amortisation e NEH 140,876 294 - 141,170
Provision for doubtful trade and other RIBRERE
receivables 1,469 313 - 1,782

The Company is domiciled in Cayman Island while the Group mainly
operates its businesses in the PRC. The result of its total revenue from
external customers is RMB2,022,498,000 (2010: RMB1,436,621,000),
and the total of revenue from external customers from other countries is
RMB31,050,000 (2010: RMB20,692,000) inclusive.

There is no single customer that contributed for over 10% of the Group’s
revenue for the years end 31 December 2011 and 2010.

ARRRBENHSHEREEISATELE - RENTE
ER@ali A B AR 2022,498,0007C( —E—FF : AR
1,436,621,0007C) * EFREBINIINIEPHBRARBAR
#31,050,0007T( ZE—Z4F : AR¥20,692,0007T)

BECZ-TFEN_Z——F+ A=t RILFEAEE
ARE-EPHEENRATHER10% -
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6 Land Use Rights — Group

96

|

6 LifERE-RE

2011 2010
RMB’000 RMB’000
IN: & AREFTT
Opening net book amount HREFE 79,449 81,785
Additions R 6,174 -
Amortisation charge (Note 24) BB (M) (1,940) (2,336)
83,683 79,449

Represented by: FEDAuNE
Cost AR 90,303 85,295
Accumulated amortisation charges RetiE (6,620) (5,846)
83,683 79,449

The Group’s interests in land use rights represent prepaid operating lease
payments and their net book values are analysed as follows:

In the PRC, held on:
Leases of between 10 to 50 years

TEREENEE
HAEE10FE50F 2[4

2011

RMB’000
ARBFT

83,683

AEEETHERENESRREBESN OERERN
MEEHERES  AREFEITOT :

2010
RMB’000
ARETT

79,449
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7 Property, Plant and Equipment — Group 7 PE BIARREG-FH
Computer
and related Office Motor  Leasehold Construction
Buildings  equipment  equipment vehicles improvements  in progress Total
BER ##

BF  HERE BORG BN DRkE ARIE &it
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETL ARWMTT ARBTR ARETL ARMTT ARETR ARETR

Year ended 31 December 2010 H§E_E-2%1+2R

=t-HLEE
Opening net book amount HEETE 266517 33,100 11,049 8,617 4,257 3,505 327,045
Additions b 218 24713 3,376 13,845 5,668 14,221 62,041
Revaluation surplus before transferredto ~ EAREMENSMHIBE -

investment properties, credited toreserve 5t A f 16,611 - - - - - 16,611

Transfer to investment properties BARENE (23479 - - - - - (23479
Disposals RE - (119) 9 (247) 32 - (1,003)
Depreciation & (10,562) (10,597) (2,286) (3,214) (3,924) - (30,583)
Closing net book amount HREERE 249,305 46,501 12,130 19,001 5969 17,126 350,632
At 31 December 2010 R-2-2%+ZA

=+-A
Cost AR 268,389 95,542 15,828 33,870 14,884 17,126 446,239
Accumulated depreciation ZiE (1908 (49.041) 669 (14869 6915) - (9607
Net book amount IRESME 249,305 46,501 12,130 19,001 5969 17,126 350,632
Year ended 31 December 2011 §E-E——&1+CR

Z+-ALEE
Opening net book amount HREFE 249,305 46,501 12,130 19,001 5,969 17,126 350,632
Additions B 16,655 30,860 4,518 9,022 8,034 139,064 208,153
Transfer A 38,419 - - - - (38,419) -
Disposals (Note 32) R (MiFE32) - (2,233) (319) (1,583) - - (4131)
Depreciation (Note 24) HE(HzE4) (10,017) (15,510) (3,265) (6,274) (1,458) - (36,544)
Closing net book amount HREmSE 294,362 59,618 13,048 20,166 12,545 118,31 518,110
At 31 December 2011 pAZE——%+ZR

=+-A
Cost BR 323,463 124,169 20,031 41,309 22918 118,371 650,261
Accumulated depreciation ZTE (29,101) (64,551) (6,983) (21,143 (10,373) - (132,151)
Net book amount IR E 294,362 59,618 13,048 20,166 12,545 118,371 518,110
Depreciation expense of approximately RMB14,359,000 (2010: AR®#14,359,0007t(Z2—ZF : AR#%14,923,0007T)
RMB14,923,000) has been charged in selling and marketing expenses, HMEERSAAHEREEERT - AKH8,586,0007T
RMB8,586,000 (2010: RMB7,575,000) in research and development (ZZ2—ZTF : ARK7,5750007) T EERAI AL R
costs, and RMB13,599,000 (2010: RMB8,085,000) in administrative AR AR U R ARE13599,000T(ZE—FF : AR
EXPenses. 8,085,000 T EE AT ATTHERS ©
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8 Intangible Assets — Group 8 ENpEE-5H

Acquired Computer
Development licenses and software

Goodwill costs  copyrights for own use Total
mismRe BH
[} MBEE EEiE R &t

RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETT AR®TT ARETT ARETT AREFTR
Year ended 31 December 2010 BE-_Z-Z25+-R8

=+—HLEE
Opening net book amount HRBREFE - 168,301 22,988 2,627 193,916
Additions i - 183,329 - 2,872 186,201
Acquired in business combination BANEAFRE - - 105,370 - 105,370
Amortisation charge BHEBR - (91,590) (14,760 (1,901) (108,251)
Closing net book amount HRIEERE - 260,040 113,598 3,598 377,236
At 31 December 2010 R-E-Z5+°8

=+-H
Cost [p#N 25,560 562,843 132,370 11,135 731,908
Accumulated amortisation BET#E (11,542) (302,803) (18,772) (7,537) (340,654)
Accumulated impairment ZERE (14,018) - - - (14,018)
Net book amount EmEE - 260,040 113,598 3,598 377,236
Year ended 31 December 2011 BE-_=2—&%+=-R8

=t—HLEE
Opening net book amount EAEREFE - 260,040 113,598 3,598 377,236
Additions 1R - 258,209 14,300 3,221 275,730
Acquired in business combination BB EASHEUG

(Note 35) (PF95¥35) 89,042 - 7,806 - 96,848

Amortisation charge (Note 24) BB R (ME4) - (132,061) (30,066) (2,512 (164,639
Closing net book amount HRIRERE 89,042 386,188 105,638 4,307 585,175
At 31 December 2011 n-s—%+=-AH

=+-H
Cost [B#N 114,602 821,051 154,476 14,356 1,104,485
Accumulated amortisation 2T (11,542 (434,863) (48,8398) (10,049) (605,292
Accumulated impairment RiPRME (14,018) - - - (14,018
Net book amount REBE 89,042 386,188 105,638 4,307 585,175
Amortisation charge of RMB32,578,000 (2010: RMB16,661,000) has AR#32,578,000T( =T —ZF : AR¥16,661,0007T) 2
been included in administrative expenses, and RMB132,061,000 (2010: BEBREAITRERT® - ARM132,061,0007L(=F—
RMB91,590,000) in research and development costs. ZF : AR¥91,500,0007T) 2 #HE BB AR LFAEK

Z
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FE B RRMGE

Investment Properties — Group 9 REVME-KE

2011 2010

RMB’000 RMB’000

AR®TT ARETT

At 1 January »—B—AH 289,162 236,511
Addition 2R 72,105 -
Transfer from owner-occupied buildings KERYEEA - 23,479
Fair value gains DR EEES 135,658 29,172
At 31 December »+=-B=+—-H 496,925 289,162

As at 31 December 2011, the investment properties included the whole
Block 2 and Block 3 of the Group’s research and development center
located in Shanghai, the south area on second floor of Block B, the
sixth, seventh and eighth floors of Block B of the Group’s research and
development center located in Shenzhen, B1 on 4th floor of W1 building
located in Hi-Tech Industrial Park of Shenzhen, all of which are completed
properties and have been under lease.

In addition, the Group commenced the construction of its new research
and development center located in Beijing (“Beijing New R&D center”)
during the current year. Management had assessed the utilisation of the
floor area for the Group’s own use, and decided to lease out the third,
fourth, fifth and sixth floors of the Block 1 upon completion of construction
in order to maximise the economic benefit to be brought to the Group.
Therefore, the aforesaid floors of the Block 1 of the Beijing New R&D
center, which were under construction as at the end of 2011, were
accounted for the investment properties.

At the end of each reporting period, the directors will assess the fair
value of each investment property, taking into account the most recent
assessment results indicated in independent valuations. The directors
determine a property’s fair value within a range of reasonable fair value
estimates.

BE-Z——F+-A=1+—H REVEBE LEHE
ROTE - ZSRERE - RYIFER OBR_ERE - <
B tE N\E2% afIfNWIBEENER -HE
ZE——F+tZA=1—H  MENREUMECLE R
ity

poh - AEER - T ——FRHRERRUNIE RO
gL - EREAN A TAREEANERRRRER
ZIMEROIFENS 45 6EEIMEHALERE AN
BN - Bt DENEZERAIL T ERL15RE
RHAAERRRARENEE -

FEESOEEREHEMEREEFEENBUGE -
ESERSHARESANZEAREANENERA - &
EREEROMBUMBER  EHEUERIDELAE
BRRHE - EEE—ERERAABENATBERNEED
PENER-

SRERRMHEEERAF —2-—F5§
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B BHRMEE

Investment Properties — Group (continueq)

The best evidence of fair value is current prices in an active market for
similar investment properties. Where such information is not available, the
directors consider information from a variety of sources including:

() current prices in an active market for properties of different nature
or recent prices of similar properties in less active markets,
adjusted to reflect those differences

(i)  discounted cash flow projections based on reliable estimates of
future cash flows

(i) capitalised income projections based upon a property’s estimated
net market income, and a capitalisation rate derived from an
analysis of market evidence.

In current year, the Group appointed an independent valuer, Guangheng
Xingyue Asset Appraisal Company Limited, to assess the fair value of all
its investment properties as at 31 December 2011.

At the end of the reporting period the key assumptions used by the
directors in determining fair value were in the following ranges for the
Group’s portfolio of properties:

Capitalisation rate B &
Expected vacancy rate BT ER

REME-%£8 2
D EENSEREAENR A RIEE EETIRN S

Wi - Mt FBAKREES  EFSUZETRBEERL
B B

) TREBNIBEARRTSNEMNE BT
ENTHERRNERTHOE A TE(EHEURBR
HEER)

(i)  RERTRLRAEGBOTRRS TR

(i) AEIFTBENMGETSREFENER RS
Al ARSI B ETMEEEATNE R

RZF——5F  ARECKEFTBUNFE ARG R
BERFEE-T——F1_A :Jr* ARRBUEFLEND
RfEE-

ERERR  EEHEETHEARETLAABERERN
BREREENT :

oo 2010

7%~9% 6.5%~6.8%
5%~8% 5%
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
FEBEBRME

9 Investment Properties — Group (ontinued) 9

The following tables show the sensitivity of the fair value of the investment
properties to the key assumptions were the director’s estimates to
increase or decrease by 10%.

REME-%£8 12
TRETMESHEEMIR10% @ BEEEHEND
A BEHBRBROGE -

2011
Favourable Unfavourable
change by 10% change by 10%
BRI E8H10% FFI2E10%
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®TR AR®TTR
Capitalisation rate BRI E 50,166 43,362
Expected vacancy rate BEEEXR 3,736 3,736
2010
Favourable Unfavourable
change by 10% change by 10%
BHIEE10% THIZE10%
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETT ARETFT
Capitalisation rate B 25,390 22,079
Expected vacancy rate HEREER 1,622 1,522
The Group’s interests in investment properties at their net book values are AEBERBENERRERmFESTMT
analysed as follows:
2011 2010
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®TR ARETT
In the PRC, held on: TEHREPRAEA -
Leases of between 10 to 50 years FREE10FE50F 2 [ 496,925 289,162
The following amounts have been recognised in the income statements of THFACERANEENERE -
the Group:
2011 2010
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETT ARETFT
Rental income HEWA 24,530 22,026
Direct operating expenses that generate EERSWARRELEHEDN
rental income HEREEER (93) (1,555)
24,437 20,471
SRERBEEEERAT ZE——FFR 101
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9 Investment Properties — Group (continued) 9 REVE-5EH2»
The future aggregate minimum rental receivables under non-cancellable R E B mEENSEEEREGWT
operating leases are as follows:
2011 2010
RMB’000 RMB’000
UN: & AR¥EFT
Not later than 1 year 1 21,676 23,266
Later than 1 year and not later than 5 years 1-5% 6,858 21,592
28,534 44,858
10 Available-for-sale Financial Assets — Group 10 ATHHESMEE - £H
2011 2010
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®TT AREFT
At 1 January ®—B—H 10,000 -
Addition B - 10,000
Net fair value gains recognised in other Etira Wah RN AR B
comprehensive income BEFNE= 1,013 -
At 31 December »+=A=+—H 11,013 10,000

102

The available-for-sale financial assets of the Group represented the
Group’s investment in a trust investment through a third party trust
company. The underlying assets of the trust are loans extended to a real
estate company located in northern China. The investment has a maturity
date on 1 May 2012 with a fixed beneficial rate of 8.1% per annum,
subject to deduction of 0.83% management fee per annum. The fair
values of the investment in the trust are determined based on cash flows
discounted using market interest rate and the risk premium specific to the
trust investment. The maximum exposure to credit risk at the reporting
date is the carrying value of the investment. The financial asset is not past

due or impaired.

KINGDEE INTERNATIONAL SOFTWARE GROUP COMPANY LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2011

AEEBAREECREEATEERBHNBEET
DETNERERERE - ZETEMNRELHRABURT
Bt -—REHERE A8 ZEAERNETFREE
F81%(FERIMFR083%MERE  JIHHA-S——FH
A—R) - ZETREN A BERRER & RERATHT
EUREAREBENRREETRTE - REEH - B8
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FEBEBRME

11 Trade and Other Receivables — Group and 11 EHEFREGMEKSE-SERLF

Company
Group Company
NG

2011 2010 2011 2010
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTT AREFIL AR®TR AREFL
Trade receivables (a) FEUWER R (a) 228,135 164,394 - -

Less: provision for impairment of A REZEE (D)
receivables (b) (93,392) (75,990) - -
Trade receivables — net EWERZFE 134,743 88,404 - -
Notes receivable eSS 27,279 3,597 - -
Advances to employees (c) REEREER2(C) 33,863 21,774 - -
Prepayments SEIREN 83,323 79,594 - -
VAT recoverable RE 7 M ER 61,603 63,664 - -
Amounts due from subsidiaries (d) JE B /BB /A B R A (d) - - 126,633 99,824
Other receivables Ef R 38,149 19,382 30,236 5,660
378,960 276,415 156,869 105,484
Less: non-current portion B IEREE - (3,520) - -
378,960 272,895 156,869 105,484

The fair values of trade and other receivables approximate their carrying

amounts.

The carrying amounts of the Group’s trade and other receivables are all

denominated in RMB.

The credit quality of financial assets that are neither past due nor
impaired are assessed by making reference to historical information
about counterparty default rates, reputation, liquidity and other financial

information.

AR R At YRR A BERIRERREE -

TEBRUERT L AR REEEERUARHE

v

I RER

REE

SRERRMHEEERAF —2-—F5§

MR ERENERKES  2EERX2HTME
BE - RPUEMEMHBERNER ERRFEEE
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11 Trade and Other Receivables — Group and
Company (continued)

@

Sales are generally made without prescribed credit terms in the
sales contracts but customers usually take 1 to 3 months to settle
the receivables. Trade receivables aged more than 3 months had
been considered for impairment. The ageing analysis of trade

11 BRERREMEERE-SERAF 2

@ AREEHECRTHEUESEREERS BF
FREE-EZEARAXNTE - AEEH={EAMN
THRYERSEZ B RAEEERE - BURERNR
BT

receivables is as follows:

2011 2010

RMB’000 RMB’000

AR®TT ARETT

0-90 days 0-90% 68,061 64,389
91-180 days 91-180% 30,787 14,264
181-360 days 181-360% 49,932 19,661
Over 360 days HRiA360K 79,355 66,080
228,135 164,394

All trade receivables were past due as at 31 December 2011 and
they had been considered for impairment.

Movement on the provision for impairment of trade receivables is as

BE_Z——F+-A=1t—R ZTEEHRHENE
W ARRIIEZ BRHRRERER o

b) BUERREREBIIRMT -

follows:
2011 2010
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®TR ARBTT
At 1 January »w—BA—H (75,990) (79,363)
Provision for impairment (Note 24) B (ff3E24) (21,812) (1,782)
Written off as uncollectible TSIl IR X 4,410 5,155
At 31 December ®»+=B=+—H (93,392) (75,990)

104
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The origination of provision for impaired receivables and other
receivables has been included in administrative expenses. The
other classes within the trade and other receivables balance do not
contain any significant impaired assets.

The maximum exposure to credit risk at the reporting date is the
carrying amount of each class of receivables mentioned above. The
Group does not hold any collateral as security.

AIREMERR R R R OREERED FATRER

oo BREU AR SR E AL YRS -

REOEMENTEENREEE

ERERD

FE MR 5 % HL A B M

FERROFEREBRAER LS RERHN
AAEE - ARETHFEEAEALERNERR -
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FEBEBRME

11 Trade and Other Receivables — Group and

12

Company (continued)

©

The amounts advanced to employees are interest free, unsecured
and repayable on demand. During the year, the Group also
advanced some cash to an executive director for business activities,

the information is as below.

11 RS AR - RER 2T =

© MREERENERSLE2E  BERRAREREE
B R-F-——FFKERNEEEX THR  %BX
HREZER ARRKED - EEERNERNT :

Advance to director

EEER
At the At the Maximum
beginning of end of outstanding
Name of key management the year the year during the year Term Interest rate
MRATEABRSE HmesE HxeE FAREHE BEGH flE
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTT ARETT ARBTT
2011
—FF
Mr. Xu Shao Chun - - 285 Repayable on demand 0%
(= REXRHEE
2010
—E-TF
Mr. Xu Shao Chun - - 490 Repayable on demand 0%
®"IE REKRER

Amounts due from subsidiaries are unsecured, interest free,

O BEMBARFEARER 28 ARKHEAR

repayable on demand and denominated in RMB. The fair values EXREEE - BUGEAR BEIUR FRRMNER
of the amounts due from subsidiaries approximate their carrying B -
value.
Inventories — Group 12 #R-%H
2011 2010
RMB’000 RMB’000
AER®TTT AREFT
Raw materials FRAE 747 754
Finished goods B 3,289 1,233
4,036 1,987

The cost of inventories recognised as expense and included in
cost of sales amounted to approximately RMB98,927,000 (2010:
RMB41,952,000) (Note 24).

BERABRRABRIMABERANSEAARE
T—ZF: AR¥41,952,0007C) (K

98,927,000 ( —
24) o

SRERRMHEEERAF —2-—F5§
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13 Implementation Contracts — Group

14

106

13 BE&R-%E

2011 2010
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®TR AREFT
Contract costs incurred BREZARKA 196,606 138,337
Contract profit recognised BEHERERFE 315,432 221,665
Less: progress billings o BHERE (284,085) (300,527)
Net balance sheet position for ongoing contracts ARIAR-FRER 227,953 59,475
Represented by: HRE
Due from customers on implementation contracts EREEERAER 292,467 119,834
Due to customers on implementation contracts EREFPERARR (64,514) (60,359)
227,953 59,475
Cash and Cash Equivalents — Group and Company 14 RE&RASEEM-SERLF
Group Company
] N
2011 2010 2011 2010
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®T ARETT AR®TR AREFT
Cash at bank and in hand (a) RITREFH2(0) 660,934 753,543 97,047
Less: Short-term bank deposits (b) B RERTTIE (D) (16,490) (117,017) - (60,527)
Pledged bank deposits (c) BHRITERC) (11,032) (5,070) - -
Cash and cash equivalents B MRS EEBY 633,412 631,456 35,133 36,520
(@  Cash atbank and in hand denominated in the following currencies: (@ HOREFRSUATEEE
Group Company
-] 7
2011 2010 2011 2010
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AR%TR ARBTT AR®TR AREFT
RMB AREE 614,719 650,225 35,000
HKD B 43,356 102,774 34,938 61,986
US Dollars EV 1,009 525 193 61
Singapore Dollars g T 216 19 - -
New Taiwan Dollars = 1,634 - - -
660,934 753,543 35,133 97,047

KINGDEE INTERNATIONAL SOFTWARE GROUP COMPANY LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2011




FE B RRMGE

[ Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements]

14

15

Cash and Cash Equivalents - Group and Company 14
(continued)
(o)  The effective interest rate on short-term bank deposits was 3.82%

(2010: 1.70%). These deposits have an average maturity of 10
months.

(c) The bank deposits were pledged to banks as performance
guarantee provided in certain job tenders. Such pledged deposits
will be released upon the closure of the processes.

Investments in and Loans to Subsidiaries — 15
Company

ReRkBReFRY-KRERLE @)

(b)

RHRROTERNERNER382%(ZF—FF

1.70%) * WLEFERHEHERA10MEA -

RMBARRERER -7

Company
7
2011 2010
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®TR AREFT
Unlisted shares (a) JE LR @)
Cost [B#N 364,473 339,806
Provision for impairment VAR (5,300) (5,300)
359,173 334,506
Loans to subsidiaries (b) e GIENGI ) 15,000 15,000
374,173 349,506
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15 Investments in and Loans to Subsidiaries -

Company (continued)

@

108

The following is a list of the principal subsidiaries at 31 December @

2011, all of which are limited liability companies:

Name

£:1

Directly held
=3 2o

Kingdee Software (China) Co., Ltd.
SHUH(RE)ERAT]

Kingdee International Software Group

(HK)) Co., Ltd. (*Kingdee HK")
SRERRHE(FE)BRAT
2 :50]))

Caterton Group Limited

Kingdee International Software Group

(Singapore) PTE Ltd.
SERBEF AR R) ERAT

Indirectly held
BEHE

Shenzhen Kingdee Middleware
Co., Ltd.
A EHEEERAR

Shanghai Kingdee Software Co., Ltd.

LEEGRHARRF

Place of
incorporation

i

The PRC
H

Hong Kong
Sl

BVI
RBERES

Singapore
Bl

The PRC
H

The PRC
o

15 RIBARIRBERER -8

BRBREERA

Principal activities
FEXH

Sales of software products,
development, manufacturing and
selling of software and hardware

products and provision of software-

related services.

HEREE  FE - HEREE
B RPEEm - AR HE
TR RMT AR

Sales of software products
HHERHEE

Investment holding
RERK  PAERXEER

Sales of software products
B ERHE

Sales of software products
B ERHE

Sales of software products
HHEREE

KINGDEE INTERNATIONAL SOFTWARE GROUP COMPANY LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2011

Registered
and paid-up
capital
HRRBEERE

RMB280,000,000
AE#280,000,0007T

HKD1,000,000
#1,000,0007T

uSD100
E7T1007T

SGD100,000
A% 7T100,0007C

RMB10,000,000
AE#10,000,0007T

RMB20,000,000
AR #20,000,0007T

UTRR-_E——5+_A=t—RIEWBRF "

% Interest
held
%HEES

100%

100%

80.2%

100%

65%

100%
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FE B RRMGE

15 Investments in and Loans to Subsidiaries —

Company (continued)

@

The following is a list of the principal subsidiaries at 31 December @
2011, all of which are limited liability companies: (continued)

Name

£

Beijng Kingdee System Technology
Co., Ltd.
TREGRFRMAERRA

Kingdee E-commerce Service
(Shenzhen) Co., Ltd. (formerly known
as Shenzhen Kingdee Mobile Internet
Technology Co., Ltd) (Note (i))
SHREFEBRE(RINERAA
(ZAERAIIT S K% 8 B BRI
BRRAE)()

Xiamen Kingdee Software Co., Ltd.
EFSRHHERAR

Shanghai Kingdee Software
Technology Co., Ltd.
FESRRHRRERAR

Sichuan Kingdee Software Co., Ltd.
Ml e ESRHAERAR

Chongging Kingdee Software Co., Ltd.

ERRRHARRAE

Beijing Kingdee Middleware Software
System Co., Ltd.
IRERRREHLRERGERAF

Kingdee E-commerce Technology
(Shenzhen) Co., Ltd.
SREFABEMORI)BRAA

Xuzhou Kingdee Software Co.,Ltd.
e REHERAR

Place of
incorporation
it

The PRC

F

The PRC
F

The PRC
o

The PRC
F
The PRC
o

The PRC
F

The PRC
o

The PRC
o

The PRC
F

Principal activities
FERK

Sales of software products
PHEREE

Provision of online financial services
TG B RS

Sales of software products
HHERHEE

Sales of software products
B EmHE
Sales of software products
HHERHEE

Sales of software products
B ERHE

Sales of software products

BHEMHE

Provision of online financial services
T8 5 AR

Sales of software products
B EmHE

15 RIBARIRBRER -7

Registered
and paid-up
capital
EmRSERE
USD540,000
271540,0007C

RMB12,000,000
AE#12,000,0007T

RMB300,000
AK#300,0007T

RMB10,000,000
AR#10,000,0007C
RMB10,000,000

AR #10,000,0007T

RMB10,000,000
AE#10,000,0007T

RMB2,000,000

AR #2,000,0007T

RMB30,000,000
AE#30,000,0007T

RMB300,000
AR#300,0007T

UTRR-E——45+_A=t—RIEZWBRF "
BREREERA : (£)

% Interest
held
%FEEE

100%

N/A

i

100%

90%

100%

100%

65%

80.2%

100%
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15 Investments in and Loans to Subsidiaries -

PR ERR MY

Company (continued)

@

110

The following is a list of the principal subsidiaries at 31 December @
2011, all of which are limited liability companies: (continued)

Name

£

Jiangsu Kingdee Software Co., Ltd.
IHSRHHERAR

Shanghai Kingdee Middleware
Software Systems Co., Ltd.
HEeBPRGRHERBRATF

Beijing Kingdee Government and
Public Software Co., Ltd. (Note (i)
IRm e HRBEREERAF)

Guangdong Kingdee Software
Technology Co.,Ltd.
BREGHHRBARRA

Beijing Kingdee Management Software

Co.,Ltd.
TR RERSHERAH

Zhuzhou Kingdee Software Co.,Ltd.

N ESRIFERAF

Zhongshan Kingdee Business and
Management Consulting Co.,Ltd.
RIS EEREAGRAR

Shanxi Kingdee Software Co.,Ltd.
PRES AR DA

Tianjin Kingdee Software Co.,Ltd.
RESREMERLA

Zhuhai Kingdee Software Co.,Ltd.
WESHKUHERAF

Place of
incorporation
it

The PRC

i

The PRC
F

The PRC
s

The PRC
o

The PRC
F

The PRC

HE

The PRC
H

The PRC
F

The PRC
o

The PRC
F

Principal activities
FERK

Sales of software products
PHEMEE

Sales of software products

Y EREE

Sales of software products
HHERHEE

Sales of software products
PHEmHEE

Sales of software products
B EmHE

Sales of software products
HHERHEE
Sales of software products
B ERHE
Sales of software products
HHEREE

Sales of software products
PHEmHEE

Sales of software products
HHEREE

KINGDEE INTERNATIONAL SOFTWARE GROUP COMPANY LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2011

15 RIBARIRBERER -8

Registered

and paid-up
capital
ERRBERE
RMB20,000,000
AR #20,000,0007T

RMB2,000,000

AR#2,000,0007T

RMB50,500,000
AR #50,500,0007T

RMB29,500,000
AE#29,500,0007T

RMB20,000,000
AR#20,000,0007C

RMB10,000,000
AR #10,000,0007T
RMB10,000,000
AE#10,000,0007T
RMB20,000,000
AR#20,000,0007C

RMB10,000,000
AE#10,000,0007T

RMB10,000,000
AR #10,000,0007T

UTRR-_E——5+_A=t—RIEWBRF "
BREREERA : ()

% Interest
held
%HEEE

100%

65%

N/A
NER

100%

100%

100%

100%

100%

100%

100%
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15 Investments in and Loans to Subsidiaries —

Company (continued)

@

The following is a list of the principal subsidiaries at 31 December @
2011, all of which are limited liability companies: (continued)

Name

£

Luoyang Kingdee Management
Software Co., Ltd.

B REERUERAR

Taiwan Kingdee Software Co.,Ltd
E2ESBURERAR

Yiyang Kingdee Software Co.,Ltd
wEeRHHERAF

Ningbo E-commerce Technology
Co., Ltd
EREFEBRMERAR

Shanghai Kehuagjixiao Technology
Co.,Ltd
NSRRI ARAR

Shanghai Kingdee Software Technique

Co., Ltd.
EEREHRITAR AR

Nantong Kingdee Software Co.,Ltd
R RCEERBAEARAR

Dongguan Kingdee Management
Software Co.,Ltd
REMSBERRHFARE LT

Shanghai Kingdee Medical Software
Co.,Ltd
PEeRBREEARRA

Guangzhou Wisetop Computer Co. Ltd

BN R @ AR A

Place of
incorporation
it

The PRC

F

Taiwan

AN -
BN

The PRC
o

The PRC
F

The PRC
i

The PRC
o

The PRC
F
The PRC

HE

The PRC
o

The PRC
F

Principal activities
FERK

Sales of software products
PHEREE

Sales of software products

B EmHE

Sales of software products
HHERHEE

Provision of online financial services
TG B RS

Sales of software products
HHERHEE

Sales of software products
HHERHEE

Sales of software products
B ERHE
Sales of software products

BHEMHE

Sales of software products
PHERHEE

Sales of software products
B EmHE

SRERRMHEEERAF —2-—F5§

15 RIBARIRBRER -7

Registered

and paid-up
capital
EmRSERE
RMB10,000,000
AR#10,000,0007T

TWD10,000,000

£%10,000,0007T

RMB10,000,000
AE#10,000,0007C

RMB20,000,000

AE#20,000,0007T

RMB8,800,000
AR #8,800,0007T

RMB20,000,000
AR #20,000,0007C

RMB1,000,000
AE#1,000,0007T
RMB10,000,000

AR #10,000,0007T

RMB30,000,000
AE#30,000,0007T

RMB2,024,800
AR#2,024,8007T

UTRR-E——45+_A=t—RIEZWBRF "
BREREERA : (£)

% Interest
held
%FEEE

100%

100%

100%

N/A

NiaF

100%

100%

100%

100%

100%

75%
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15 Investments in and Loans to Subsidiaries -
Company (continued)

112

@

(b)
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The following is a list of the principal subsidiaries at 31 December
2011, all of which are limited liability companies: (continued)

15 RIBARIRBERER -8

@

UTRR-_E——5+_A=t—RIEWBRF "
BREREERA : ()

Registered
Place of and paid-up % Interest
Name incorporation  Principal activities capital held
£ it FERK HMRMERE %IHEHES
Zhejiang Kingdee Software Co.,Ltd The PRC Sales of software products RMB35,000,000 100%
LS HRHHERAR F PHEMEE AR#35,000,0007

U

Kingdee E-commerce Service (Shenzhen) Co., Ltd.
(“E-commerce Service”) was established by the Group in
2009 for providing value-added telecommunication services
in the PRC. Beijing Kingdee Government and Public Software
Co., Ltd. (“Kingdee GPS”) was established by the Group
in 2010 for providing government management software
service in the PRC. Though the Group does not hold any
equity ownership in these two operating companies, under
certain contractual arrangements enacted among these
operating companies and their registered legal owners
with a subsidiary of the Company, the Group controls these
operating companies by way of controlling more than one
half of the voting rights of them, governing their financial
and operating policies and containing a right to appoint or
remove the majority of the members of their controlling
authorities, and casting the majority of votes at meetings of
such authorities. In addition, such contractual agreements
transfer the risks and rewards of these operating companies
to the Group. As a result, these operating companies were
presented as consolidating subsidiary of the Company.

The loans to subsidiaries are unsecured interest-free and not
expected to be repayable within 12 months.

(b)

() R-ZETNFEERYT-HFLASEETH
BRECFRINBR LR (HEEFESRS]) -
DATER BE N fR I B B AR B B RRTS - M2
—ZF  £ERY T T AR ET S BEE
HUBERAR (BRI ETRE] - WERBSER
REBIEEEHRE - EEHU ERRFAR
WEEAZIE MERBREREIUNET
B UBRGBUEMRFRA—FULEMEES
o AERIEME  CEBRAMAZAS  hE
BAE EMRFAREERINFRE - Bt -
BETEBREEETRBIEARRANBA
a—] o

RANBARRENERARKR 28 UTEHEHE
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FE B RRMGE

16 Share Capital and Premium — Group and Company 16 BRFHEFRE-FERLF
Number of Ordinary Share
Issued shares shares premium Total
BFBAE B REE RiniRE &t
(thousands) RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
(FR&) ARETT AREFT AREFT
At 1 January 2010 —E-SF—-f—H&% 2,053,392 53,812 381,374 435,186
Employee share option scheme EERERETE
— Value of services provided (Note 26) —REREHEE26) - - 21,830 21,830
— Exercise of share options —BIIRMABR 41,547 914 34,794 35,708
Repurchase and cancellation of own [l EE IR S5 (b)
shares (Note (b)) (3,330) (73) (12,640) (12,713)
At 31 December 2010 —Z-2¥+-R=+—H
&e 2,091,609 54,653 425,358 480,011
Bonus issue of shares (Note (a)) BT () 417,123 9,177 (9,177) -
Employee share option scheme EEBIRETE
— Value of services provided (Note 26) —EERERENEE
(Fi5£26) - - 24,667 24,667
— Exercise of share options — TR B 27,064 596 21,7117 22,313
Repurchase and cancellation of own [l B0 S S AR A ()
shares (Note (b)) (22,044) (485) (56,835) (57,320)
At 31 December 2011 —E—%+ZA=1+—H
e 2,513,752 63,941 405,730 469,671

The total authorised number of ordinary shares as at 31 December 2011 is
4,000,000,000 shares (2010: 4,000,000,000 shares) with a par value of
HKD 0.025 per share (2010: HKD 0.025 per share). All issued shares are
fully paid.

(@

As approved by the shareholders of the Company at the Annual
General Meeting on 20 April 2011, the Group issued bonus shares
on the basis of two bonus shares for every ten existing ordinary
shares held by the qualifying shareholders. The bonus issue was
credited as fully paid by way of capitalisation of an amount in the
share premium account of the Company.

During 2011, 22,044,000 shares (2010: 3,330,000 shares) were
repurchased by the Company on the Hong Kong Stock Exchange
at an aggregate consideration of approximately RMB57,320,000
(2010: RMB12,713,000) and they were then cancelled. The
nominal value of these shares of RMB485,000 (2010: RMB73,000)
was credited to the capital redemption reserve. The capital
redemption reserve of RMB485,000 (2010: RMB73,000) and
the premium arising from such purchase of approximately
RMB56,835,000 (2010: RMB12,640,000) were paid out of
the Company’s retained earnings and share premium account,
respectively.

BE-Z—Ft_A=1—H EBROETHALER

4,000,
B850

000,000/% (ZZ—=4 : 4,000,000,0000%) * FHHE
02588 (ZF—ZF : §RAE0.0255%) - FIEE

ke 2EERE -

@

PRE-Z——FWNA-THRRASRE - KL
AARRABRBERERE TRAARDEEMA
B e BTGB BN AR A BN EERD B
FRERZ FRANRFIERR

RZZT——%F  RAINBREDHARES57,320,0007T
(ZZ—ZTF: AR%12713,0007T) EEBESLR
SFTEBE T 22,044,000 (=% —Z F : 3,330,000
B B s - EEEEAARE485000T(=F
—ZF : AR73,0007T) KRR E RE BB
o BERMHMIRAEELNAARKA85000T(ZF
—ZF : AR¥730007T)  WENGEENAEARE
56,835,000 (—Z—ZF : AR®12,640,0007T) 72
RN AR TS RGBT -
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17 Other Reserves and Retained Earnings — Group 17 EfiEHEREZS2F -EERLAF
and Company

(@) Other reserves (a) Hftufsis
Group 0]
Statutory Capital
Merger Capital surplus  Revaluation  redemption
reserve reserve  reserve fund reserve reserve Total
HERR 1% {73 1
R ] LN LES B -1 ] &t
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
Note () Note (i) Note (ii

AREFT AREFTT AREFL ARETT AREFTT ARETR
FiEE() B = i) ()]
Balance at 1 January 2010 R-2-25—A—H

e 6,570 247,382 107,278 26,846 43 388,119
Fair value surplus of properties, MERR BEKE
plant and equipment (Note 7) (Pit5x7) - - - 16,611 - 16,611
Deferred tax relating to revaluation — BfEEHE LELT
reserve (Note 20) g R (izE20) - - - (1,661) - (1,661)
Appropriation to reserve funds BRHED 24,181 - - 24,181
Repurchase of own shares (Note 16)  [E1E&R% (% (ffisE16) - - - - 73 73

Balance at 31 December 2010 R-ZE—Z%+-A

and 1 January 2011 =t+—BRR
—2—%—A
—H&Ee 6,570 247,382 131,459 41,796 116 427,323
Fair value surplus of available-for-sale 7] it K& £ RIAE N f
financial assets (Note 10) BEKE(310) - - - 1,013 - 1,013
Deferred tax relating to revaluation B4 B A ERIEFMS
reserve (Note 20) B (H3E20) - - - (101) - (101)
Appropriation to reserve funds BRHED - - 7,303 - - 7,303
Repurchase of own shares (Note 16)  [E1E5R% (% (ffisE16) - - - - 485 485

Balance at 31 December 2011 WR-ZE——%+_1
=+—Ba#e 6,570 247,382 138,762 42,708 601 436,023
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FE B RRNEE

17 Other Reserves and Retained Earnings — Group
and Company (ontinued)

17 EftiEBREERFH -KERLE o)

(a) Other reserves (continued) (a) Hftuhafs =
Company A7
Capital
Redemption
reserve
% {7 [E1 B 2
RMB’000
AREFL
Balance at 1 January 2010 —E-Z§+ZRA=+—HER 43
Repurchase of own shares (Note 16) P i g (fiE16) 73
Balance at 31 December 2010 and 1 January 2011 —E-EF+-A=+—-HHN_=—&§
—B—RA#&& 116
Repurchase of own shares (Note 16) EleEACEA) 485
Balance at 31 December 2011 N _E——f+-A=+—RA#ER 601
()  The merger reserve represents the difference between the () AHREEHBRABAARNNEEBENEASESE

(i

(i)

carry amounts of the capital of the subsidiaries at the date on
which they were acquired by the Company and the nominal
amounts of the Company’s shares issued as consideration
for the acquisitions.

The Capital reserve is mainly caused by the capitalisation of
retained earnings of subsidiaries.

The Company’s subsidiaries in the PRC are required to
follow the laws and regulations of the PRC and their articles
of association. These subsidiaries are required to allocate
at least 10% of their net profits to the reserve fund until the
balance of such fund has reached 50% of their registered
capital. The reserve fund can only be used, upon approval
by the shareholders’ meeting or similar authorities, to offset
accumulated losses or increase capital.

(iii)

AARRYERTHBRNEENZR -

BARNRIZEAREBNBREMBARIMESL
MEE -

RRRH BB A B RKET EMER RRE R K
ENRRERAN - HETEMBAREANREFER
MAPRBRAPRI0%BEAREES  EERREES
RHRENEEMERNL0% - FREASEERRAE
FERERIERATRIERBRTERIENER -
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FEPBRRNGE

17 Other Reserves and Retained Earnings — Group

and Company (ontinued)

17 RftRERGEER -KERLE =)

(b) Retained earnings (b) H#ZEF
Group Gompany
$E N
RMB’000 RMB’000
AREFT AREFT
At 1 January 2010 R-_E—-Z£—A—H 419,040 124,868
Profit/(Loss) for the year FEEA/(HB) 271,710 (13,124)
Dividends paid relating to 2009 —ZENEFRE (39,776) (39,776)
Appropriation to reserve funds ERRES (24,181) -
Repurchase of own shares (Note 16) A&7 18 (Mf3E16) (73) (73)
At 31 December 2010 n-_E-Z2%+-A=+—-H 626,720 71,895
At 1 January 2011 R-E&—%—A—H 626,720 71,895
Profit for the year EERF 144,988 84,077
Dividends relating to 2010 —E-ZERS (60,320) (60,320)
Appropriation to reserve funds HEGES (7,303) -
Repurchase of own shares (Note 16) R e (HiE16) (485) (485)
At 31 December 2011 n-E—+-A=+—H 703,600 95,167

18 Share-based Payment — Group
(a) Share option schemes

As at 31 December 2011, the Company has two share option
schemes with outstanding granted options, namely, the 2002
Option Scheme (adopted on 24 April 2002) and the 2005 Option
Scheme (adopted on 11 July 2005), under which the directors
may, at their discretion, grant options to any qualifying participants
to subscribe for shares in the Company, subject to the terms and
conditions stipulated therein. No further options could be granted
under the 2002 Option Scheme as it had been terminated by the

Group.

In respect of 2005 Option Scheme, the exercise price of the share
options is determinable by the Board, but may not be less than
the highest of (i) the closing price of the shares of the Company
as stated in the daily quotation sheet of the Stock Exchange on
the date of grant, which must be a trading day; (i) the average
closing price of the shares of the Company as stated in the
Stock Exchange’s daily quotation sheets for the five trading days
immediately preceding the date of grant; and (iii) the nominal value
of the shares of the Company. The validity period of 2002 and
2005 Option Schemes are both ten years from the grant date.

116 KINGDEE INTERNATIONAL SOFTWARE GROUP COMPANY LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2011
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() MEBRHERHE

#HE-F-—#t-A=t+-8 KARAERNWE
BREE SRR BT - FAMEREBIET
RGN =2 Z_FMA=+MA) R -2FRF
AREREERIET Y (AR -FTRE LA+
B) #i - BETHERCALERSBERHBR
 RBALARG  RERBRREET HO KK
Rt o RARTERE-TT-FARERNBR
BB R R -
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FE B RRNEE

18 Share-based Payment — Group (ontinued) 18 IR EERMIARS KB 2
(a) Share option schemes (continued) (a) FEEREERE2)
(i) Movements in share options (i) BEREZH
Movements in the number of share options outstanding and MATTERBRESE kBB MET 91T
their related weighted average exercise prices are as follows: EREEHMT -

2002 Option Scheme 2005 Option Scheme

200281 = 20058 g &

Average Average Total

exercise No.of  exercise No. of No. of

price options price options options

BBFY BBFY

HaRRRE TEE {20 ] EE {2

HKD  thousands HKD  thousands  thousands

(B%) (F&) (&%) (F&) (FzH)

At 1 January 2010 N _Z—-ZF—A—H 0.60 33,872 0.93 243,499 277,371

Granted BEH - - 2.59 36,120 36,120

Exercised 217 0.62 (24,330) 0.99 (25,526) (49,856)

Lapsed B 0.55 (270) 0.54 (6,792) (7,062)
At 31 December 2010 R-E—-Z£+ZA

=t+—-H 0.52 9,272 1.18 247,301 256,573
Currently exercisable as at 31 NZE—ZEF+_H

December 2010 =t+—HA7E 0.52 9,272 0.77 90,953 100,225

At 1 January 2011 n-_=——&—H—H 0.52 9,272 1.18 247,301 256,573

Granted B - - 4.07 39,000 39,000

Exercised B 0.50 (1,619) 1.25 (25,557) (27,176)

Lapsed Bk 0.54 (3,481) 1.44 (8,609) (12,090)
At 31 December 2011 n-E——%+ZH8

=+-—H 0.61 4,172 1.66 252,135 256,307

Currently exercisable as at 31 R-Z——%+=H

December 2011 =t+—AT{TE 0.59 4,172 1.05 106,310 110,482
The numbers of the share options in above movement, as PA F B SE  h  B IS R B IRE E R
well as their exercise prices have been adjusted to reflect the BOREE-E—BE— - BRTARME
effect of bonus issue of share mentioned in Note 16(a) as if 16(a)H 2 -

the bonus issue of shares occurred at 1 January 2010.
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FEPBRRMEE

18 Share-based Payment - Group (ontinueq)
(a) Share option schemes (continued)

@

(i)

118

Movements in share options (continuead)

During the year ended 31 December 2011, 12,960,000
share options (during the year ended 31 December 2010:
960,000 options) were granted to directors of the Company.

In 2010, 2,400,000 share options were granted to a related
party, which is a company wholly owned by Mr. Xu Shaochun,
the chairman and executive director of the Company.

As a result of the options exercised during the year ended
31 December 2011, 27,176,000 ordinary shares (2010:
49,856,000 ordinary shares) were issued by the Company.
The weighted average price of the shares at the time these
options were exercised was HKD1.21 per share (2010:
HKDO.81 per share).

All the comparative figures above have taken into account the
effect of bonus issue of shares mentioned in Note 16(a).

Outstanding share options

Details of the expiry dates, exercise prices and the respective
numbers of share options which remained outstanding as at

18 LR SERHZARS K8 2
(a) MBRIEHEI (&)

(i)

(i)

BREZE(E)

BE-T——F+-_A=1+—8B KRAEZE
12,960,000 B REHE-_Z—ZF+ =4
=+—H : 960,000/) EMEE) -

RZZ—ZEEARAMBEBRAART
2,400,000 k1% - ZEH AR ANRIEERE
BHOBLEER o

ZE——FEF  IEMBREERARRRT
wnmow%aLwifz TEE : 1ENE
A B B ) ] 3£1749,856,000 % L @A) © 17
FR SRR IMETEREASR 2108T
(ZZT—Z5E : GMR0.81ET) °

A LI REFHE L E BRITARNIE16()
W& o
RITEEE

—F——F+-A=+-HRZE-ZTF+=
H +—H ' WRTENERENS ‘JHEEI 11

31 December 2011 and 31 December 2010 are as follows: BREEMHEFEDNT :
Numbers of share options
B8
Range of exercise price after
Expiry Date within the bonus issue of the shares 2011 2010
L) BinHa & SRITERER —E——F —T-%F
HKD per share (thousands) (thousands)
() (F&t) (F&h)
2013=F—=%# 0.35-0.51 1,116 2,052
2014 = —[4 0.51-0.80 3,056 7,220
2016 =T —4F 0.56-0.72 92,912 100,371
201722 —+F 0.94-1.81 14,493 19,097
201822 —N\F 0.95-1.75 39,778 52,113
2019=F— & 1.16-1.37 33,028 39,600
20202 %% 3.11-4.25 32,924 36,120
2021 =2 ——% 3.75-4.28 39,000 -
256,307 256,573

KINGDEE INTERNATIONAL SOFTWARE GROUP COMPANY LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2011




Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e B RRMEE

18 Share-based Payment — Group (ontinueq)

(a) Share option schemes (continued)

(ili) Fair value of options

The weighted average fair value of options granted during
the year determined using the Binomial valuation model
was HKD1.50 per option (2010: HKD 1.21 per option). The
significant inputs into the model were weighted average share
price of HKD 4.27 (2010: HKD 3.11) at the grant date, the
exercise price shown above, volatility of 53% (2010: 53%),
expected dividend paid out of HKD 0.060 per share (2010:
HKDO0.046), an expected option life of 10 years (2010: 10
years) and an annual risk-free interest rate of 0.13% (2010:
0.18%). The volatility measured at the standard deviation of
expected share price returns is based on statistical analysis
of daily share prices over the period from the ending of the
locking period to the grant date of share options. All the
comparative figures above have taken into account the effect
of bonus issue of shares mentioned in Note 16(a).

The share options granted during the year ended 31
December 2011 were divided into four tranches on an equal
basis. The first tranche can be exercised after one year from
the grant date, and then the remaining tranches will become
exercisable in each subsequent year.

19 Borrowings — Group

18 LRZSERHZFARS K8 2

(@) FERREERE2)
(i) BRENLAER

TE IR B AR /) 2 B B FI A Binomial f B
EXETATRRESE15T(ZE—24F
BIRESE1.21T) HREXBANEXRER
BB RESEL 27T (2~
THE B3 11T) C N EAPINTEE - B
R B $R53% 60K E) (=T —T4 : 53%) - TAH]
kB EIER0.0607T(—T—Z4F « 510.046
L) BRENEA THFEI0F(ZT—FF
10F) BHEFZTRRBMNEI13%(ZE-F
F:018%) ° RREHRELROEZEEMT
ENRBEE  RERELEHERZBRIER
A EEN S ERENRTITE - fEE
BB THRLERETARMTI6@QME
2,

HE-Z——F+- A=+ BRENERET
B RO - E- AT REL B HE—F%1T
& HBBARERERFREATITE -

19 ER—-%H

2011 2010
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTT AR®EFT

Non-current FiRE
Long-term bank borrowings, unsecured REBFTER - BER 597,500 190,000

Current E

Current portion of long-term borrowings, unsecured REBRITEFR R, - SR 8,000 -
Short-term bank borrowings, unsecured RITER - EHA 12,000 -
617,500 190,000

The Group’s bank borrowings mature until 2014 (2010: 2013) and bear
average interest rate of 7.05% annually (2010: 5.13% annually) and are
wholly repayable within 5 years.

AEENOFTERIFAA-Z—MFE(ZZ-24 : 3B
BAZZ—=%F) RIEFNERTHERFNER7.05%
(ZZ2—ZF :513%) - P2 HEREESFHNEE ¢
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FEPBRRMEE

19

20

120

Borrowings — Group (continued)

At 31 December 2011, the Group’s borrowings were repayable as
follows:

19 ER-%8»)
—E—F+-f=1-0  KEBERGEEHNT

Bank borrowings
BITER

2011 2010
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®TR AREFT
Within 1 year 1R 20,000 -
Between 1 and 2 years 1224 195,900 -
Between 2 and 5 years 2E55F 401,600 190,000
617,500 190,000

The exposure of the Group’s borrowings to interest-rate changes and the
contractual repricing dates at the balance sheet dates are within 1 year
(2010: within 1 year).

The fair value of the non-current borrowings as of 31 December 2011 is
RMB618,077,000, which is based on cash flows discounted using a rate
based on the borrowing rate 6.56% (2010: 6.10%).

The fair value of the current borrowings equal their carrying amount as
the impact of discount is not significant.

The Group’s borrowings are all denominated in RMB.

Deferred Income Tax — Group

The analysis of deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities is as
follows:

20

REER FEENEFENEEYRANENEERDR
EENRRA—FUA(ZE-TF : —FHUA) -

BE-Z——Ft-A=t-AFRBEANIABEEAA
K%618,077,0007 * HREREREUNER
T2F : 6.10%) T RHE -

F

1%6.56% (=

HRTROFETA - RBEFOREEEL AL BEMEE -

AEENEFEHBEMARKE

i S P i 1R — SR

BIEMSHEENMETRERBEONMT :

2011 2010
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®TT ARETT
Deferred tax assets: EEFEHERE
— Deferred tax assets to be recovered after more —BB12EABKENELHEERE
than 12 months 14,384 8,327
— Deferred tax assets to be recovered within 12 months  —7£1218 8 R E BB IE B & E 10,122 8,027
24,506 16,354
Deferred tax liabilities: EIEFSHAR
— Deferred tax liabilities to be recovered after more —BE12EABKERNELHIBEE
than 12 months (25,152) (30,282)
— Deferred tax liabilities to be recovered —FE12EARKEMELHEE R
within 12 months (46,321) (14,909)
(71,473) (45,191)
Deferred tax liabilities FRFEHAR (46,967) (28,837)
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20 Deferred Income Tax — Group (continued) 20 ERIEEFRBIR-KE 2
The movements in deferred tax assets and liabilities during the year are as EIEFETERFE8ENMT
follows:
Credited/ Credited/
(Charged) Credited/ (Charged) Credited/
At totheincome  (Charged) At totheincome  (Charged) At
1January  statement toReserves 31December  statement toReserves 31 December
2010 (Note 28) (Note 17) 2010 (Note 28) (Note 17) 201
ERER ERER
AE/ BELE R-2-BfF AE/  EFLHE R-E——f
RZB-2F (HB% (HK%) +ZA (108) (HR}) +ZA
—-B—-B (Wi28)) (M&E17)  =+—-B  (M:E28)  (WeE17) =+-8
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RNB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETT AREBTT ARETR ARETT ARETT ARETT ARETR
Deferred tax assets ERFEHEE
~ Provision for bad and doubtful debts -RIZREE 10,186 (3,484) - 6,702 3,966 - 10,668
- Deferred income —EEHA 6,273 2,054 - 8,327 2,734 - 11,061
— Amortisation of computer software — e 502 823 - 1,325 1,452 - 2111
16,961 607) - 16,354 8,152 - 24,506
Deferred tax liabilties EEFERAR
~ Deferred development costs —BRRERAE (11,962) (14,042) - (26,004) (12,616) - (38,620)
— Fair value gain of investment properties ~ — R EBNENL BEEE (14,609 2,917) (1,661) (19,187) (13,565) - (32,752)
~ Fair value gain of avalable-for-sale AR EEREERR
financial asses BEZ - - - - - (101) (101)
(26,571) (16,959) (1,661) (45,191) (26,181) (101) (1,4713)

BT EAL A Al HA A LA B DA R B 60 B ARG AR A
BAEBAAONE - BZNERUTERALER  bXE
EHRAETASHEE - AN AFEEEEREREREE
FRMERALE - AEEWREEAEMNAREAAR
#389,364,0007T( ZE—Z 4 : AK¥154,406,0007T) 93
RAREHEESD IR —E——FE-T—RFRYU-

Deferred income tax assets are recognised for tax loss carry-forwards
to the extent that the realisation of the related tax benefits through the
future taxable profits is probable. Due to the fact that the directors are
not certain of whether future taxable profit would be available, the Group
did not recognise deferred income tax assets in respect of tax losses
amounting to RMB389,364,000 (2010: RMB154,406,000) that can be
carried forward to offset against future taxable income, all of which will
expire in 2012 to 2016 respectively.

K420 - FREBERAEETER - ——FE
BREESERBEAGBAERHHLENDE  KEER
F10%REER B EREMSHEENELE -

As mentioned in Note 4.2(b), the Group applied the preferential tax rate of
10% to calculate the deferred tax assets and liabilities of Kingdee China
because the directors are confident that Kingdee China will continuously
be qualified and recoginised as a national important software enterprise
for 2011.
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21 Trade and Other Payables — Group and Company

21 EERRAMESR-KRERLR

Group Company
%M A7

2011 2010 2011 2010

RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000

AR¥TT AREFT ARBTR AREFT

Trade payables (a)(b) FER R (@) () 35,308 15,605 - -
Salary and staff welfare payables e Ee kB TR 75,313 39,511 - -
Advances from customers RPRE 71,157 72,239 - -
VAT and business tax payable JERHIGET RS ER 57,574 37,420 - -
Accrued expenses EiRER 82,639 41,062 - -
Construction fee payable B TI2F0E 11,062 22,703 - -
Land use rights fee payable JEAS LIt FRRERTA - 3,840 - -

Outstanding consideration for business R EA HHEE

combination 82,395 39,200 - -
Deposits of distributors RHEERES 22,078 16,647 - -
Others Hith 28,071 27,011 736 15
465,597 315,238 736 15
(@  The fair values of trade and other payables approximate their @ ENERREMESRZAAEERIRSROER -

122

carrying amounts.

The carrying amounts of the Group’s trade and other payables are

RRAZRASERENERREMRN A REE

all denominated in RVB. BEXBUAREE -
At 31 December 2011, the ageing analysis of the trade payables b MZEB-——F+ZA=+—0 FEEENEIRE
based on invoice date is as follows: BERBNRRIITOT
2011 2010
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®TT ARETT
0-180 days 0-180% 31,631 14,973
181-360 days 181-360& 1,033 314
Over 360 days HB1B360K 2,644 318
35,308 15,605
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FE B RRNEE

22 Deferred Income — Group

22 EEWRA—-%E

2011 2010

RMB’000 RMB’000

AR®TT AREFT

Deferred service fee income (a) B EERBKAR) 101,217 83,268
Deferred government grant (b) EFEET IR B #585(0) 48,128 32,231
149,345 115,499

(@  The amount represents aggregate revenue billed to and received
from customers in relation to software maintenance services which
had not yet been recognised by the Group as the contractual

service periods extend beyond the financial year end.

@ HFAREEACAEFRHEEXRDRITLAR
MRRRE A ARERERA - BARBHREBRESF

R BAKERREIAR

(b)) Movement of deferred government grant is as follows: b) IREHERANEHNT
2011 2010
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTT AREFT
At 1 January ®»—A—H 32,231 15,360
Additions hi N 48,364 38,416
Recognised in the income statement RIERRER (32,467) (21,545)
At 31 December »+=-B=+—H 48,128 32,231
Amount represents various subsidies granted by and received from ZHBEREAREBHENFEIER MhT BTEE
local government authorities for financing various research and W) IEHERD o SRR BN R RE R (B R
development projects conducted by the Group. These subsidies will TEARBMFEIAE AR ) ERIER R -
be recognised as income when certain stipulated conditions of the
grant are met (usually when after the related development project is
completed).
23 Revenue 23 BXRHE

Turnover consists of sale of software, software implementation service,
software solution consulting and support service and sale of computer
and related products. Revenue is stated net of applicable value-added tax
(“VAT”) in the PRC and comprises the following:

LERERYUMHE [ ERRBEA - BHETRDBAL

SFERBBARERREBERBE
RENEEN - EXBEEUTRA:

o ERECHKERK

2011 2010
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®TR AREFTT
Sales of software HHEE 1,088,015 812,554
Software implementation services BHEHEREBA 509,289 352,307
Software solution consulting and support services BHARBHA R FHRERA 346,577 253,687
Sales of computers and related products BIEEEEREE 78,617 18,073
2,022,498 1,436,621

SRERBEEEERAT ZE——FFR 123



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

FEPBRRNGE

24 Expenses by Nature 24 EEEIITHER
Expenses included in cost of sales, selling and marketing expenses, SIRREENA - SHEREEER  MARBEXARITH
research and development costs and administrative expenses are ERAMERSITIT -

analysed as follows:

2011 2010
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®TR AREFT
Research and development costs W KB g AR
Amounts incurred BEX e 294,872 213,064
Less: development costs capitalised W BNz B A (258,209) (183,329)
Add: amortisation (Note 8) s EA 2 RN 8 (i 8) 132,061 91,590
168,724 121,325
Employee benefit expenses (Note 26) EEEFIFX (H+26) 1,439,931 865,066
Less: amount included in development costs B BRI RARKAZ 25 (228,172) (180,848)
1,211,759 684,218
Depreciation (Note 7) TEET) 36,544 30,583
Less: amount included in development costs B BERHRERAEKAZ 2% (8,586) (7,579)
27,958 23,008
Cost of inventories consumed (Note 12) SEEFERA(HE12) 98,927 41,952
Amortisation of acquired licenses and copyrights (Note 8) {2 ki 4 ([iErs) 30,066 14,760
Amortisation of computer software for own use (Note 8) (5 FAE IS 45 (Fi5:8) 2,512 1,901
Amortisation of land use rights (Note 6) i AR 8 ([ 7E6) 1,940 2,336
Impairment of receivables (Note 11) FEN ZRE (BTEE11) 21,812 1,782
Loss on disposals of property, plant and equipment BEWHE - s L REEE(HS2)

(Note 32) 511 149
Auditors’ remuneration ZEEhi % 1,600 1,500
Advertising costs BERA 124,807 134,546
Sales promotion costs SHEH RN AR 88,662 62,846
Professional service costs EXREER 22,195 16,429
Traveling costs ERE 83,931 65,868
Rental and utilities He Rk BEXEH 60,254 43,431
Qutsourcing services VB REE 158,954 82,709
Office expenses BN < 43,210 29,841
Training expenses peilE= 13,524 16,852
Tax and surcharge Fie KB A0 46,547 20,266
Others Hh 49,693 41,275
Total cost of sales, selling and marketing HERT BEREEST  HRRAR

expenses, research and development costs BEROTHEREHE

and administrative expenses 2,257,586 1,406,994
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FEBEBRME

25 Other Gains — net

26

|

25 HftlgA —BE

2011 2010
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®TR ARBTFT
VAT refund (a) HEHEEQ) 183,419 151,605
Government grant BSEE 8k 82,433 27,187
Rental income — net (Note 9) HeE WA —FE(FF) 24,437 20,471
Gain on bargain purchases of business combination REBE - 39,370
Re-measurement of the contingent consideration for SHHESMEBL

business combinations (3,740) -
Others Hit 3,167 3,186
289,716 241,819

(@ According to the current tax regulations in the PRC, the @ BEATHEBEHE SHEG s REMEEER

development and sales of computer software are subject to VAT
with an applicable rate of 17%. In 2011, the State Department
issued a circular regarding the “Taxation Policy for Encouraging the
development of Software and Integrated Circuits Industry” (Guo Fa
[2011] No.4). Pursuant to the Circular, software enterprises which
engage in the sales of self-developed software in the PRC and
pay VAT at a rate of 17% are entitled to VAT refund to the extent
that the effective VAT rate of the sales of the software in the PRC
exceeds 3% of the sales amounts.

Employee Benefit Expenses
(Including Directors’ Emoluments)

7% HREGMEED - R-F——F  BHREAND
BE-SEBRANERNENEREXRERETHRER
RSB A (B 201) R4S XM - RIRFZBA > #=F
——FRA BER-RARAREABTRELE
B ER - RR17%H R BUOEER K - HEEE
RERNAEB3% MBI ETIMIARER -

26 EREFAZ(EESEHS)

2011 2010

RMB’000 RMB’000

ARBTR AREF T

Wages, salaries and bonus T% 2R NS 1,077,314 630,901

Commissions SHERRK 121,119 87,222

Staff welfare B T /& A 35,021 23,060

Pension scheme contributions (a) EREEIE @) 181,810 102,053
Share options granted to directors and employees EEREEERBERE(HF16)

(Note 16) 24,667 21,830

1,439,931 865,066
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=
&a

PR R MY

26 Employee Benefit Expenses (Including Directors’
Emoluments) (ontinueq)

126

(@)

(b)

KINGDEE INTERNATIONAL SOFTWARE GROUP COMPANY LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2011

The Group participates in defined contribution retirement schemes
organised by the relevant local government authorities in the
PRC. The Group is required to make monthly contributions to
the retirement schemes at rates ranging from 8% to 22.5%,
depending on the location of the subsidiaries, based on the basic
salaries of eligible employees. The local government authorities are
responsible for the pension liabilities to retired employees. Forfeited
contributions made by the Group on behalf of employees who leave
the scheme prior to full vesting of the contributions cannot be used
by the employer to reduce the existing level of contributions.

Directors’ and senior management’s emoluments

The remuneration of each director for the year ended 31 December
2011 is set out below:

Name of Directors Fees
EEn4a s
RMB’000

AREFT

Mr. Xu Shao Chun 100

BRAOELE

Mr. Feng Guo Hua (Note (i)) 100

JREIEE (F3E())

Mr. Chen Deng Kun 100

REHELE

Mr. Ho Ching Hua(*) 150

(AT EE 5 A

Mr. James Ming King 150

TREE

Ms. Yang Zhou Nan(*) 200

BEBELL

Mr. Wu Cheng(*) 150

Mr. Yeung Kwok On(*) 200

HER L

Mr. Gary Clark Biddle(*) 150

Gary Clark BiddleZt £*

()  Mr. Feng Guo Hua was appointed as executive director of the
Company on 15 March 2011 and resigned subsequent to
year end on 2 February 2012.

26 ERBHAXZ(EETHR)

@)

(b)

Salary
e
RMB’000
ARBFT
1,506
2,634

715

U

AEMLEATEE W EBREEESHNTEEN
BIRETE - AEBBABRAEREENELTEH
8%Z£22.5% (15 FHB AR 2 FEMME) RRIKEF
BER BN B EARZERAEEZI AR
e - 2EEREBRARIVE 2 EE-FTAIR L%
BR M - TEaEE AR EEIUKE

ESREREERENME
BE-Z——F+-A=1+-AItEE BUEEMN
FHEIT

Employer’s

contribution

Discretionary Share to pension
bonuses options scheme
R

BiRgs FRBRE EEHEm
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBFT ARBF ARBF
493 - 20

840 - 55

289 521 20

ARAR-E——F=ATHEAERBEELEEE
RADRANPITES  R-F--F_A=R0  KH
EREFEARARRTERRM -
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e B RRMEE

26 Employee Benefit Expenses (Including Directors’ 26 EERFRAXZ(SEEMEL) 2
Emoluments) (ontinueq)

(b) Directors’ and senior management’s emoluments (b) EERERTEBOM2)
(continued)
The remuneration of each Director for the year ended 31 December HE_T-THRT-_A-t-ALFE SUEFH
2010 is set out below: BT
Employer’s
contribution
Discretionary Share to pension
Name of Directors Fees Salary bonuses options scheme
RIREE
EEeEd e e MEEe R EEHT
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBFT ARBFT ARBFT AREFT ARET
Mr. Xu Shao Chun 100 1,049 636 - 19
RO BERE
Mr. Chen Deng Kun 100 604 279 282 19
BREELE
Mr. Ho Ching Hua 150 - - - -
BEES A
Mr. James Ming King 150 - - - -
SHEAE
Ms. Yang Zhou Nan(*) 150 - - - -
taAmZ LT
Mr. Wu Cheng(*) 100 - - - -
RELAE
Mr. Yeung Kwok On(*) 150 - - - -
el
Mr. Gary Clark Biddle(* 128 - - - -
Gary Clark Biddle %t £*
During 2011, no director or supervisor of the Company (1) received TE—FEARETEAMNESRERE(NKIIEREA
any emolument from the Group as an inducement to join or upon DMAREE ARG S KQUEIERFARLE
joining the Group; or (2) received any compensation for loss of EEYERERLMETORE - HQMEXREMEMLM
office as a director or management of any member of the Group; or Heo(ZE—ZF: %)
(3) waived or agreed to waive any emoluments (2010: Nil).
Those directors marked asterisk (*) are independent non-executive LEROEINAARAR - E——F+ZA=+—AF=

directors of the Company as at 31 December 2011 and 2010. Z-SF+-A=+—-BBIFRTES -
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FEPBRRMEE

26 Employee Benefit Expenses (Including Directors’ 26 EERFMAXZ(SEEME) 2

Emoluments) (ontinueq)
(c) Five highest paid individuals

(c) LfuS™HFMAL

The five individuals whose emoluments were the highest in the AEEARERNGRHEMMATRE=((ZZ-F
Group for the year include three (2010: two) directors whose F:Z)ES - MMINFWE X ERNHITRER o
emoluments are reflected in the analysis presented above. The AEEIHEBRMAL(ZE—2F : =) ALH
emoluments payable to the remaining two (2010: three) individuals BT

during the year are as follows:

Basic salaries, housing allowances,

2011 2010
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®TT ARETT

EXHE - BEER - HRR

other allowances and benefits in kind MEYF = 1,236 2127
Bonuses #e 816 1,000
Pension scheme contributions BIRET 2T 4l 92
Share options B - -

2,123 3,219

The emoluments fell within the following bands:

HEFMETIIAARER :

Number of individuals

A8
2011 2010
Emolument bands HEE
HKDO — HKD1,000,000 08 % 21,000,000/ 8 1 1
HKD1,000,001 — HKD1,500,000 1,000,001/ Z1,500,00075 % 1 2
27 Finance Costs — net 27 MBERE-RE

2011 2010

RMB’000 RMB’000

ARBTRT AR¥TF T

Interest income (Note 32) FlEWA (KIE32) 3,524 3,085
Bank charges (Note 32) RITFEE (H:E32) (189) (489)
Net foreign exchange loss ERERFE (911) (1,824)

128

Interest on borrowings wholly repayable within 1 year

—FRRFENESH S (ME32)

(Note 32) (25,958) (6,369)
Less: interest capitalised in construction in progress A ERETRRERMEN A (FIEE32)
(Note 32) 14,690 -
(8,844) (5,597)
During 2011, the capitalisation rate applied to funds borrowed generally RIE——FF  FAEEAREEIR—REFTNERE
and used for the construction in progress was approximately 7.05% (2010: FIREET7.05%( —F—ZF : 0%) °

Nil) per annum.
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e B RRMEE

28 Income Tax Expense

28 FRRER

Taxation on the PRC profits is calculated on the estimated assessable
profit for the year at the rates of taxation prevailing in the PRC.

The taxation on the Group’s profit before income tax differs from the
theoretical amount that would arise using the principal rate of the PRC

enterprise income tax as follows:

FEMERBARBETEARANESNEROBEY
T WHAFEOEFRABER DT E -

AEBERAMNBER

AENASHERRRPEARL

MECEREHREERRAENHBEMIR - ARFZR

TR

2011 2010
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®TT NS

PRC income tax B ERTEH
— Current income tax —EHFEH 10,251 -
— Under-provision in previous year — EEDE - 1,189
— Deferred income tax (Note 20) — BB (F7E20) 18,029 17,566
28,280 18,755

No provision for profits tax in the Cayman Islands and Hong Kong
has been made as the Group has no income assessable for profits
tax for the years in those jurisdictions.

According to the Corporate Income Tax Law of the People’s
Republic of China (hereinafter “the new CIT Law”) and the relevant
regulations, the enterprise income tax rate applicable to the
subsidiaries of the Group is 25%. Preferential rates are applicable
to foreign investment enterprises established in Special Economic
Zones in the PRC for a transitional period of 5 years from 2008
in which the income tax rate will be changed to 18%, 20%, 22%
24% and 25% from the five years from 2008 to 2012 respectively.
Accordingly, the applicable income tax rate of the subsidiaries of
the Group established in Shenzhen Special Economic Zone, Xiamen
Special Economic Zone and Pudong New Zone for the year ended
2011 was 24%(2010: 22%).

According to Cai Shui Zi [2009] No.1 issued by relevant tax
authorities in the PRC, Shanghai Kingdee Software Co., Ltd. was
qualified as an approved software enterprise in Feb 2011 and was
entitled to be exempted from enterprise income tax from year 2009
to year 2010 and a 50% deduction of income tax rate from year
2011 to year 2013.

@ ARAEERZEERAEHEHENEAYBES
B+ ARSI S S AR AT S
B -

b)) BEMPEREEAT  ASEZMBLRERNE
EBHREAR2S% R -ETEEZ B +ABAEF
B ERRRUNIERECETZEZFHNHER
EH S R-FT)\FH - —EERANMESRA
18%  20% - 22% * 24% - 25% » Ft - HAKEER
YRFNEERE - BEPICEREREERNENITE
DEZE——FEANGENBREA24%(ZE—F
1 02%) °

© RETEABEREHBEEGNTERE2009]5E15 - £
BEBEHERDRRRTEATAERE L EER
WEX-_EENEE_Z-TFEPMOEMEH =
T——EE D EREHNO R
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FEPBRRNGE

28 Income Tax Expense (ontinued)

29

130

(d Inaccordance with the Hi-tech enterprises Certification Regulation
which was jointly issued by Department of Science and Technology,
Ministry of Finance and the State Administration of Taxation
in 2008, Shenzhen Kingdee Middleware Co., Ltd. and Guangzhou
Guangzhou Wisetop Computer Co. Ltd were recognized as a Hi-tech
enterprise in 2011 and entitled to a preferential enterprise income
tax rate of 15%.

The reconciliation of the effective tax rate to the statutory tax rate is as
follows:

28 FMRREH )

O RENED MRINERRGEERR -_TTN\FH
ARAOBHEMERBTERNE - RS HHE
HAERARERNTZRAERERATRARTAR
BRSHEMEEERAN T ——FRET MK
MEXEE AR SETREERAFREMNT
ERAERERARN - T ——FAER15%HH X

BRERMEH -

BRBRERATHENGREMOT :

2011 2010
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTR AR¥FTT
Profit before tax BRA A & A 181,442 295,021
Tax at the statutory tax rate of 25% (2010: 25%) BAERR25%: EH TR
(—Z—TF : 25%) 45,361 73,755
— Effect of preferential tax rates —FREERENTE (34,531) (54,770)
— Tax losses not recognised — RERRELEEHEENTBER 44,916 21,473
— Expenses not deductible for tax purposes — AU BERNFZER 4,847 3,233
— Income not subject to tax (a) —EERF 2 WA @) (19,512) (18,141)
— Additional deductible allowance for research and — AR HEE R
development expenses (12,801) (7,984)
— Under-provision of income tax in previous year — EEDRZFEH - 1,189
28,280 18,755

(@ Income not subject to tax includes the VAT refund and certain
government grants which are not taxable according to relevant tax
regulations.

Profit/Loss Attributable to Equity Holders of the
Company

The profit attributable to equity holders of the Company dealt with in the
financial statements of the Company to the extent of RMB84,077,000
(2010: loss of RMB13,124,000).
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(@ REAEREAE  BERERBRAENEEHRGE R

BABMOEMEH -

FAFRBHAARGRTBR

AL DRRHBRE ZARRAIRERSEARGRTAARE
84,077,000t =F—ZEF AE51EARE13,124,0007T) °



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

FE B RRNEE

30 Earnings Per Share 30 BERET
(a) Basic (@) E=X
Basic earnings per share are calculated by dividing the profit BRERBNEBERAAESHAARENE - BRI
attributable to equity holders of the Company by the weighted FREETEBROMETHHETE
average number of ordinary shares in issue during the year.
T 2010
Profit attributable to equity holders of the Company A2 BliEz15 5 AJEIGBF
(RMB’000) (AREFT) 144,988 271,710
Weighted average number of ordinary shares BRI ERMMEESS (T
in issue (thousands) 2,513,194 2,485,259
Basic earnings per share (RMB cents per share) BREABMARED) 5.77 10.93
(b) Diluted (b) WH
Diluted earnings per share is calculated by adjusting the weighted BRESRABRSMANESNELLBRE LB
average number of ordinary shares outstanding to assume % BEEBTLEROMETIREGE - AAF
conversion of all dilutive potential ordinary shares. The Company BE-RUEENELLBR - BIRE - HFEE
has just one category of dilutive potential ordinary shares: share BATEEREMMOREENESEER  RAAE
options. For the share options, a calculation is done to determine EBE(BTAERRBRONEHEEME)JBEANKR
the number of shares that could have been acquired at fair valug HE - REMAFAHENRNEE - BRIERET
(determined as the average annual market share price of the FMERETMROSEBLE - HRETFARE
Company’s shares) based on the monetary value of the subscription BHENERE  THESREIRASTEAZE
rights attached to outstanding share options. The number of shares TER

calculated above is compared with the number of shares that would
have been issued assuming the exercise of the share options. The
exercises of share options which would result in an anti-dilutive
impact would not been taken into account in the diluted earnings
per share calculation.

T 2010

Profit attributable to equity holders of the Company AR A5 H ATEERT]

(RMB’000) (ARETFT) 144,988 271,710
Weighted average number of ordinary shares BEITE AR R IE T 98

in issue (thousands) (F&h) 2,513,194 2,485,259
Adjustments for — share options (thousands) R —BERRE (&) 162,791 166,858
Weighted average number of ordinary shares for STEBREERNE L RN

diluted earnings per share (thousands) BREHE (T 2,675,985 2,652,117
Diluted earnings per share (RMB cents per share) ~ SREERF(ARES) 5.42 10.25
2010 earnings per share (both basic and diluted) have been —E-ZEEREF(PEEANES)ELE BN
adjusted to reflect the effect of bonus issue of share mentioned in 16 Pt VAL AR S 2 - AT T Bl (R ERATR
Note 16(a) as if the bonus issue of shares occurred at 1 January —E—EFE—A—HET)
2010.
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FEREmRME

31

32

132

Dividends

The directors did not recommend the payment of a final dividend in
respect of the year ended 31 December 2011 (2010: RMB0.029 (HKD
0.034) per ordinary share, totaling RMB60,320,000 (HKD71,106,000).

Cash Generated from Operations

31 BB

EFSTRAREEHE

—E——F+ZA=+—RHIFE
BRNRE(ZZ—TFE AR ARK0.02970 (F£0.034
BIT) - At AAREE0,320,0007T(71,106,0007T) ) ©

32 EEEEMES

2011 2010
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®TR AREFT
Profit before income tax TR EHAZH 181,442 295,021
Adjustments for: FHEIER :
— Depreciation (Note 7) — &) 36,544 30,583
— Loss on disposals of property, plant and equipment — —#% - #EE MR HEHEERE
(Note 24) (P7E24) 511 149
— Amortisation of land use rights (Note 6) — T i fsE AR S (B E6) 1,940 2,336
— Amortisation of intangible assets (Note 8) —mEERE(ME8) 164,639 108,251
— Finance costs — net (Note 27) -HBERFENE27) 7,933 3,773
— Share option expenses —HiEER 24,667 21,830
— Gain on bargain purchases -REBEK= - (39,370)
— Fair value gain of investment property (Note 9) —REMENR EBAEZE G (HFF9) (135,658) (29,172
282,018 393,401
Changes in working capital: LEESEE
— Inventories -FE 3,010 2,807
— Trade and other receivables — FEUAR R EL A FE LR (91,974) (71,055)
— Deferred income —EEWA 33,846 37,408
— Trade and other payables —ENBRI R E AR 99,222 (8,396)
— Due from/to customers on implementation contracts — —fEl EN B EHA R (149,030) (51,781)
Cash generated from operations EBEEANES 177,092 302,384
In the cash flow statement, proceeds from disposal of property, plant and FRERERA HEME BERBENFEIAE
equipment comprise:
2011 2010
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®TR AREFT
Net book amount (Note 7) REFEET) 4,131 1,003
Loss on disposals of property, plant and equipment REWE B TREHOEE(H:E24)
(Note 24) (511) (149)
Proceeds from disposal of property, plant and equipment & 3 - #2E MR HOMER 3,620 854
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[ Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements]

33 Commitments — Group

(a) Capital commitments

(b)

33

The Group had capital expenditure contracted for but not

recognised in the accounts as follows:

i —RE
(a) BRE&iE

REERE R A RENRAEENERRZIRAT :

2011 2010

RMB’000 RMB’000

ARBTR ARETT

— Property, plant and equipment — % ERRRE 256,934 14,568
— Acquisition of subsidiaries —FREIGHEE - 5,280
256,934 19,848

Operating lease commitments

The Group had total minimum future lease payments under non-
cancelable operating leases in respect of buildings as follows:

(b) EEHEXRE

ARBRBETIIRECETREREMRARR I 2
RIEBREMF@QEMT -

2011 2010

RMB’000 RMB’000

ARETT ARBTFT

Not later than one year TBB—F 30,694 16,160
Later than one year and not later than five years BRE—FEIBRARF 30,473 9,219
61,167 25,379

34 Related Parties Transactions

Except as disclosed in Note11 (Advance to directors), Note18 (Share-
based payment) and Note 26 (Director’s emoluments) to the consolidated
financial statements, the Group had no other material transactions with
related parties for the year ended 31 December 2011.

34

RBLRH

H2-2——F1T-A=+—H BRTaHIBRERZMT
TH(EFER) - M18(ARN AERNX R 5) RHTE26
(BEFRARERENE)I AEEELMEARYE LIRS -
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FEPBRRNGE

35 EESH
BHE-T——F+-A=+-BEE FEMEFTTSE
ERHERS - BENTHUE  WEAA L BESY TS
DABESHBERERNT -

35 Business Combination

For the year ended 31 December 2011, the Group acquired certain
businesses. The particulars including the respective consideration
paid, the fair value or provisional fair value at the acquisition date are
summarised as follows.

134

Wisetop Kehua Total
BMZE HEEN &t
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
@) (b)
ARETT ARETT ARETT
Consideration: g :
— Cash -8 73,605 8,800 82,405
— Contingent consideration —BHE 46,320 - 46,320
Total consideration HEE 119,925 8,800 128,725
Non-controlling interest DHBRERS 10,295 - 10,295
Total a8t 130,220 8,800 139,020
Fair value or provisional fair value of HBEMHTBRIEZIELREE
identifiable assets acquired BEEZAREE
Property, plant and equipment ME - B NR 618 152 770
Intangible assets BREE 3,500 4,306 7,806
Inventories FE 5,040 19 5,059
Trade and other receivables JE U5 B 0 K L e L 2k 11,567 2,524 14,091
Due from customers on implementation  EWEFEHA RN
contracts 19,448 - 19,448
Cash and cash equivalents ReRReEEY 1,705 2,482 4,187
Current liabilities mEEE (700) (683) (1,383)
Total identifiable net assets AMLREENRR 41,178 8,800 49,978
Goodwill (Note 8) e (MsEs) 89,042 - 89,042
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FE B RRNEE

35 Business Combination (ontinued)

(@)

On 1 August 2011, the Group entered into an acquisition
agreement with third party vendors to acquire 75% equity interest
of Guangzhou Wisetop Computer Co. Ltd. (“Wisetop”), a company
which operates management software business for medical
industry (“Wisetop Acquisition”). The total consideration payable for
the transaction is RMB119,925,000, which included a contingent
consideration of RMB46,320,000 linked to the future performance
indicators. Wisetop Acquisition was completed on 1 August 2011
(“Closing Date”) and Wisetop then became a 75% owned subsidiary
of the Company. Pursuant to the acquisition agreement, the Group
will further inject its existing business similar to Wisetop with a
value of RMB26,000,000, as well as a cash of RMB30,000,000,
to Wisetop so as to intergrate the Group’s management software
business for medical industry. After the aforesaid injections,
Wisetop will become an 81.48% — owned subsidiary of the Group.

As of the date of this report, the Group is in the process of assessing
and quantifying the fair value of the net identifiable assets acquired
in Wisetop Acquisition. As such, it is not in a position to complete
its initial accounting because of the time constraint and the multiple
arrangements for Wisetop Acquisition. Therefore, when preparing
the Group’s 2011 financial statements, the Group consolidated
Wisetop by using their provisional fair value which approximates the
carrying value. The difference between the consideration, carrying
value of non-controlling interest and the provisional fair value of
Wisetop was tentatively recorded as intangible asset — goodwill.

The acquisition-related costs for Wisetop acquisition amounted
to RMB324,000 and were included in general and administrative
expenses in the consolidated income statement for the year ended
31 December 2011.

35 EESH

@

AEER_E——FNA-REF=FHFITTHREE
MNHEBTERBRAR([ZR)(FELEBET
EEBUIER) 5% RENHERT ([Z®B1HE %
Z)) ZBEREXZINBEHEARARK119,925,000
T o H o 4 AR 46,320,000 Ky 8k A B Bk
REEERTHE - ERYRELEN_T——F/\A
—BREN - Bt BEKABAEBBERT%ERNT
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£1881.48%HHE -
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35 Business Combination (ontinueq)

@

(continued)

For the period from the Closing Date to 31 December 2011,
Wisetop contributed revenue of RMB20,225,000 and a net profit
of RMB1,516,000 to the Group, without considering additional
amortisation of fair value adjustment for intangible assets acquired
as the initial accounting has not yet been completed. If Wisetop
Acquisition was occurred in 1 January 2011, the unaudited revenue
and net profit contributed by Wisetop to the Group would be
RMB38,980,000 and a net profit of RMB4,129,000 respectively.

On 15 November 2010, the Group entered into an acquisition
agreement with third party vendors to acquire 100% equity interest
of Shanghai Kehuagixiao Technology Co. Ltd., a company which
operates management software business. The total consideration
payable for the transaction is RMB8,800,000 in cash. The
acquisition was completed on 13 January 2011.

36 Events after the balance sheet date

The Group has no significant events after balance sheet date.
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£ RIZBYEEBATEBFRNREETRAR
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